
 

 

 

TUBAC FIRE DISTRICT       
         2227 EAST FRONTAGE ROAD 

        P.O. BOX 2881 

         TUBAC, ARIZONA 85646 

                         TELEPHONE: (520)398-2255  
 

 

 REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS  
                

The Tubac Fire District Board of Directors will meet in regular session on April 26, 2023, at 1:30 pm.  The following 
topics and any variables thereto, will be subject to Board consideration, discussion, approval, or other action.  All items 
are set for possible action.  The Board may consider any item on this agenda in any order and at any time during the 
meeting.  The Governing Board may convene into Executive Session for discussion or consultation for legal advice with 
its attorney regarding any item on this agenda, in accordance with A.R.S. § 38-431.03(A)(3).   

Members of the public may attend the meeting in person, by viewing the livestream on the Tubac Fire District Facebook 
page, or by telephone by calling (346) 248-7799 and entering the Webinar ID, 864 6995 0206, if prompted. 

NOTE: Executive Sessions are CONFIDENTIAL pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-431.03(C).  Members of the public may not 
participate in Executive Sessions.  Any Executive Session will take place through a remote method that is separate from 
the public conference call. 

Members of the public who are not able to attend the meeting in person, may submit comments to the Board by email. 
The emails will be read out loud during the meeting. Please email any comments to bhamric@tubacfire.org.  Emails 
must be received no later than 5pm the day before the meeting and must include your full name as well as your phone 
number (to allow District staff to contact you with any questions). 

                                                Agenda 

1. Call to order and Pledge of Allegiance  
2. Roll call of Board Members 
3. Badge pinning and years of service recognition 

a. Special guest the Honorable Emilio G. Velasquez, Justice of the Peace, will administer the oath of office: 
i.  Firefighter Maria Ruiz  

ii. Chief Ben Guerrero  
b. Chief Guerrero will present years of service: 

i. Firefighter Tim Slate 15 years 
ii. Captain Charlie Alvarez 15 years 

4. Report from Board Members 
5. Reading of public comments submitted via email 
6. Call to the Public: “This is the time for the public to comment on items related to the Fire District.  Members of the 

Board may not discuss items that are not on the agenda.  Therefore, the Fire Board is not permitted to discuss or 
take action on any items raised in the Call to the Public which is not on the agenda due to restrictions of the Open 
Meeting Law; however, individual Board members are permitted to respond to criticism directed to them.  
Otherwise, the Board has discretion to direct the Fire Chief to review the matter or that the matter is placed on a 
future agenda.  Those wishing to address the Board need not request permission in advance.  A member of the 
public may speak for a reasonable time as determined by the Board on an oral presentation.  If no time is specified, 

mailto:bhamric@tubacfire.org


 

 

the presumed time limit will be 3 minutes per person.  The Fire Board Chair may adjust time limitations and all 
individuals desiring to address the Fire Board will have the same opportunity. 

7. Correspondence 
8. Chair’s Report 
9. Chief and Staff Report 

a. Operations Update 
b. Training 
c. Wildland Update 
d. Administration Update 

10. Monthly Financial Report for March 2023 
11. Consent Agenda 

a. Approval of minutes from March 29, 2023 
b. Approval of monthly financial reports  

12. Discussion and information only regarding the Tubac Fire District FY 23/24 budget. 
13. Discussion and possible action to approve Resolution No. 2023-01 appointing Chief Guerrero and Captain Hesly 

Guerrero as the authorized representative and alternate authorized representative with the Arizona Department 
of Emergency and Military Affairs. (Req: Guerrero)  

14. Discussion and possible action to purchase an ambulance as a replacement for a 2008 Chevrolet Kodiak ambulance. 
(Req: Guerrero) 

15. Presentation on Station 1 tower replacement project by AT&T representative William Daley. (Req: Benequista) 
16. Discussion and possible action on employee benefits. (Req: Guerrero) 

a. Medical Coverage Benefits 
b. SECURIS Workers Compensation 
c. VFIS Property and Cyber Security 

17. Fire Station 1 items 
a. Discussion and possible action to further formalize communication between Fire Chief, Board Chair, Fire 

Board and Community. (Req: Johnson) 

b. Discussion and Possible Action to Revise Requirements to WSM Regarding Square Footage and Budget 

Restrictions or Other Items for the USDA Grant Application. (Req: Johnson) 

c. Discussion and information only of the relocation of staff, equipment, and administration during the 

building of station 1. (Req: Bohman)  

18. Future Agenda Items 
19. Next meeting:  May 31, 2023, at 1:30 p.m. 
20. Adjourn meeting. 

Notice of Meeting (Agenda) dated and posted April 24, 2023, by 5:00 p.m. local time by B.Hamric. 
If any disabled person needs any type of accommodation, please notify the Tubac Fire District prior to the scheduled meeting time. 





• EMS 77 (45 transports 2  transfer of care to another EMS agency)

• Fire 14

• Public Assist 33

• Total Calls 125



• Station 1 53

• Station 2 39

• Station 3 9

• Station 4 24



Calls by Month

2020 2021 2022 2023

January 113 126 116 110

Febuary 117 113 115 128

March 101 132 124 125

April 96 114 131

May 117 137 160

June 133 155 142

July 144 125 141

August 174 129 133

September 141 151 138

October 125 106 132

November 129 141 101

December 108 126 100

Total 1498 1555 1533



A Shift 49

B Shift 38

C shift 38 

Incidents by shift



• Holy Cross 23

• Northwest Sahuarita 10

• Banner Main 7

• St Mary’s 2

• Tucson Medical 0

• Banner South 0

• VA 2

• Northwest Medical Center Oro Valley 0



Turn around times based on 

location of  transport 



• Motor Vehicle accidents/Rollovers

• Madera Canyon Rescues

• Falls

• Snake Removals

• Wildland fire Initial Attack







Plans Review & Inspections



Maintenance Requests Fire Loss Due To Incident



Fire Prevention and CPR Classes































  

 

TUBAC FIRE DISTRICT       
     2227 EAST FRONTAGE ROAD 

         P.O. BOX 2881 

         TUBAC, ARIZONA 85646 

         TELEPHONE: (520) 398-2255 

Resolution #2023-01 
A Resolution of the Board of Directors of the Tubac Fire District 

(hereinafter the “District”) designating an authorized representative 

and an alternate authorized representative to the Arizona Department 

of Emergency and Military Affairs (hereinafter “AZDEMA”) for 

purposes of applying for certain public assistance.  

 
WHEREAS, the District from time to time may have occasion to seek Disaster Relief Act funding in the 

event of a federally designated or other related disaster, and; 
 

WHEREAS, AZDEMA is the State agency tasked among other duties with maintaining and implementing 
the Disaster Relief Act program, and; 
 

WHEREAS, AZDEMA has requested that the District designate an authorized representative and alternate 
to coordinate with the agency on activities related to this program. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, the District hereby resolves as follows: 
 

Section 1. Ben Guerrero, District Fire Chief and Hesly Guerrero, District Captain, are hereby designated as 
Authorized Representative and Alternate Authorized Representative, respectively, to execute applications on 
behalf of the District for the purpose of obtaining financial assistance under the Disaster Relief Act. 
 

Section 2. The District hereby submits the required fully executed designation forms to AZDEMA as 
requested and directed. 
 

Section 3. Chief Ben Guerrero and Captain Hesly Guerrero are hereby authorized and directed to take 
any and all steps necessary to carry out the purpose and intent of this Resolution. 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the Tubac Fire District, Arizona, this 26th day of April 
2023. 
 

APPROVED: 
 
__________________________________  
Mary Dahl, Chair 
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________________ 
Herb Wisdom, Clerk 
 



 

Page 1 of 1 

 

Board Action Request 

TO: Board of Directors 

FROM: Ben Guerrero, Fire Chief  

SUBJECT:  Discussion and possible action to purchase an ambulance as a replacement for a 2008 

Chevrolet Kodiak ambulance. 

DATE:   April 26, 2023 

 

Background: Tubac Fire needs to purchase a new ambulance to replace a 2008 Chevrolet Kodiak type I 

ambulance that is well on its way to 300,000 miles. This high-mileage vehicle has been at the shop 

recently with transmission and general mechanical issues. This is the last of four ambulances purchased 

in 2008 that need to be replaced.  

Due to chassis production issues, there is currently a 24-month waiting period to receive one. Once it is 

received there is a 180-day build-out time frame. Payment is not due until delivery.   

Staff Recommendation: Staff is recommending we purchase a type I ambulance from Medix. The 

ambulance specifications match our current front-line ambulance specifications and help with 

continuity.  

The vendor, Republic EVS Medix, is part of the HGAC procurement program in which the District is a 

participant. 

Fiscal Impact: This item is currently in the FY24/25 capital improvement plan. 

Alternate Option:  None  

Proposed Motion: Move to approve purchase of a 2023 Medix type I ambulance for a cost of 

$233,830.82 as shown on the provided quote.  

Attachment:  MEDIX QUOTE AND SPECIFICATIONS.  

 

 



 

Page 1 of 1 

Board Action Request 

TO:  Tubac Fire Board 

FROM:   Ben Guerrero Fire Chief 

SUBJECT:  Discussion and Possible Action to approved Resolution 2023-01 appointing Chief Ben 

Guerrero as AZDEMA authorized representative and Captain Hesly Guerrero as an 

alternate authorized representative. 

DATE:   April 26, 2023  

   

 

Background: Tubac Fire currently does not have an authorized representative (Applicant Agent) with 

the State Department of Emergency & Military Affairs.  

Tubac Fire needs an authorized representative to be able to apply for and receive Disaster Relief Act 

funds.  

Fiscal Impact: None  

Alternate Option: None identified.  

Staff Recommendation: Approve Resolution No. 2023-01 Appointing Chief Ben Guerrero and Captain 

Hesly Guerrero as representative and alternate representative with Arizona Department of 

Emergency and Military Affairs.  

Proposed Motion: I move to approve Resolution No. 2023-01 appointing Chief Ben Guerrero and 

Captain Hesly Guerrero as an Authorized Representative and Alternate Authorized Representative 

with the Department of Emergency and Military Affairs.  

Attachment: Board Resolution and Application Forms 







ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF EMERGENCY AND MILITARY AFFAIRS 

DESIGNATION OF ALTERNATE APPLICANT'S AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE FORM 
} The intent of this DESIGNATION is lo appoint an ALTERNATE APPLICANT'S AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

for the following: 
Select programM Iv' I Public Assistance lvl HMA Mitigation Program Iv' I SEC Mitigation 

Select dumtion Iv I until further notice □ Only Event 0From to 

Applicant: Tubae Fire District 

CERTIFICATION 

'duly appointed and Board Chair
(Title) 

of 1 Mary Dahl
(Authorizing Official's Name) 

Tubae Fire District , do hereby certify that the information below is true and correct, 
(Applicant) 

based on a resolution passed and approved (attached) by the Board of Directors
(Governing Body) 

on the26 day of April 2023 
(Applicant)

of Tubae Fire 
 

District
(day) (month) (year) 

) Ben Guerrero has been designated as the Alternate Applicant's Authorized 
zed Representative) (Name of Designated Altemate Applicant's Authori

Representative to act on behalf of Tubae Fire District
(Applicant) 

Board Chair 
(Authorizing Official's Signature) (Title) (Date) 

This doc11111e11t MUST be acco1111Hmied by a copy of the Reso/11tio11 or Meeting Minutes by your 

g011emi11g board which designated the Altemate Applicant's A11th01·ized Representative. 

Designated Alternate Applicant's Authorized Representative 

Name Ben Guerrero

Title/Official Position Fire Chief 

Full Mailing Address PO BOX 2881, Tubae AZ. 85646

Email Address BGUERRERO@TUBACFIRE.ORG

Daytime Telephone Number 520-398-2255 Cell 520-223-6676
(Please include area code and extension if not a direct number) 

I For DEMA Use Onlv I 
Received By: 

January 2023 Form #AZ PA 204-4 

(Initials & Date) 











 

Page 1 of 1 

 

Board Action Request 

SUBJECT:  Tubac Fire Employee Medical Benefits  

DATE:   April 26, 2023  

FROM: Ben Guerrero Fire Chief  

 

Background: Tubac Fire staff are currently looking at our medical benefits package renewal options. We 

currently utilize Crest Insurance Group as a broker to help us get the best available rates and coverage. 

Within this proposal we will be bundling our medical, vision, and dental insurance benefits. We have a 

deadline of May 1st to decide on what benefits package we would like to select.   

 

Fiscal Impact: An overall increase of $3,422 from last year’s premiums. A total cost of $282,454 

Alternate Option:  None  

Staff Recommendation:  Staff recommends that we approve the alternate renewal as recommended by 

Crest Insurance Group.  

 

Proposed Motion: Move to approve the recommended alternate renewal package provided by Crest 

Insurance Group as outlined in the 2023 Renewal Comparative Financial Summary.   

See Attachments 

2023 Renewal Comparative Financial Summary  

 

 



Republic EVS Received  

Tubac Fire District Sent for Approval  

2227 Interstate 19 Frontage Road Rec'd Approved

Tubac, AZ 85646 Scheduled

Genaro Rivera GPC Number: KB864

grivera@tubacfire.org
1-520-398-2255
Garett Adelman

To be assigned by MEDIX Form Revised 1/30/2023

QTY STD/OPT

1 16-1000-FD

-

01-
1 100040

1 STD
1 STD

1 100015

02-

1 STD

1 STD

1 STD

1 99-3165

1 STD

Note Weld 
Shop

1 STD

1  Modified

Customer Email:

DEALER:
CUSTOMER:

Street or P.O. Box

City, State, Zip
Customer Contact:

-

Flooring & Interior Colors
Cabinets: Laminate, High Gloss Gray

Upholstery: (Specify Color)
   Color:   GUNMETAL                Brand: EVS

CHASSIS

BODY

Customer Phone #:

Sales Associate:

Sales Engineer:

VIN#:

Chassis Model Yr.

MEDIX Model

2023
Metro Express 153 Type I - No Liq Spring

Ford F-350 XLT, 6.7L DIT Diesel, 169" WB, 14,000 GVWR
84" CA, 4x2

153"L x 94" W x 72" Interior Headroom

Description

Chassis & Conversion

2024 New Sales Model w/Drop Skirt Curbside & Wider 
Compartment #1

Camera System: Ford "F" 'Series Super Duty OEM Surface Mount Back-Up Camera and Harness 
tied into OEM display in dash.  Option Code 872.  Includes RVS-MV3-IR camera and RVS-OA08 

Harness.

Chassis: Comfort Ride Suspension, Power-Brake-Spring rear suspension stabilizer kit. 
     NOTE:  Required on ME-153 F350 4x2 Models without Liquid Springs Only.

All Exterior compartments coated with light gray colored rubberized polyurethane material.

Special roof for roof mounted condenser and interior UVC light placement

Pass-Thru: With accordion boot. Sliding, latching polycarbonate window.

Flooring: Lonseal, LonRidge (Tic-Tac-Toe), ILOS Lonspeck TS Twilight.
     Specify Color: SMOKEY BLACK #801

-

Body & Chassis
This chassis is equipped with a Diesel Exhaust Fluid (DEF) System to meet the EPA Diesel 
Emissions Standards.

Anti-Theft Device: IdleLock Ignition Security System, PN: B-IDLE506-A  for Ford F-Series 
Chassis Only. Locate activation button to the right side of the steering wheel.

Compartment Lights: Optronics ILL36CB LED Compartment lights- ALL Models
   Locate: (1) Ceiling of Compt #1; (2) in Compt #2- (1) URH, (1) LLH; (1) in ceiling of Compartment 
#3; (2) in Compt #4/5; (both lights in middle section); (1) in Compt #6 (if applicable).

Unit #:
XX-XXXX

3/23/2023  11:00 AM Page 1 of 7 RepEVS WO - Tubac 2023 Type I ME153 F350



1 Modified

1 STD

1 99-0334-F1

1 99-2164

2 STD

1  Modified

1
STD For 

2024 Model

1
STD For 

2024 Model

1 99-2688

1
STD For 

2024 Model

1 STD

1 STD

1 STD

1 200200A

1 STD

2 STD
3 STD
1 STD
4 STD
1 STD

Rear Entry Doors: Single piece laminated smooth aluminum door liner w/stainless steel center 
panel for black paddle handles; ADP kick panels.

Compartment #4/5 CS Forward: NO body above floor, ADP interior door panel, ALS Cabinet w/ 
Inside/Outside access at middle section ONLY, Lower section is BLOCKED OFF, Full-height, 
single Door w/gas strut hold-open. Bottom section aluminum body open storage standard.  (Optional 
location for additional battery with roll-out battery tray and removable, latching door.)

Drop Skirt - 4" on Curbside forward of the rear wheel well.  Taller front stone guard on passenger 
side.

Curbside Entry Door: Taller for 4" drop skirt.  Door handle to remain aligned with Compt #4/5 
handle; Single door system w/exterior/interior, locking paddle handles; window w/fixed glass; Gas 
strut hold-open. Sealed access to paddle handles in door panel. LED Step well light. Two-piece 
interior door panel.

Electrical: Step, Lippert 24" Single Tread Lite Power Step #353542 mounted below the 
curbside entry door. There will be a step override switch PN: MX09182 mounted in a single 
position Positron panel PN: MX01511 installed on the curbside wall above the squad bench 
just aft of the side entry door.  The electric step will automatically extend and retract with 
side entry door opening/closing.

Compartment #1 SS Forward: Smooth Aluminum body, ADP interior door panel, O2 "K" cylinder 
storage for STEEL tank, Door w/gas-strut hold-open.
NOTE: See option in oxygen section for different tank bracket.

Compartment #2 SS Center: Smooth Aluminum body, ADP interior door panel, Open Storage, 
Door w/gas strut hold-open and Seat Belt Strap.

Compartment #2: SS center, Drop Floor, 5" for Stair Chair storage PN: 33-10-4865
     NOTE: ME-153 Type I Ford Models Only.
*not for use on the 2024 models with wider #1

Compartment #3 SS Rear: 3/4 Height, Smooth Aluminum body, ADP interior door panel, NO 
Inside/Outside access-do not cut-out tub, backer plate to be added/welded on behind full 
inboard/back wall of compartment for customer mounting of gear/scba brackets; (1)- 
adjustable shelf. Door w/gas strut hold-open. See special tub #: 41-105939. NOTE: 153 
models only. 
   NOTE: Control box for Disinfection Light to be located on right hand wall towards door 
opening.

Rear Bumper: ADP corner pods w/Dock bumper pads, Center grip-strut flip-up step, powder coated 
steel frame
IV Hangers: (2) Cast black rubber fold-down over knee area of Cot and Squad Bench
Mirrors, OEM: (1) each cab door, (1) on interior windshield
Wheel Covers: Stainless steel covers w/Valve Extenders
Stone Guards: (3) Lower body corners, ADP; (1) 4" taller ADP on Curbside front 

Curbside Entry Door Stepwell: Dual, smooth aluminum steps welded into the floor structure and 
coated with a rubberized urethane liner material. There will be a Dri-Dek insert on each step 
surface.

Compartment #6 CS Rear: Smooth Aluminum, Vertical backboard storage w/2 belts. Door w/nylon 
strap hold-open.

All Entry Door paddle handle and rotary latching components will include emergency door releases 
located top and bottom of each door and shall meet the FMVSS 206 30G Test Requirement

Power Door Locks: Key Pad, programmable for power door locks.

Power Door Locks: All Entry and Compartment Doors, wired to OEM door lock system.  
(Does not include additional lock switches inside module)  
NOTE: Not for use on MSV-II Mods.

Kick Plate, Rear: ADP, below rear doors across to corner posts.

3/23/2023  11:00 AM Page 2 of 7 RepEVS WO - Tubac 2023 Type I ME153 F350



1 STD

2 STD
1 200130
2 STD

1 STD

1 STD
1 STD

03-
1 STD

1 STD

1 300100

04-

1 STD

2 99-1957

2 STD

1 99-2186

1 400100

1 99-0988

2  Modified

8 STD

1 STD

1 STD

1

99-0617 
Modified 
for cover 

color

1 99-3396

Insulation: Pink, double sided radiant barrier/acoustic material, installed on curbside and streetside 
rear wheel wells.
Insulation:  Spray in place foam applied to curbside entry step well and both rear wheel wells
Undercoating: Per QVM Guidelines
-

Brake, Turn & Back-Up Lights

Rub Rails: C-Channel, tapered ends, Lower Body off-set mount with neoprene spacers.

Running Boards: Diamond Plate, Type I w/starburst pattern
Fender Flares: Roll formed stainless steel, ILOS rubber.
Fuel Fill Bezel: Cast aluminum; DEF Fill Bezel: Cast Aluminum

Battery Switch, Automatic: TST CDR-400. Located in Electrical Cabinet.

Electrical: Pre-wire 8AWG - 12VDC ignition, power and ground from battery to a Blue Sea PN: 
5032 ST Blade Split Buss "12" Fuse block – two isolated groups of six circuit fuses with 
cover for "Battery Hot" and "Ignition Hot" wiring.
Locate: (1) in front console; (1) behind drivers seat.

Batteries: OEM, under hood

Front Console: Formed Aluminum, black powder coated, attached to floor. Cup holders and 
map box.  Customer Approval prior to build.  Remove the cutout forward of the map pocket 
and keep solid aluminum.
NOTE: Will have 125.v outlet on passenger side, see option below. See console print # 44-
A13485

Electrical: 125VAC, Duplex Outlet, IATS
     Specify Location(s): Front Console on Passenger Side

Lights: DOT, Brake/Tail, Turn, Back Up: Whelen 600 Series LED.

DOT Marker Lights: TecNiq LED, rubber grommet bezels; (7) S34-AC09-1 Amber- (5) on front of 
body as Marker lights, (2) side facing on rear extrusions as Turn Signals; (7) S34-RC90-1 Red- (5) 
on rear of Body as Marker lights, (2) side facing as Turn Signals.

Lights: DOT, Brake and Turn, Interior, LED, Under rear overhead cabinet, Two (2) CPI amber 
marker style wired to turn signals; One (1) CPI red marker style wired to brake circuit.

-

Electrical, Power Distribution, Control Center & Interior Lighting

Electrical: Shoreline, 125VAC, 20-Amp, Kussmaul SUPER Auto Eject P/N: 091-55-20-120 side 
wired with hinged, RED, weatherproof cover, Located above Compartment #2 on Streetside. 
Will have to be mounted on a Kussmaul Stainless Steel E-Z mounting plate P/N: 091-185-009 
with green indicator light for ease of access. Mating Connector to be shipped loose.  ILOS

Electrical: Shoreline, 125VAC, 20-Amp, Kussmaul SUPER Auto Eject weatherproof cover to 
be RED, ILOS Yellow.

Electrical: USB Port, Kussmaul 091-219-N dual USB port mounted in switch panel.  Fits into 
standard switch slot.  IATS
     LOCATION: Front Switch Panel

Antenna, Radio Coax Cables:  Run (1) coax to above Dome #3 and terminate behind driver's 
seat w/std. power/grounds; Run (1) coax to above Dome #4 and terminate in front console 
w/std. power/grounds. (relocated from domes #1 and #2 due to roof mount condenser) 

Lights: Dome, Whelen LED, 18-diodes w/chrome flange MX80EHZA , switched separately 
with Hi/Lo functions. 
Action Area Light: Whelen PSC0ADCR, 12 VDC LED Strip light, 6 diodes and On/Off switch on 
rear control panel

USB Port: Vanner VSS-USB dual port 2Amp mounted on A/A wall

3/23/2023  11:00 AM Page 3 of 7 RepEVS WO - Tubac 2023 Type I ME153 F350



1 STD

1 400160

1 99-1955

1 STD

3 STD

3 STD

1 400100

1 STD

1 STD

1 99-2920

05-

1 STD

Timer: 5-minute check-out, wired to CS High mode dome lights
Inverter: Vanner LSC12-1100- 1100watt with 3-Stage 55Amp battery charger, 20Amp power 
supply and built in GFI. Remote controlled with switch in the rear switch panel. ILOS   NOTE:  
OPTION 99-1955 IS REQUIRED WHEN ANY INVERTER IS MOUNTED IN ANY BULKHEAD or 
INTERIOR ENCLOSED CABINET. OPTION 99-2899 DUAL FANS REQUIRED ON RP-90ES and 
150 MODELS.
     Location: Lower P/T cabinet E

Electrical: Fan, Mechantronics Fan, (1) Axial 120x25MM 12VDC ventilation fan PN: 
E1225E12AB-FSR mounted on cabinet door or side wall when any inverter is mounted in an 
interior, enclosed cabinet.

Rear Switch Panel: Engraved black plastic panel with (10) LED lighted switch positions for Dome 
Lights (2), Vacuum (1), Vent (1), A.A. Light (1), Inverter (1), Spare switches and digital clock 
w/Mode Buttons. MX01517.

Electrical Cabinet: Located over cabin-module connection w/latching, recessed, vented door
Lighting: UV-C Disinfection Light.  Install a UV-C ADU-136 Disinfection light in ceiling (may 
require deleting a dome light depending on model and location in ceiling). Will require a 
special roof-see engineering print. Locate the control module for the light in compartment #3 
on the upper right hand wall close to the door opening, as per print.  All patient entry doors 
to be wired to control board so that light does not activate with entry door open. Wire to 
operate on 125VAC power from Shoreline Only.  Install in ceiling above the cot as per prints. 
Install with EVS Trim pad PN 86-115695.
     NOTE: For ME 153, 166 MSV II 157, 170 ONLY. 
-

Warning Lights & Sirens

Breaker Box: 125 VAC w/20-Amp Breaker located in the lower aisle-facing bulkhead cabinet.  GFI 
receptacle located on the Action Area wall.

12 VDC Outlets: (1) in Action Area, (1) in ALS Cabinet, (1) in 2nd Action Area

125 VAC Outlets: Duplex, located (1) in Action Area, (1) in ALS, (1) in 2nd Action Area

Electrical: 125VAC, Duplex Outlet, IATS
     Specify Location(s): Curbside wall over foot of squad bench next to the rear back rest, 
mid height.

Rear of Body: (4) Whelen 900 Series Red Super-LEDs: (2) in upper outboard corners, (2) Mid-
Body wired as Warning/Brake at the window level; (1) Whelen 900 Series Amber Super-LED in the 
center position over the rear doors.

Brake, Turn & Back-Up Lights: Whelen 600 Series LEDs
Lights, Warning, Intersection Lights: (2) Whelen LINZ6R Series Red Super-LEDs on front 
fenders

Lights:  Warning, Whelen LED EMERGENCY Lighting Package- Ford, Chevy Type I and Type 
III- Models ONLY.

NOTE:  Does not include LED Scene Lights.

Flash pattern as follows.  Double flash and series 1-2-1-2 around body.  Example: On face of 
body position 1, 3, 5 and 7 fire double flash, then 2, 4, 6 alternate.  This continues around the 
body.

All LED lights shall have CLEAR Lenses.  All emergency and scene lighting shall have 
chrome flanges in standard locations.  

Front of Body: Add (7) Whelen 900 Series Super-LEDs- Specify pattern by LED Color (4) Red 
and (3) White:  R-C-R-C-R-C-R. Outer (2) lights and (1) Center light flash on K-Spec flasher. 
Inner (4) flash independently on Light Bar switch on front console.

Sides of Body: (4) Whelen 900 Series Red Super-LEDs: (2) each side in upper corners 

3/23/2023  11:00 AM Page 4 of 7 RepEVS WO - Tubac 2023 Type I ME153 F350



1
500210 

modified

2 STD

2 99-0670

1 500420

6 500127

1 STD

2 STD
1 STD

1 99-2765

06-
3 STD

1 STD

1 600100

1 600035

1 STD

07-

1 99-3360

08-
1 STD

1
OPT 

Modified

Lights: Warning, (2) Whelen 700 Series Super-LED 70R02FCR Red with clear lens and 
chrome flange 7EFLANGE, IATS above rear wheel wells as rear intersection lights.  Wire to 
Pri/sec modes.

Lights, Warning, Grille: LINZ6R Red LED w/clear lenses & chrome flanges on center grille bar

Siren: Whelen 295 SLSA1, 200 Watt
Lights: Spotlight, GoLight/Radioray 30214 Stryker, hardwired black body LED spotlight. 
Spotlight will be permanently mounted and hard wired to an OVAL dash mount style remote.  
Remote to be installed on the front switch panel to the right of the siren head. Light to be 
installed centered on CAB roof.
     NOTE:  2020 or later F-Series chassis only.
-

Oxygen, Vacuum & Miscellaneous Items
Oxygen Outlets: Quick-connect style, (2) in Action Area, (1) over Squad Bench

Lights: Warning, Grille, (1) Whelen LINZ6C Clear Super-LED & chrome flange on center grille 
bar, IATS
     Specify Location:  Lower portion of grill, wide acting as wig wag - see option below for 
flasher.

Lights: Warning, Wig-Wag, Sound-Off flasher wired to OEM headlights - (includes one switch 
in front panel, P/N: MX09048) 
(NOTE: Must select an LED lighting option to go with the flasher.  Wig-Wags cannot be wired 
to OEM headlights.)

Lights: Scene/Load, Whelen 900 Series Super-LED 9SC0ENZR Gradient Opti-Scenelight™ 
with chrome flange- ILOS Halogen
     Specify Locations:  2 on Each Side and 2 on rear

Flasher: Dual mode flasher for Warning Light system, Vanner 9860GCPE

Siren Speakers: dual 100 Watt drivers mounted through the front bumper.

-

AC / Heat
HVAC System: Valeo PN: 11139908A 9067T, High capacity, horizontal blow, combination 
Heat-AC system with multi-speed fan, Valeo roof mounted condenser PN: 25067, inline 
booster pump to enhance the rear heater performance and Valeo digital thermostat control 
on action area panel.  ILOS
     NOTE: Ford F-Series Type I Models ONLY         

-

Cabinets, Hardware & Miscellaneous Items

Suction Aspirator System: Rico disposable container mounted in Action Area w/gauge and quick-
connect; SSCOR vacuum pump mounted in lower bulkhead hallway cabinet

Oxygen: O2 Outlets, Single OHMEDA Z-QD0101MO outlet, IATS
     Specify Location(s): Ceiling in standardized position

Oxygen: O2 Cylinder Mount, M or H Medical Air or O2 cylinders. Adjustable, Safety Yellow 
bracket with 3-spring buckle straps and top collar- ILOS, Use p/n: 66-A10761 (Standard on 
MSV II)
   Specify Location(s): Compartment #1
NOTE: SET TANK BRACKET UP FOR "K" TANK SIZE

O2 Regulator: Amvex, 50psi, pre-set

Main Streetside Wall Cabinets:  Specify desired configuration-

Streetside Cabinet Configuration shall include a CPR Seat with Pro-4 seat belt system.  The 
seat belt system shall include a custom contoured seat back, a single click Pro-4 seat belt, 

custom pads on the upper straps for shoulder comfort and a heat embossed Medix LOGO at 
the head area.   (DELETE STANDARD 2nd Action area and outlets - to be replaced with extra 

cabinet.) 

3/23/2023  11:00 AM Page 5 of 7 RepEVS WO - Tubac 2023 Type I ME153 F350



1 99-2166

1 99-0721

1 STD

1 STD

1 STD

1 STD

1 Modified

1 99-0953

1 99-0511

1 STD

1

2

3

1 STD

1 99-0798

1 STD

1 99-2777

1 STD

1 STD
3 STD

1 STD

09-

Main Wall Cabinets will have (1) adjustable shelf in each and sliding polycarbonate doors with full 
height extruded handles. See Prints for Configuration.

Action Area Overhead Cabinet: Single cabinet full-height/full-depth of Action Area with sliding 
polycarbonate doors and full height extruded handles.

Action Area and Switch Panel: Laminated, sealed countertop and vertical ALUMINUM panel with 
Suction system collection canister, Vacuum gauge, (2) Oxygen outlets, (1) USB, (1) 12VDC Outlet, 
(1) 125VAC Outlet and digital Thermostat. Switch panel MX01517 includes (10) switch positions and 
digital clock w/Mode Buttons.
Bulkhead Wall Cabinets: Electrical Cabinet above cabin-module connection w/hinged, latching, 
vented door.

Bulkhead Cabinets: Upper cabinet- general storage w/hinged, latching door; Lower cabinet general 
storage w/hinged, latching, vented door and location for inverter and vacuum pump on floor.

Cabinet: Aft of CPR seat ILOS 2nd action area.  Cabinet to have a single 1/2" Acrylic door 
with non-locking two-point pinch latches. Note: 166 and 153 models only.
NOTE: HINGE ON RIGHT SIDE - REFERENCE PREVIOUS TRUCK 19-MH1283.

Shelf: Plywood in interior cabinet IATS where there is no existing shelf.
   Specify Location(s): Cabinet B

2) EVS Pro-4 seat belt system seating positions.  The seat belt positions shall include a custom 
contoured seat back, a single click Pro-4 seat belt, custom pads on the upper straps for shoulder 
comfort, a custom retractor for securing a secondary patient and a heat embossed Medix LOGO at 
the heat area.

Stainless steel kick panel along lower face of bench.

Sharps/Waste: Drop-in style with aluminum, powder coated red, hinged lid and standard 
containers, located at head of squad bench.

Glove Box Holders: (3) with hinged, black 11ga steel powder-coated door, above Curbside 
Entry Door. 

Cabinet, Rear Overhead: Cabinet over rear door opening with (1) flip-up 1/2" Acrylic door and (2) 
round SouthCo latches.

ALS Cabinet: Lower section- Locking LifeDefender latch with storage for 747 box, Middle Section- 
general storage with non-locking doors and 1-adjustable shelf.
NOTE: Make sure to install (2) latches on RH door only.

ALS Cabinet: Close off lower section of ALS cabinet for Inside/Access only.

Cargo Net: Head of squad bench- Type I / III 150/153 Models. Squad Bench to accommodate 
mounting plate and cover secured to wall structure. 

Squad Bench-ALUMINUM WITH HDPE LID 
Full length hinged lid w/TriMark latch for access to interior 
storage; Full length upholstered seat cushion except over Sharps/Waste Area.

-

Cots & Miscellaneous Items

Seating: EVS 1880 Child Safety Seat, (1) Technician's Seat MDX-1880S4B with 10º back. Rear 
facing automotive style seat to include a Pro-4 black belt system, comfort shoulder padding 
with heat embossed Medix LOGO at the head area of the backrest and the child safety seat 
system. -ILOS Pro-4 seat.
     NOTE:  Must specify seat base in separate line item. 
     NOTE:  Medix Modular Models Only.
Seat Base: EVS CB-Side storage base for EVS Technician's Seat

Assist Rail: overhead off-center toward Streetside of unit.
Grab handles: 12" x 1.25" dia. stainless steel mounted on each rear entry and curbside entry door
Reflective Striping, Door Open Protection: .50" Red reflective striping around interior door pan of 
all body doors.

3/23/2023  11:00 AM Page 6 of 7 RepEVS WO - Tubac 2023 Type I ME153 F350



1 99-2173

10-

1 1000072

1 99-2184

1 OPT

1 1000100

2 STD

I have reviewed this Order and find it to be acceptable and ready 
to build.
 
_______________________________  Date: ________________
                Customer Signature

Due to on-going product improvements and the changing requirements of the ambulance industry,
MEDIX Specialty Vehicles, Inc. reserves the right to change product specifications and related
products without prior notice and without any obligation to change prior products or parts. ALL
PATENTS RIGHTS RESERVED.

Product quotes are subject to change. Purchase Price will be the published price list within
Quote/Order Entry System on the date of order acceptance by Company

Cot Mount: Ferno iNLINE Fastener System, with Universal Floor mount and integrated 
charging system.  ILOS 175-4
     Location:  Center Position
     NOTE:  ME-150/153, ME-166, MSV-II 157 and 170 Models Only.
-

Paint & Lettering

TOTAL  ORDER

-

SHIP LOOSE
Fire Extinguisher: (2) 5 lb.- Ship Loose is Standard

Paint: Mid-Body Down Type 1
     Color: Blaze Red
     Color Code: PPG 935236 (OEM Code B8241)
     Configuration: White to cover half of the ambulance down to bottom of cab door window 
and run the length of the body. see print layouts.
     NOTE: Requires Approved Drawings Prior to submitting order.  Paint spray samples must 
be approved prior to scheduling.

Windows: Privacy tint, dark vinyl applied to all three entry module entry door windows.  PER 
CALIFORNIA ORDERS - TINT TO BE 3% OVER NORMAL TINTED WINDOWS ON MODULE 
ENTRY DOORS - TO BE "3% GRADE".
     NOTE: Module application only.
Grayson Graphics to supply and install graphics package -
1/2" black reflective pin-stripe installed (at paint break only)
4" white reflective stripe installed
Rear Chevron, sides only, 2 color (983-72 red and 983-71 yellow) diamond grade reflective 
installed
Lettering, logos and Stock SOL's produced and installed
(Most lettering quoted as 2 color printed black (non-reflective)with a white reflective outline. 
White reflective with a printed black (non-reflective) outline. Printed black (non-reflective) 
with a printed ruby red reflective outline. Or printed ruby red reflective with a printed black 
(non-reflective) outline. SOL's will be printed on reflective SOL blue with a white reflective 
outline.)
-
Roof Star ONLY, INSTALLED

3/23/2023  11:00 AM Page 7 of 7 RepEVS WO - Tubac 2023 Type I ME153 F350



Qty Price Each Extended Price
1 $232,830.82 $232,830.82

1 $1,000.00 $1,000.00
1 $233,830.82 $233,830.82

Tubac Fire District

3/24/2023
Signature                                                            Date

Printed Name

Title

Offer and Purchase Agreement for: Tubac Fire District

Republic EVS

Signature below represents acceptance of above contract and terms:

Date Offered: March 24, 2023
Two Hundred Thirty Three Thousand Eight Hundred Thirty  Dollars and Eighty One Cents

$233,830.82

One (1) Medix Specialty Vehicles Type I ME 153" on 2023 
Ford F-350 4 x 2 Diesel Powered Chassis, Two Door 
Standard Cab

Offer is based off of build quote as well as reference drawings if applicable.  A final engineered build quote 
for customer review and approval will be provided prior to ambulance construction. Any changes requested 
from a pre build meeting may result in additional charges.

3/24/2023
Signature                                                              Date

Garett Adelman
Printed Name

Director of Sales
Title

One (1) Medix Specialty Vehicles Type I ME 153" on 2023 Ford F-350 4 x 2 Diesel Powered Chassis, Two Door 
Standard Cab

All prices are quoted to included Government Factory Rebates.  Rebates are subject to change.  If the current 
Rebate amount changes or becomes unavailable.  The difference per vehicle will be invoiced to the 

Purchaser.  Pricing is subject to change if additional options are requested.
Description

HGAC Fee
Total Purchase Price

Payment Terms: 100% payment of the contract is due at time of delivery unless otherwise specified in 
writing.  Title for the ambulance will be delivered in Seven (7) business days or less once payment has 
processed through the financial institution.

Delivery Terms:  Delivery shall be 180 days or less after Receipt of Chassis as well as approved work order 
and production drawing if applicable.  F.O.B. shall be Tubac, AZ.

                                           
Chassis VIN Number(s): To Be Determined After Production Start Date

Republic EVS
12410 Clark St.
Santa Fe Springs, CA 90670

garet
ga1



DRAWN BY:

DESCRIPTION:

"LET US SHOW YOU THE MEDIX DIFFERENCE"

WWW.MEDIXAMBULANCE.COM

3008 MOBILE DRIVE

ELKHART, IN 46514

PH:   574-266-0911

FAX: 574-266-6669
SPECIALTY VEHICLES, INC.

Note: Drawings are for reference only, measurements may vary from actual product.

REVISED BY:

DATE CREATED:

DATE REVISED: REVISION:

SCALE:

Dealer:

Approved By:

Customer:

Date:

Sheet

A

AutoCAD SHX Text
I.STANSBURY

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/5/2021

AutoCAD SHX Text
FORD F-350 169" W.B.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ME-153"-72" H.R. TYPE I AMBULANCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO. 900

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO. 900

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-STI-91  DOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-WW2W5-91

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO. 900

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO. 900

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-STI-91  DOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-WW2W5-91

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO. 900

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO. 900

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-STI-91  DOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-WW2W5-91

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO. 900

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO. 900

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-STI-91  DOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-WW2W5-91

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRIVACY TINT

AutoCAD SHX Text
REPUBLIC

AutoCAD SHX Text
TUBAC FIRE

AutoCAD SHX Text
21-MH1339

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURB SIDE EXTERIOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
5/16"=1'



DRAWN BY:

DESCRIPTION:

"LET US SHOW YOU THE MEDIX DIFFERENCE"

WWW.MEDIXAMBULANCE.COM

3008 MOBILE DRIVE

ELKHART, IN 46514

PH:   574-266-0911

FAX: 574-266-6669
SPECIALTY VEHICLES, INC.

Note: Drawings are for reference only, measurements may vary from actual product.

REVISED BY:

DATE CREATED:

DATE REVISED: REVISION:

SCALE:

Dealer:

Approved By:

Customer:

Date:

Sheet

B

AutoCAD SHX Text
I.STANSBURY

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/5/2021

AutoCAD SHX Text
FORD F-350 169" W.B.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ME-153"-72" H.R. TYPE I AMBULANCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEF

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIESEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO. 900

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO. 900

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-STI-91  DOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-WW2W5-91

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO. 900

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO. 900

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-STI-91  DOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-WW2W5-91

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO. 900

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO. 900

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-STI-91  DOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-WW2W5-91

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO. 900

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO. 900

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-STI-91  DOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-WW2W5-91

AutoCAD SHX Text
KEYPAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
REPUBLIC

AutoCAD SHX Text
TUBAC FIRE

AutoCAD SHX Text
21-MH1339

AutoCAD SHX Text
STREET SIDE EXTERIOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
5/16"=1'



DRAWN BY:

DESCRIPTION:

"LET US SHOW YOU THE MEDIX DIFFERENCE"

WWW.MEDIXAMBULANCE.COM

3008 MOBILE DRIVE

ELKHART, IN 46514

PH:   574-266-0911

FAX: 574-266-6669
SPECIALTY VEHICLES, INC.

Note: Drawings are for reference only, measurements may vary from actual product.

REVISED BY:

DATE CREATED:

DATE REVISED: REVISION:

SCALE:

Dealer:

Approved By:

Customer:

Date:

Sheet

C

AutoCAD SHX Text
I.STANSBURY

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/5/2021

AutoCAD SHX Text
FORD F-350 169" W.B.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ME-153"-72" H.R. TYPE I AMBULANCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO. 900

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO. 900

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-STI-91  DOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-WW2W5-91

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO. 900

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO. 900

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-STI-91  DOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-WW2W5-91

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO. 900

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO. 900

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-STI-91  DOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-WW2W5-91

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO. 900

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO. 900

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-STI-91  DOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-WW2W5-91

AutoCAD SHX Text
MEDIX

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO. 900

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO. 900

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-STI-91  DOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-WW2W5-91

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO. 900

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO. 900

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-STI-91  DOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-WW2W5-91

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO. 900

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO. 900

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-STI-91  DOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-WW2W5-91

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO. 900

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO. 900

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-STI-91  DOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-WW2W5-91

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO. 900

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO. 900

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-STI-91  DOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-WW2W5-91

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO. 900

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO. 900

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-STI-91  DOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-WW2W5-91

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO. 900

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO. 900

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-STI-91  DOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-WW2W5-91

AutoCAD SHX Text
MODEL 64 SERIES

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAT. PEND.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-WW2W5-91

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-STI-91

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MODEL 64 SERIES

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAT. PEND.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-WW2W5-91

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-STI-91

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MODEL 64 SERIES

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAT. PEND.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-WW2W5-91

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-STI-91

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MODEL 64 SERIES

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAT. PEND.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-WW2W5-91

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-STI-91

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO. 900

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO. 900

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-STI-91  DOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-WW2W5-91

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO. 900

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO. 900

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-STI-91  DOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-WW2W5-91

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO. 900

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO. 900

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-STI-91  DOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-WW2W5-91

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRIVACY TINT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRIVACY TINT

AutoCAD SHX Text
REPUBLIC

AutoCAD SHX Text
TUBAC FIRE

AutoCAD SHX Text
21-MH1339

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRONT & REAR EXTERIOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
5/16"=1'



DRAWN BY:

DESCRIPTION:

"LET US SHOW YOU THE MEDIX DIFFERENCE"

WWW.MEDIXAMBULANCE.COM

3008 MOBILE DRIVE

ELKHART, IN 46514

PH:   574-266-0911

FAX: 574-266-6669
SPECIALTY VEHICLES, INC.

Note: Drawings are for reference only, measurements may vary from actual product.

REVISED BY:

DATE CREATED:

DATE REVISED: REVISION:

SCALE:

Dealer:

Approved By:

Customer:

Date:

Sheet

 COMPARTMENT SIZES

NO. COMPARTMENT TYPE WIDTH HEIGHT DEPTH

COMPARTMENT & ENTRY DOORS

NO. PART NUMBER NO. PARTNUMBER

 COMPARTMENT / ENTRY DOOR SIZES

NO.

COMPARTMENT / ENTRY DOOR TYPE

WIDTH HEIGHT

COMPARTMENT TUBS

NO. PART NUMBER NO. PARTNUMBER

A

AutoCAD SHX Text
I.STANSBURY

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/5/2021

AutoCAD SHX Text
FORD F-350 169" W.B.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ME-153"-72" H.R. TYPE I AMBULANCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO. 900

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO. 900

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-STI-91  DOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-WW2W5-91

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO. 900

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO. 900

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-STI-91  DOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-WW2W5-91

AutoCAD SHX Text
9X7 LED SCENE LIGHTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO. 900

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO. 900

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-STI-91  DOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-WW2W5-91

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO. 900

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO. 900

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-STI-91  DOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-WW2W5-91

AutoCAD SHX Text
9X7 RED LED WARNING LIGHTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
STAINLESS WHEEL COVERS W/ VALVE EXTENSIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALL GREEN DIMENSIONS ARE TAKEN FROM EDGE OF WALL SURFACE PRIOR TO CORNER CAP BEING APPLIED

AutoCAD SHX Text
STAINLESS FENDER FLARES

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALL COMPARTMENT/ENTRY DOORS TO HAVE POWER LOCKS WIRE TO OEM

AutoCAD SHX Text
LINZ6 RED LED INTERSECTION LIGHT W/CHROME FLANGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RUNNING BOARDS W/PUNCH GRIP

AutoCAD SHX Text
INSIDE ACCESS ONLY

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELECTRIC STEP

AutoCAD SHX Text
7X3 RED LED INTERSECTION LIGHTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
GO LIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRIVACY TINT

AutoCAD SHX Text
REPUBLIC

AutoCAD SHX Text
TUBAC FIRE

AutoCAD SHX Text
21-MH1339

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTE:THE DIMENSIONS BELOW ARE ROUGH OPENINGS, SUBTRACT 1/4" FOR TUB SIZE

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALS/BATTERY COMPARTMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
---

AutoCAD SHX Text
---

AutoCAD SHX Text
---

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
BACKBOARD STORAGE COMPARTMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
12  "12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
77  "34"

AutoCAD SHX Text
19"

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
71-A10910

AutoCAD SHX Text
SE

AutoCAD SHX Text
71-A10908

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
71-115267

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
---

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALS/BATTERY COMPARTMENT DOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
18"

AutoCAD SHX Text
58  "116"

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
BACKBOARD COMPARTMENT DOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
11  "316"

AutoCAD SHX Text
76  "58"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDE ENTRY DOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
29  "34"

AutoCAD SHX Text
69  "116"

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
41-101372

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
41-115268

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
---

AutoCAD SHX Text
SE

AutoCAD SHX Text
41-101781

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
---

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURB SIDE EXTERIOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
5/16"=1'



DRAWN BY:

DESCRIPTION:

"LET US SHOW YOU THE MEDIX DIFFERENCE"

WWW.MEDIXAMBULANCE.COM

3008 MOBILE DRIVE

ELKHART, IN 46514

PH:   574-266-0911

FAX: 574-266-6669
SPECIALTY VEHICLES, INC.

Note: Drawings are for reference only, measurements may vary from actual product.

REVISED BY:

DATE CREATED:

DATE REVISED: REVISION:

SCALE:

Dealer:

Approved By:

Customer:

Date:

Sheet

 COMPARTMENT SIZES

NO. COMPARTMENT TYPE WIDTH HEIGHT DEPTH

COMPARTMENT & ENTRY DOORS

NO. PART NUMBER NO. PARTNUMBER

 COMPARTMENT / ENTRY DOOR SIZES

NO.
COMPARTMENT / ENTRY DOOR TYPE

WIDTH HEIGHT

COMPARTMENT TUBS

NO. PART NUMBER NO. PARTNUMBER

B

AutoCAD SHX Text
I.STANSBURY

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/5/2021

AutoCAD SHX Text
FORD F-350 169" W.B.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ME-153"-72" H.R. TYPE I AMBULANCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
STAINLESS FENDER FLARES

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEF

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIESEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO. 900

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO. 900

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-STI-91  DOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-WW2W5-91

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO. 900

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO. 900

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-STI-91  DOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-WW2W5-91

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO. 900

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO. 900

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-STI-91  DOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-WW2W5-91

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO. 900

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO. 900

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-STI-91  DOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-WW2W5-91

AutoCAD SHX Text
9X7 RED LED WARNING LIGHTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
9X7 LED SCENE LIGHTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
STAINLESS WHEEL COVERS W/ VALVE EXTENSIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALL GREEN DIMENSIONS ARE TAKEN FROM EDGE OF WALL SURFACE PRIOR TO CORNER CAP BEING APPLIED

AutoCAD SHX Text
20A 125V SUPER AUTO-EJECT W/INDICATOR LIGHT (SIDE WIRE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALL COMPARTMENT/ENTRY DOORS TO HAVE POWER LOCKS WIRE TO OEM

AutoCAD SHX Text
LINZ6 RED LED INTERSECTION LIGHT W/CHROME FLANGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RUNNING BOARDS W/PUNCH GRIP

AutoCAD SHX Text
KEYPAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
5" DROP PAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADJ. SHELF

AutoCAD SHX Text
BACKER PLATE FOR SCBA

AutoCAD SHX Text
7X3 RED LED INTERSECTION LIGHTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
GO LIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text
UVC LIGHT CONTROLS

AutoCAD SHX Text
REPUBLIC

AutoCAD SHX Text
TUBAC FIRE

AutoCAD SHX Text
21-MH1339

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTE:THE DIMENSIONS BELOW ARE ROUGH OPENINGS, SUBTRACT 1/4" FOR TUB SIZE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
O2 STORAGE COMPARTMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
16  "34"

AutoCAD SHX Text
69  "34"

AutoCAD SHX Text
15  "34"

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
MID BODY STORAGE COMPARTMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
30  "34"

AutoCAD SHX Text
34  "34"

AutoCAD SHX Text
15  "34"

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
REAR STORAGE COMPARTMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
34  "34"

AutoCAD SHX Text
34  "34"

AutoCAD SHX Text
18  "34"

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
---

AutoCAD SHX Text
---

AutoCAD SHX Text
---

AutoCAD SHX Text
---

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
71-A10911

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
---

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
71-A10976

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
---

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
71-101654

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
---

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
O2 STORAGE COMPARTMENT DOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
15  "916"

AutoCAD SHX Text
68  "58"

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
MID BODY STORAGE COMPARTMENT DOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
29  "916"

AutoCAD SHX Text
33  "58"

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
REAR STORAGE COMPARTMENT DOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
33  "58"

AutoCAD SHX Text
33  "58"

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
---

AutoCAD SHX Text
---

AutoCAD SHX Text
---

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
41-101248

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
---

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
41-102461

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
---

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
41-105939

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
---

AutoCAD SHX Text
STREET SIDE EXTERIOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
5/16"=1'



DRAWN BY:

DESCRIPTION:

"LET US SHOW YOU THE MEDIX DIFFERENCE"

WWW.MEDIXAMBULANCE.COM

3008 MOBILE DRIVE

ELKHART, IN 46514

PH:   574-266-0911

FAX: 574-266-6669
SPECIALTY VEHICLES, INC.

Note: Drawings are for reference only, measurements may vary from actual product.

REVISED BY:

DATE CREATED:

DATE REVISED: REVISION:

SCALE:

Dealer:

Approved By:

Customer:

Date:

Sheet

C

 REAR ENTRY DOOR SIZES

NO. WIDTH HEIGHT PART NUMBER

AutoCAD SHX Text
I.STANSBURY

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/5/2021

AutoCAD SHX Text
FORD F-350 169" W.B.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ME-153"-72" H.R. TYPE I AMBULANCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
POWER VENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO. 900

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO. 900

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-STI-91  DOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-WW2W5-91

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO. 900

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO. 900

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-STI-91  DOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-WW2W5-91

AutoCAD SHX Text
9X7 RED LED WARNING LIGHTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO. 900

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO. 900

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-STI-91  DOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-WW2W5-91

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO. 900

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO. 900

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-STI-91  DOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-WW2W5-91

AutoCAD SHX Text
9X7 RED LED MID-BODY LIGHTS WIRE TO BRAKE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MEDIX

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIREN SPEAKERS RECESSED BUMPER MOUNT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALL GREEN DIMENSIONS ARE TAKEN FROM EDGE OF WALL SURFACE PRIOR TO CORNER CAP BEING APPLIED

AutoCAD SHX Text
AMBER LED  CLEARANCE LIGHTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
 (3) 9X7 CLEAR LED WARNING LIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO. 900

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO. 900

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-STI-91  DOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-WW2W5-91

AutoCAD SHX Text
(4) 9X7 RED LED WARNING LIGHTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO. 900

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO. 900

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-STI-91  DOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-WW2W5-91

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO. 900

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO. 900

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-STI-91  DOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-WW2W5-91

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO. 900

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO. 900

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-STI-91  DOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-WW2W5-91

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO. 900

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO. 900

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-STI-91  DOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-WW2W5-91

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO. 900

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO. 900

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-STI-91  DOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-WW2W5-91

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO. 900

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO. 900

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-STI-91  DOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-WW2W5-91

AutoCAD SHX Text
RED LED  CLEARANCE LIGHTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
MODEL 64 SERIES

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAT. PEND.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-WW2W5-91

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-STI-91

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MODEL 64 SERIES

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAT. PEND.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-WW2W5-91

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-STI-91

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN 6X4 LED BRAKE/TAIL/TURN LIGHTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
MODEL 64 SERIES

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAT. PEND.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-WW2W5-91

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-STI-91

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MODEL 64 SERIES

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAT. PEND.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-WW2W5-91

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-STI-91

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BACK-UP CAMERA

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALL COMPARTMENT/ENTRY DOORS TO HAVE POWER LOCKS WIRE TO OEM

AutoCAD SHX Text
LINZ6 RED LED WARNING LIGHTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO. 900

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO. 900

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-STI-91  DOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-WW2W5-91

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO. 900

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO. 900

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-STI-91  DOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-WW2W5-91

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO. 900

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO. 900

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-STI-91  DOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-WW2W5-91

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN 9X7 LED REAR LOAD LIGHTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN 9X7 AMBER LED WARNING LIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text
LINZ6 CLEAR LED WARNING LIGHTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
GO  LIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRIVACY TINT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRIVACY TINT

AutoCAD SHX Text
REPUBLIC

AutoCAD SHX Text
TUBAC FIRE

AutoCAD SHX Text
21-MH1339

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRONT & REAR EXTERIOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
5/16"=1'

AutoCAD SHX Text
RE

AutoCAD SHX Text
50"

AutoCAD SHX Text
64  "116"

AutoCAD SHX Text
71-A12032



DRAWN BY:

DESCRIPTION:

"LET US SHOW YOU THE MEDIX DIFFERENCE"

WWW.MEDIXAMBULANCE.COM

3008 MOBILE DRIVE

ELKHART, IN 46514

PH:   574-266-0911

FAX: 574-266-6669
SPECIALTY VEHICLES, INC.

Note: Drawings are for reference only, measurements may vary from actual product.

REVISED BY:

DATE CREATED:

DATE REVISED: REVISION:

SCALE:

TECH
SEAT

Dealer:

Approved By:

Customer:

Date:

Sheet

D

AutoCAD SHX Text
I.STANSBURY

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/5/2021

AutoCAD SHX Text
FORD F-350 169" W.B.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ME-153"-72" H.R. TYPE I AMBULANCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BACKBOARD STORAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENTRY STEP

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADVANCED LIFE SUPPORT CABINET

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACTION AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
CABINETS

AutoCAD SHX Text
CABINETS

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELECTRICAL COMPT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CARGO NET

AutoCAD SHX Text
COT MOUNT FERNO UNIVERSAL RAIL CENTER MOUNT

AutoCAD SHX Text
REPUBLIC

AutoCAD SHX Text
TUBAC FIRE

AutoCAD SHX Text
21-MH1339

AutoCAD SHX Text
PATIENT AREA PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2"=1'



DRAWN BY:

DESCRIPTION:

"LET US SHOW YOU THE MEDIX DIFFERENCE"

WWW.MEDIXAMBULANCE.COM

3008 MOBILE DRIVE

ELKHART, IN 46514

PH:   574-266-0911

FAX: 574-266-6669
SPECIALTY VEHICLES, INC.

Note: Drawings are for reference only, measurements may vary from actual product.

REVISED BY:

DATE CREATED:

DATE REVISED: REVISION:

SCALE:

MEDIX

VANNER
VSS-USB

EXPERIENCE POWER.. EXPERIENCE VANNER

CLASS 2, 5VDC 2. 1A

Dealer:

Approved By:

Customer:

Date:

Sheet

E

 INTERIOR CABINET STORAGE

ITEM HEIGHT WIDTH DEPTH SPECIAL NOTE

AutoCAD SHX Text
I.STANSBURY

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/5/2021

AutoCAD SHX Text
FORD F-350 169" W.B.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ME-153"-72" H.R. TYPE I AMBULANCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
A1

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADJ. SHELF

AutoCAD SHX Text
POWER VENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADJ. SHELF

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
Action Area Light

AutoCAD SHX Text
VANNER INVERTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORAGE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
EVS V-4 HARNESS 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUCTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
O2

AutoCAD SHX Text
O2

AutoCAD SHX Text
SPECIALTY VEHICLES 

AutoCAD SHX Text
HIGH LEFT DOME LOW 

AutoCAD SHX Text
A/C HEAT OFF 

AutoCAD SHX Text
VACUUM  OFF 

AutoCAD SHX Text
INVERTER  OFF 

AutoCAD SHX Text
VENT OFF 

AutoCAD SHX Text
HIGH RIGHT DOME LOW 

AutoCAD SHX Text
AA  LIGHT OFF 

AutoCAD SHX Text
125V

AutoCAD SHX Text
12V

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADJ. SHELF

AutoCAD SHX Text
REPUBLIC

AutoCAD SHX Text
TUBAC FIRE

AutoCAD SHX Text
21-MH1339

AutoCAD SHX Text
STREET SIDE INTERIOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2"=1'

AutoCAD SHX Text
A1

AutoCAD SHX Text
14  "34"

AutoCAD SHX Text
36"

AutoCAD SHX Text
18"

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
14  "34"

AutoCAD SHX Text
37  "34"

AutoCAD SHX Text
15"

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
23  "12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
21"

AutoCAD SHX Text
17  "14"

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
23  "12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
21"

AutoCAD SHX Text
17  "14"

AutoCAD SHX Text
F



DRAWN BY:

DESCRIPTION:

"LET US SHOW YOU THE MEDIX DIFFERENCE"

WWW.MEDIXAMBULANCE.COM

3008 MOBILE DRIVE

ELKHART, IN 46514

PH:   574-266-0911

FAX: 574-266-6669
SPECIALTY VEHICLES, INC.

Note: Drawings are for reference only, measurements may vary from actual product.

REVISED BY:

DATE CREATED:

DATE REVISED: REVISION:

SCALE:

O2

Dealer:

Approved By:

Customer:

Date:

Sheet

F

4" SEATBELT

PLATE LOCATION

WELD SHOP 33 INCHES

NOTE: THIS DIMENSION IS FROM THE BOTTOM OF THE WALL TO THE BOTTOM OF THE 4" PLATE.

CABINET SHOP

NOTE: THE HOLES FOR THE TOP SEATBELT BOLTS ARE 1 

1

4

" FROM THE TOP OF THE SQUAD BENCH TO THE CENTER OF THE SEATBELT BOLT.

NOTE: THE HOLES FOR THE BOTTOM SEATBELT BOLTS ON THE SQUAD BENCH ARE 9 

3

8

" FROM THE TOP OF THE FLOOR TO THE CENTER OF THE BOLT.

NOTE: READ THE

DIMENSIONS FROM RIGHT

TO LEFT AS VIEWED

THE LOCATION OF THE BOTTOM SEATBELT HOLES ARE FROM THE

REAR OF THE SQUAD BENCH TO THE CENTER OF THE 

1

2

" HOLE

BOTTOM PREDRILLED PREDRILLED PREDRILLED

THE LOCATION OF THE TOP SEATBELT HOLES ARE FROM THE REAR

WALL TO THE CENTER OF THE 

1

2

" HOLE

TOP 54" 40 

5

8

" 19"

AutoCAD SHX Text
I.STANSBURY

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/5/2021

AutoCAD SHX Text
FORD F-350 169" W.B.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ME-153"-72" H.R. TYPE I AMBULANCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CARGO NET

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENTRY STEP

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHARPS &WASTE

AutoCAD SHX Text
STAINLESS STEEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
EMERGENCY  RELEASE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EVS V-4 HARNESS 

AutoCAD SHX Text
EVS V-4 HARNESS 

AutoCAD SHX Text
125VAC

AutoCAD SHX Text
REPUBLIC

AutoCAD SHX Text
TUBAC FIRE

AutoCAD SHX Text
21-MH1339

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURB SIDE INTERIOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2"=1'



DRAWN BY:

DESCRIPTION:

"LET US SHOW YOU THE MEDIX DIFFERENCE"

WWW.MEDIXAMBULANCE.COM

3008 MOBILE DRIVE

ELKHART, IN 46514

PH:   574-266-0911

FAX: 574-266-6669
SPECIALTY VEHICLES, INC.

Note: Drawings are for reference only, measurements may vary from actual product.

REVISED BY:

DATE CREATED:

DATE REVISED: REVISION:

SCALE:

CHILD
SAFETY
TECH
SEAT

Dealer:

Approved By:

Customer:

Date:

Sheet

G

 INTERIOR CABINET STORAGE

ITEM HEIGHT WIDTH DEPTH SPECIAL NOTE

AutoCAD SHX Text
I.STANSBURY

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/5/2021

AutoCAD SHX Text
FORD F-350 169" W.B.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ME-153"-72" H.R. TYPE I AMBULANCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAIN CABINETS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PASS- THRU

AutoCAD SHX Text
125VAC

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADJ. SHELF

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALS-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALS-2

AutoCAD SHX Text
12V

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELEC CAB

AutoCAD SHX Text
125VAC

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADJ. SHELF

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALS-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALS-2

AutoCAD SHX Text
12V

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOCKING

AutoCAD SHX Text
INSIDE ACCESS ONLY

AutoCAD SHX Text
REPUBLIC

AutoCAD SHX Text
TUBAC FIRE

AutoCAD SHX Text
21-MH1339

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRONT ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2"=1'

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALS-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
14  "34"

AutoCAD SHX Text
30"

AutoCAD SHX Text
20  "12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALS-2

AutoCAD SHX Text
29  "58"

AutoCAD SHX Text
30"

AutoCAD SHX Text
20  "12"



DRAWN BY:

DESCRIPTION:

"LET US SHOW YOU THE MEDIX DIFFERENCE"

WWW.MEDIXAMBULANCE.COM

3008 MOBILE DRIVE

ELKHART, IN 46514

PH:   574-266-0911

FAX: 574-266-6669
SPECIALTY VEHICLES, INC.

Note: Drawings are for reference only, measurements may vary from actual product.

REVISED BY:

DATE CREATED:

DATE REVISED: REVISION:

SCALE:

TECH
SEAT

ASSIST RAIL

Dealer:

Approved By:

Customer:

Date:

Sheet

H

AutoCAD SHX Text
I.STANSBURY

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/5/2021

AutoCAD SHX Text
FORD F-350 169" W.B.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ME-153"-72" H.R. TYPE I AMBULANCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BACKBOARD STORAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENTRY STEP

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADVANCED LIFE SUPPORT CABINET

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACTION AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
CABINETS

AutoCAD SHX Text
CABINETS

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELECTRICAL COMPT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CABINETS

AutoCAD SHX Text
IV

AutoCAD SHX Text
IV

AutoCAD SHX Text
CARGO NET

AutoCAD SHX Text
LED DOMES

AutoCAD SHX Text
O2

AutoCAD SHX Text
UV-C LIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text
REPUBLIC

AutoCAD SHX Text
TUBAC FIRE

AutoCAD SHX Text
21-MH1339

AutoCAD SHX Text
CEILING LAYOUT

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2"=1'



DRAWN BY:

DESCRIPTION:

"LET US SHOW YOU THE MEDIX DIFFERENCE"

WWW.MEDIXAMBULANCE.COM

3008 MOBILE DRIVE

ELKHART, IN 46514

PH:   574-266-0911

FAX: 574-266-6669
SPECIALTY VEHICLES, INC.

Note: Drawings are for reference only, measurements may vary from actual product.

REVISED BY:

DATE CREATED:

DATE REVISED: REVISION:

SCALE:

A

Dealer:

Approved By:

Customer:

Date:

Sheet

I

 INTERIOR CABINET STORAGE

ITEM HEIGHT WIDTH DEPTH SPECIAL NOTE

AutoCAD SHX Text
I.STANSBURY

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/5/2021

AutoCAD SHX Text
FORD F-350 169" W.B.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ME-153"-72" H.R. TYPE I AMBULANCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EMERGENCY  RELEASE

AutoCAD SHX Text
REAR INDICATOR LIGHTS TURN, BRAKE, TURN

AutoCAD SHX Text
REPUBLIC

AutoCAD SHX Text
TUBAC FIRE

AutoCAD SHX Text
21-MH1339

AutoCAD SHX Text
REAR ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2"=1'

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
6  "14"

AutoCAD SHX Text
40  "34"

AutoCAD SHX Text
7"



DRAWN BY:

DESCRIPTION:

"LET US SHOW YOU THE MEDIX DIFFERENCE"

WWW.MEDIXAMBULANCE.COM

3008 MOBILE DRIVE

ELKHART, IN 46514

PH:   574-266-0911

FAX: 574-266-6669
SPECIALTY VEHICLES, INC.

Note: Drawings are for reference only, measurements may vary from actual product.

REVISED BY:

DATE CREATED:

DATE REVISED: REVISION:

SCALE:

Dealer:

Approved By:

Customer:

Date:

Sheet

J

AutoCAD SHX Text
I.STANSBURY

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/5/2021

AutoCAD SHX Text
FORD F-350 169" W.B.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ME-153"-72" H.R. TYPE I AMBULANCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(2) CUP HOLDERS

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RADIO SLOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SWITCHPANEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
REPUBLIC

AutoCAD SHX Text
TUBAC FIRE

AutoCAD SHX Text
21-MH1339

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRONT CONSOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2"=1'







Confidence to Face Whatever Lies Ahead

Commercial Insurance Proposal

   Tubac Fire District  

   Program term: May 17, 2023 to May 17, 2024 
   Presentation date: April 17, 2022

   Presented by: 

   Bob Rice  
   Insurance Advisor 
   5330 N. La Cholla Blvd    
   Tucson, AZ 85741   
   (520) 784-6696  
  brice@mahoneygroup.com



April 17,2023 

Tubac Fire District 

PO Box 2881

Tubac, AZ  85646-2881 

Dear Chief Guerrero: 

Our insurance coverage proposal is now ready for your review. 

The information in this document is based on data and other information that you provided to our 

team. Please examine it closely to ensure its accuracy and let us know what, if anything, might need 

to be added or changed. 

Your premiums are based on a variety of factors. Please be sure to let us know anytime you’ve hired 

new employees, reduced staff, and acquired or sold a new building or any asset.  

Finally, this proposal is an overview of your insurance program, not a legal contract. Once bound, 

you’ll want to refer to the actual policies for specific terms, conditions, limits and exclusions. 

We thank you for your business and, of course, please contact me with any further questions. 

Thank you, 

 Bob Rice 



      mahoneygroup.com  Confidence to Face Whatever Lies Ahead 

Overview 
The Mahoney Group combines more than 100 years of experience with leading-edge products to 

provide exceptional service and value to our clients. Our offerings include risk management services; 

a comprehensive range of insurance solutions ranging from workers’ compensation to specialty 

coverages, and employee benefits. 

Headquartered in Mesa, Ariz., we are an employee-owned company that has grown from a small, 

family-owned business to now rank in the Top 100 among U.S. brokerages.  

With operations in nine states, we also are part of Assurex Global, a worldwide network of brokers 

whose collective bargaining power and long history with carriers mean you get the best product 

offerings and pricing available. 

The Mahoney Group also is a member of Zywave, a nationwide network of over 400 insurance and 

employee benefits brokerages and third-party administrators focused on enhanced client services 

and helping you promote greater health, wellness and safety in your workforce.    

Our Value Proposition 
Confidence to face whatever lies ahead. 

Our risk management and insurance solutions have been delivering just that to clients nationally and 

globally for decades. We do that in part by helping you drive down claims frequency and severity with 

an action plan based on your risk profile and training needs. We also provide onsite training to help 

you address loss-control issues and to promote a safer work environment for your employees. 

Total Cost of Risk 
Your operations face a myriad of challenges, including safety issues, OSHA compliance burdens, rate 

fluctuations, and increased litigation risks. This challenging environment requires a more 

sophisticated approach to the way you purchase and manage your insurance programs. We 

advocate a Total Cost of Risk, or TCOR, management philosophy that goes far beyond premiums and 

retained losses. Instead, we help you understand your long-term TCOR based on a comprehensive 

review and analysis of your risks to help you regain control over areas that you can, indeed, control. 

Our range of value-added services include: 

Data Analysis 
Data analysis can help you manage and reduce your claims. By analyzing your losses with a 

sophisticated data analysis tool, we can help you develop loss control plans that will focus on areas 

with the highest potential to reduce direct and indirect costs, reduce injuries, reduce administrative 

time, and reduce the risk of loss.  



      mahoneygroup.com  Confidence to Face Whatever Lies Ahead 

Education and Training 
Our onsite risk management and employee seminars are designed to help you increase safety and 

reduce losses, while providing you with a training and team-building opportunity.  

Regulatory and Legislative News 
Staying atop the ever-changing world of property and casualty insurance is a challenge. Our “Risk 

Insights” publication helps you keep up with the latest developments, including how-to articles to 

help you address those issues. 



      mahoneygroup.com  Confidence to Face Whatever Lies Ahead 

Your Team  
The Mahoney Group is committed to building and sustaining long-term partnerships with our clients. 

To that end, we have assigned a team to your account committed to the highest levels of 

professionalism. From initial planning to ongoing implementation, your team will be at your side 

through thick and thin, delivering service with a servant’s heart. 

Advisors 

Bob Rice

Executive Vice President  

brice@mahoneygroup.com  

(520) 784-6696 

Account Management 

Shawna Hetz

Customer Service Support Agent – 

Commercial Lines  

shetz@mahoneygroup.com  

(520) 784-6690

Risk Management 

Mary Wells 

VP of Strategic Management Services   

mwells@mahoneygroup.com  

(480) 214-2734 

Employee Benefits 

Michael Cano

 Employee Benefits Consultant / Tribal    

mcano@mahoneygroup.com  

(520) 784-6668



      mahoneygroup.com  Confidence to Face Whatever Lies Ahead 

Global Alliance 

The Mahoney Group is proud to be a member of Assurex Global, the world’s largest privately held risk 

management and commercial insurance brokerage group. 

Founded in 1954, Columbus, Ohio-based Assurex Global is a unique international corporation that 

marshals the experience, expertise, products and services of the world’s most successful and 

respected independent risk management, commercial insurance and employee benefits 

professionals. 

A hallmark of Assurex Global is the fact that all partners, regardless of city and country, are 

committed to providing an immediate and professional response to other partners’ requests for 

advice on local insurance conditions, assistance with local coverages, and other local services, 

including claims and loss control.  Only one outstanding agency in each geographic market is 

selected to become an Assurex Partner.  

As a member, we meet regularly to share ideas and explore solutions, bringing an unsurpassed level 

of resources, interaction, and cooperation that we can then pass along to our clients. 

Assurex Global is the world’s largest privately held commercial insurance, risk management and 

employee benefits brokerage group. Only the two largest publicly owned brokers generate a larger 

premium volume than Assurex Global. 



      mahoneygroup.com  Confidence to Face Whatever Lies Ahead 

Premium Summary 

 LINES OF COVERAGE 
EXPIRED PREMIUM 

05/17/2022-05/17/2023 

RENEWAL PREMIUM 

05/17/2023-05/17/2024 

VFIS Commerical Package   $41,764 $43,931 

VFIS Accident & Sickness (Option) $0.00 $3,508 

CFC Cyber Liability (Option) $0.00  $3,725.52 

TOTAL:  $41,764 $51,164.52 

Notes/Changes 
VFIS Insurance-Property

 Blanket Content Limit increased from $490,724 to $510,353 per automatic inflation rate of 

four percent  

 Building limits increased per automatic inflation rate of four percent  

o 2227 E Frontage Road-Fire Station: $429,596 to $446,780 

o 2227 E Frontage Road-Fuel Station: $20,811 to $21,643 

o 2227 E Frontage Road-Office: $55,831 to $58,064 

o 2227 E Frontage Road-Crew Quarters: $32,417 to $33,714 

o 2227 E Frontage Road-Dwelling: $108,160 to $112,486 

o 1360 W Frontage Road-Fire Station: $1,171,624 to $1,218,489 

o 333 Camino Josefina-Fire Station: $4,322,787 to $4,495,698 

o 149 Ruta Camaron Road-Fire Station: $4,322,787 to $4,495,698 

o 457 Camino Agosto-Building: $62,400 to $64,896 

VFIS Insurance-General Liability 

 Increased Fire and other non-medical Runs from 545 to 727 

 Decreased Emergency medical or first responder medical Run from 1,061 to 1,011  

VFIS Insurance-Auto

 33 total vehicles 

VFIS Insurance-Accident & Sickness 

 Can alter the proposal to meet a given budget amount  

CFC -Cyber Liability  

 Non-Admitted Carrier  

 $3,110.00 plus taxes & fees $3,725.52 



      mahoneygroup.com  Confidence to Face Whatever Lies Ahead 

Payment Plans/Terms 
VFIS Package- Agency Bill-Payments made directly to The Mahoney Group
 Deposit of $10,998 
 3 Quarterly Installments of $10,978 

VFIS Accident & Sickness- Agency Bill-Payments made directly to The Mahoney Group
 Annual Payment or Semi-Annual  

CFC-Cyber Liability Agency Bill-Payments made directly to The Mahoney Group
 Annual Payment of 3,752.52  

Subjectivities 
VFIS Package 
 Signed Acord Application  

VFIS Accident & Sickness 
 Supplemental Application  

CFC-Cyber Liability
 Confirmation that the insured operates on a segregated IT infrastructure to the municipality 
 Please provide name, position, email and telephone number for the designated contact to 

receive security related alerts and targeted threat intelligence within 15 days of binding 
 Satisfactory confirmation that the client has downloaded & registered the incident response 

mobile app, details of which can be found on the first page of the attached quote within 30 
days of binding 



      mahoneygroup.com  Confidence to Face Whatever Lies Ahead 

Additional Coverage Options 
The coverage lines listed here are not included in your program. While not exhaustive, any of the 

coverages seen here can be purchased for an additional premium charge. 

 Increase Forgery from $100,000 to $250,000 and Public Employee Dishonesty from $100,000 

to $250,000-Estimated Annual Premium $549  

 Increase Forgery from $100,000 to $250,000 and Public Employee Dishonesty from $100,000 

to $500,000-Estimated Annual Premium $625  

 Increase excess limits from $8,000,000 per occurrence/$16,000,000 per aggregate to 

$10,000,000 per occurrence/$20,000,000 per aggregate -Estimated Annual Premium $7,288 

 Aviation Coverage, including Drones  

 Earthquake 

 Electronic Data Liability 

 Flood Coverage 

 Foreign / International Coverage 

 Group Health  

 Kidnap & Ransom 

 Mold & Fungus 

 Pollution Insurance   

 Terrorism Coverage 

 Travel Accident 



 
 
 

 
 
 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 

AN ACCIDENT & SICKNESS INSURANCE PROPOSAL 
PREPARED FOR: 

 
 

TUBAC FIRE DISTRICT 

PO BOX 2881 
TUBAC, AZ  85646-0000 

      
 

 
 PRESENTED BY: M & O AGENCIES INC  
  5330 N LACHOLLA BOULEVARD 
  TUCSON, AZ 85741-3815 

        
 
 
 DATE PREPARED: March 22, 2023 

 
 

This proposal is valid for 90 days. 



  
Prepared For:  TUBAC FIRE DISTRICT 
 

 VOLUNTEER BASIC BENEFITS Quote Number: 232133              

Loss of Life Benefits      

 Accidental Death Benefit Amount ....................................................................... $20,000             

 Seat Belt Benefit Amount ..................................................................................... $5,000             

 Safety Vest Benefit Amount ................................................................................. $5,000             

 Military Death Benefit Amount ............................................................................. $15,000             

 Illness Loss of Life Benefit Amount..................................................................... $20,000             

 Dependent Child & Education Benefit Amount ........... Per Dependent Child $30,000             

 Spousal Support & Education Benefit Amount ................................................. $15,000             

 Memorial Benefit Amount ..................................................................................... $5,000             

 Dependent Elder Benefit Amount .................................Per Dependent Elder $5,000             

 Repatriation Benefit Amount................................................................................ $2,500             

Lump Sum Living Benefits     

 Accidental Dismemberment & Paralysis Benefit..................... Principal Sum $20,000             

 Vision Impairment Benefit .......................................................... Principal Sum $20,000             

 Injury Permanent Impairment Benefit ....................................... Principal Sum $20,000             

 Heart Permanent Impairment Benefit ....................................... Principal Sum $20,000             

 Illness Permanent Impairment Benefit ..................................... Principal Sum $20,000             

 Cosmetic Disfigurement Resulting from Burns  Benefit .......... Principal Sum $20,000             

 HIV Positive Lump Sum Living Benefit..................................... Principal Sum $20,000             

Weekly Income Benefits     

 Total Disability Benefit Weekly Amount (first 28 days) .................................... $100             

 Total Disability Benefit Maximum Weekly Amount (after 28 days) ................ $100             

 Total Disability Minimum Weekly Amount.......................................................... $25             

 Partial Disability is equal to 50% of Total Disability Benefit Limit    

Occupational Retraining Benefit.......................................... Maximum Amount $20,000             

Weekly Injury Permanent Impairment (Lifetime) Benefit...........................  Included             

Medical Expense Benefits     

 Benefits Paid: Excess of Workers' Comp      

 Medical Expense Benefit ...................................................... Maximum Amount $2,500             

 Cosmetic Plastic Surgery Benefit ........................................ Maximum Amount $25,000             

 Post-Traumatic Stress Disorder Benefit ............................. Maximum Amount $25,000             

 Critical Incident Stress Management Benefit..................... Maximum Amount $25,000             

 Family Expense Benefit Amount ........................................................... Per Day $100             

 Family Bereavement & Trauma Counseling Benefit..................... Per Person $1,000             

Transition Benefit ..............................................................................  Not Included             

Felonious Assault Benefit....................................................... Amount $25,000             

Home Alteration & Vehicle Modification Benefit............Maximum Amount $50,000             

Volunteer Basic Premium for 1 Year  $992             



            Prepared For:  TUBAC FIRE DISTRICT 
 

VOLUNTEER OPTIONAL BENEFITS    Quote Number:  232133             

                                                                                 (ANNUAL PREMIUM SHOWN) Limit Premium                         

 Weekly Hospital Benefit Amount........................................................................  Not Incl.                               

 First Week Total Disability Benefit Amount.......................................................  Not Incl.                               

 Coordinated 28 Day Total Disability Benefit Amount ......................................  Not Incl.                               

 Weekly Injury Permanent Impairment COLA....................................................  Not Incl.                               

 Extended Total Disability Benefit........................................................................  Not Incl.                               

 Long-Term Total Disability Benefit .....................................................................  Not Incl.                               

 Long-Term Total Disability COLA .......................................................................  Not Incl.                               

 Extra Expense Benefit                      

        Extra Expense Benefit Monthly Amount ....................................................  Not Incl.                

        Extra Expense Benefit Maximum Amount.................................................  Not Incl.                

 24-Hour Accident Benefit – Injury Only..............................................................  Not Incl.                               

 Off-Duty Accident Benefit – Injury Only .............................................................  $10,000 $14                         

 Organized Team Sports Benefit Rider       

 Accidental Death & Dismemberment Benefit Amount* ...........................  Not Incl.                               

 Total Disability Benefit Maximum Weekly Amount* .................................  Not Incl.                               

 Medical Expense Benefit Maximum Amount* ...........................................  Not Incl.                               

 Policy Amendment Rider ....................................................................................  Not Incl.                               

 

* Since these benefits are based on exposures (e.g. number of persons, type of activity, type of league) premium may vary annually based on differences in exposure. 

Please Note: Coverage provided under the optional 24-Hour / Off-Duty AD&D benefit requires a Roster listing the covered members. 
 
 

 

Total Volunteer Basic and Optional:     

     Premium for 1 Year $1,006             

 
This proposal is only a brief description of the coverage(s) availab le under policy series V50000. The policy contains reductions, limitations, e xclusions and 
termination provisions. Full details of the coverage are contained in the policy. If there are any conflicts between this proposal and the policy, the policy shall 
govern. The policy is underwritten by National Union Fire Insurance Company of Pittsburgh, Pa., a Pennsylvania domiciled insu rance company, with its principa l  
place of business at 1271 Ave of the Americas, FL 37, New York, NY 10020-1304. The company is currently authorized to transact business in all states and the 
District of Columbia and is identified by NAIC No. 19445. 

 
     



 Prepared For:  TUBAC FIRE DISTRICT  
 

 CAREER BASIC BENEFITS Quote Number: 232133             

Loss of Life Benefits      
 Accidental Death Benefit Amount .......................................................................  $20,000             

 Seat Belt Benefit Amount ....................................................................................  $5,000             

 Safety Vest Benefit Amount ................................................................................  $5,000             

 Military Death Benefit Amount ............................................................................  $15,000             

 Illness Loss of Life Benefit Amount ....................................................................  $20,000             

 Dependent Child & Education Benefit Amount .......... Per Dependent Child $30,000             

 Spousal Support & Education Benefit Amount ................................................  $15,000             

 Memorial Benefit Amount ....................................................................................  $5,000             

 Dependent Elder Benefit Amount ................................Per Dependent Elder $5,000             

 Repatriation Benefit Amount...............................................................................  $2,500             

Lump Sum Living Benefits     

 Accidental Dismemberment & Paralysis Benefit .....................Principal Sum $20,000             

 Vision Impairment Benefit ...........................................................Principal Sum $20,000             

 Injury Permanent Impairment Benefit........................................Principal Sum $20,000             

 Heart Permanent Impairment Benefit........................................Principal Sum $20,000             

 Illness Permanent Impairment Benefit ......................................Principal Sum $20,000             

 Cosmetic Disfigurement Resulting from Burns  Benefit...........Principal Sum $20,000             

 HIV Positive Lump Sum Living Benefit .....................................Principal Sum $20,000             

Weekly Income Benefits     

 Total Disability Benefit Weekly Amount (first 28 days)....................................  $100             

 Total Disability Benefit Maximum Weekly Amount (after 28 days) ................  $100             

 Total Disability Minimum Weekly Benefit Amount ............................................  $25             

 Partial Disability is equal to 50% of Total Disability Benefit Limit    

Occupational Retraining Benefit ............................... Maximum Amount $20,000             

Weekly Injury Permanent Impairment (Lifetime) Benefit..........................  Not Included             

Medical Expense Benefits     

 Benefits Paid:  Excess of Workers' Comp    

 Medical Expense Benefit ..................................................... Maximum Amount $2,500             

 Cosmetic Plastic Surgery Benefit ....................................... Maximum Amount $25,000             

 Post-Traumatic Stress Disorder Benefit ............................ Maximum Amount $25,000             

 Critical Incident Stress Management Benefit .................... Maximum Amount $25,000             

 Family Expense Benefit Amount........................................................... Per Day $100             

 Family Bereavement & Trauma Counseling Benefit ....................Per Person $1,000             

Transition Benefit .............................................................................  Not Included             

Felonious Assault Benefit....................................................... Amount $25,000             

Home Alteration & Vehicle Modification Benefit........... Maximum Amount $50,000             

Career Basic Premium for 1 Year $2,404             



             Prepared For:  TUBAC FIRE DISTRICT 
 

CAREER OPTIONAL BENEFITS  Quote Number: 232133             

                                                                          (ANNUAL PREMIUM SHOWN) Limit Premium                         

 Weekly Hospital Benefit Amount........................................................................  Not Incl.                               

 First Week Total Disability Benefit Amount.......................................................  Not Incl.                               

 Coordinated 28 Day Total Disability Benefit Amount ......................................  Not Incl.                               

 24-Hour Accident Benefit – Injury Only..............................................................  Not Incl.                               

 Off-Duty Accident Benefit – Injury Only .............................................................  $10,000 $98                         

 Organized Team Sports Benefit Rider       

 Accidental Death & Dismemberment Benefit Amount* ...........................  Not Incl.                               

 Total Disability Benefit Maximum Weekly Amount* .................................  Not Incl.                               

 Medical Expense Benefit Maximum Amount* ...........................................  Not Incl.                               

 
* Since these benefits are based on exposures (e.g. number of persons, type of activity, type of league) premium may vary annually based on differences in exposure. 

Please Note: Coverage provided under the optional 24-Hour / Off-Duty AD&D benefit requires a Roster listing the covered members. 
 

Total Career Basic and Optional     

     Premium for 1 Year $2,502             

 

Grand Total Volunteer and Career Premium $3,508             

 
This proposal is only a brief description of the coverage(s) availab le under policy series V50000. The policy contains reductions, limitations, exclusions and 
termination provisions. Full details of the coverage are contained in the policy. If there are any conflicts between this pro posal and the policy, the policy shall 
govern. The policy is underwritten by National Union Fire Insurance Company of Pittsburgh, Pa., a Pennsylvania domiciled insurance company, with its principa l  
place of business at 1271 Ave of the Americas, FL 37, New York, NY 10020-1304. The company is currently authorized to transact business in all states and the 
District of Columbia and is identified by NAIC No. 19445. 

 

MEMBER FAMILY ASSISTANCE PROGRAM - $388.08     



 

 

NATIONAL UNION FIRE INSURANCE COMPANY OF PITTSBURGH, PA. 
Executive Offices: 1271 Ave of the Americas, FL 37, New York, NY 10020-1304 

 (212) 458-5000 
(a capital stock company, herein referred to as the Company) 

 

APPLICATION FOR BLANKET ACCIDENT AND SICKNESS INSURANCE 
 

Application for a plan of accident and sickness is hereby made by:   TUBAC FIRE DISTRICT 

                                             (Name of Policyholder) 

 

to National Union Fire Insurance Company of Pittsburgh, Pa. for coverage under Blanket Accident and Sickness Master Policy as described in Quote-Number  
________________  a copy of which is attached to and made a part of this application. 
 

Policy Effective Date:  at 12:01 A.M. in your time zone  Customer Number: C00506 
 

Policy Termination Date: 
  

at 12:01 A.M. in your time zone 
   

      

Payment Plans: 1 Year – Annual 

1 Year – Semi-Annual ($1,500 policy minimum)  

   

 

The following changes in limits or coverage from the above mentioned Quote-Number are hereby requested: 

 

 
 

The above named entity hereby acknowledges that the changes shown above may result in a change of premium from that which was  previously quoted. 
 

The above named entity hereby understands that this application for accident and sickness coverage is subject to approval of the Company. 
 

General Fraud Warning:  Any person who knowingly and with intent to defraud any insurance company or other person files  an application for insurance or statement of claim 

containing any materially false information or conceals, for the purpose of misleading, information concerning any fact mater ial thereto, commits a fraudulent act, which is a 
crime, and may subject such person to criminal and civil penalties. 

 

      
 
   

  (Signed by Authorized Representative) 

   
   

  (T itle of Authorized Representative) 
   
   

Signed by Licensed Resident Agent 
(Where Required by law) 

 (Date) 

 

V50002NUFIC VFIS 



 
1 

 

Why Accident and Sickness Coverage? 
 

 

The VFIS Accident and Sickness policies provide insurance protection to 
help with the expenses of an unexpected injury or illness a member may 

suffer as a result of participation in Covered Activities of emergency 

service work. These expenses can be from medical expenses, lost 
income due to disability, or other financial losses which affect a member 

or their family. 

 
The National Fire Protection Association reported 60,825 firefighter 

injuries occurred in the line of duty in 2019¹. Despite this statistic many 

emergency service members continue to believe that accidents only 
happen to others or that Workers’ Compensation will meet all their 

financial needs in the event of injury, illness or even death. This is 

simply not always the case. 
 

Even in states with generous Workers’ Compensation benefits, there can 

be gaps in coverage. Common gaps are caused by waiting and 
retroactive periods, maximum disability income benefit limits, and pre-

existing condition limitations such as heart or circulatory malfunction. In 

addition, benefits for fundraising events, junior members, auxiliary 
members, and trustees or directors may not be covered. 

 

For over 50 years, VFIS has been offering insurance coverage which has 

helped to insure emergency service personnel fill the coverage gaps for 
the financial impact of unexpected illness or injury while performing 

duties on behalf of the Emergency Service Organization. As the hazards 

of emergency service work have changed and evolved, our program has 
also evolved to keep pace with them. That’s why VFIS is America’s 

leading provider of insurance products to Emergency Service 

Organizations and is widely considered the premier provider of accident 
and sickness insurance protection throughout the United States and 

Canada. 

 
 
¹ National Fire Protection Association Journal, November 2020. 

Preface 
 

 

This proposal is only a brief description of the coverage(s) available 
under policy series V50000. The policy contains reductions, limitations, 

exclusions and termination provisions. Full details of the coverage are 

contained in the policy. If there are any conflicts between this proposal 
and the policy, the policy shall govern. The policy is underwritten by 

National Union Fire Insurance Company of Pittsburgh, Pa., a 

Pennsylvania domiciled insurance company, with its principal place of 
business at 1271 Ave of the Americas, FL 37, New York, NY 10020-1304. 

The company is currently authorized to transact business in all states 

and the District of Columbia and is identified by NAIC No. 19445. 
 

We, us, or ours in this proposal refers to National Union Fire Insurance 

Company of Pittsburgh, Pa. 
 

All benefits described in this proposal must arise out of and result from 

an Insured Person’s participation in a Covered Activity. The term 
“member” used throughout this proposal refers to an Insured Person. 

 

Throughout this proposal, key items such as policy definitions and 
benefit tables are included in text boxes for your ease of reference.  

Capitalized terms are defined in the policy. The actual policy providing 

benefits will be issued, and will contain reductions, limitations, 
exclusions, and termination provisions. 

 

 

Coverage may vary by state. Refer to policy for specific coverage  
language and benefit amounts.   

 



 

2 

 

 

Risk Management 
 

 

Emergency Service Organizations are faced with many challenges. They 
are responsible for protecting lives and property in an ever changing 

environment. Much time is spent dealing with complex financial and legal 

aspects of your organization. 
 

You have requested this Accident and Sickness insurance proposal from 

VFIS to help cover your members. Although well known for our 
specialized insurance products, VFIS is equally recognized as the 

national leader in providing risk management services to help our clients  

identify and reduce their exposure to loss. 
 

Your most important responsibility extends to the health and safety of 

your personnel. As part of VFIS’s commitment to help you with this 
responsibility, we have developed a comprehensive series of training and 

educational programs that are provided at little or no cost to clients who 

purchase our insurance products. While insurance coverage is designed 
to transfer financial responsibility of loss, it is just as important that we 

offer resources to help you potentially prevent a loss from occurring or if 

it does occur, limit its impact.  
 

Following are a few of the education and training programs that VFIS 

provides, which may be useful to help protect your personnel. We would 
be happy to help you implement any of these programs. Please contact 

VFIS to get started.  

 

We are here to help. 

 
 

 

VFIS Patient Handling addresses proper EMS patient movement, 
partner pairing, maximum unassisted lifting weights and limitations of 

equipment. The program includes an instructor’s guide, participant 

manual, a CD-ROM and video. This program will help your organization 
provide training to minimize strains and sprains while lifting.  

 

The VFIS Infectious Disease Program is available to assist you in the 
development and implementation of your administrative and operational 

infection control program. The program includes an instructor’s guide 

and participant manual.  
 

The VFIS Emergency Vehicle Driver Training Program is available to 

provide the basis for your driver training program. The program includes 
an instructor’s guide, participant manual, CD-ROM for PowerPoint, and 

competency course video. VFIS Risk Control Communiqués on 

Intersections, Response Speed, and Warning Devices are also available 
to help your organization develop standard operating guidelines. 

 

As a VFIS client, you may request these training resources which are 
available at no charge. 

 

Visit vfis.com today. 



 

3 

 

 

Who is Covered Under the Accident and Sickness Program? 
 

Coverage is provided for all membership classes including auxiliary 

members, junior members, members-in-training, officers, directors, 
trustees and administrative personnel. 

 

Non-member volunteers asked by the organization to help in non-
emergency events (e.g. fundraising) are also covered. 

 

Deputized bystanders are covered at the time of the emergency while 
participating in the emergency. 

 

Benefits do not change based on membership class.  For example, junior 
members are entitled to the same benefits as fully trained emergency 

response volunteers. 

 
Benefits are also available for career members for an additional 

premium. 

 

Insured Person(s) –  means  any offic ially des ignated member of the 
Policyholder and/or Participating Organization while acting as: 
 

(1) a volunteer member for the Policyholder and/or Participating 
Organization; 

(2) any junior member or member in training; 

(3) any commissioner, director, trustee or other similar posi ti on assoc iat ed  
with the Policyholder and/or Participating Organization; 

(4) any bystander deputized at the time of the emergency by an official of the  

Policyholder and/or Participating Organization to ass is t in an 
emergency, but only during the actual emergency; 

(5) any auxiliary member; 

(6) any non-member who is requested to pa rt ic ipate  by t he  a ux ili ary o r  
Policyholder and/or Participating Organization; 

(7) any member who receives remuneration for on-call duty or out  of po cke t 
expenses and 

(8) Administrative Personnel; 
 

Subject to the following: 
 

A n Insured Person will not inc lude a Paid Employee while acting wi t h in  t he 
scope of his or her employment unless the policy is spec ifi call y e ndorsed t o  

provide coverage for career members, except for Administrative Personnel. 

 
Paid Employee(s) –  means a person who receives compensation and works an 
average of 25  hours  or more per week for the Policyholder and/or 

Participating Organization. The time frame used to determine t he a ve rage 

hours  or the salaried schedule will be the same time frame used to calculate the 
Average Weekly Wage. Paid Employee does not include Administ rative 

Personnel. 

When Does Coverage Apply? 
 

Coverage is provided when a member performs any normal duty of the 

emergency service organization when under the direction of an officer, 
whether it is an emergency or non-emergency duty. 
 

Travel to and from these duties is covered. 
 

Good Samaritan Acts are also covered. 
 

Most non-league sport activities held on behalf of and for the benefit of 

the department are covered. We do not provide benefits for football, 

hockey, lacrosse, soccer, boxing events, rugby or martial arts. 
 

League Sports can be covered but will require a separate rider 

purchased in addition to the base policy. 
 

Covered A ctivity – means any activity, including travel directl y t o  a nd  from 

such activity, which is a normal duty of an Insured Person, inc luding any: 

(1) emergency response for fire suppression a nd  rescue  o r  e me rgency 
medical activity; 

(2) training exercise which s imulates an emergency and where active physical 

participation is required; 
(3) Firematic Events or Contests; 

(4) c lass room training; 

(5) fund-raising activities including athletic activities solely for the purpose o f 
rais ing funds for the Policyholder and/or Participating Organization or 

other non-profit organization when such fund-raising is performe d a s  a n  
ac tivity of the Policyholder and/or Participating Organization, excep t 

any form of football, hockey, lacrosse, soccer, boxing, rugby o r  ma rti al  

arts ;  
(6) offic ial functions attended primarily by members  o f t he Policyholder 

and/or Participating Organization for which the purpose is t o  fu rther  

the bus iness  of the Policyholder and/or Participating Organization 
(i.e. ins tallation dinners, banquets, etc.);  

(7) offic ial conventions, conferences or meetings of emergency fire, rescue or  

medical personnel attended by the Insured Person on behalf of the 
Policyholder and/or Participating Organization inc luding personal 

travel and activities related to attending such convention, conference  o r  
meeting;  

(8) partic ipation in pre-approved covered athletic  events  or programs 

conducted on the premises of the Policyholder and/or  Participat ing 
Organization; 

(9) authorized public safety education events; and 

(10) administrative or maintenance duties. 
Under no c ircumstances is there coverage for participation in the athletic  

events listed in Exclusion number 9 . 
 

The Covered Activity must be performed at the direc tion, or with the 
knowledge, of an officer of the Policyholder and/or Participating 

Organization, unless immediate action is required of the Insured Person a t  
the scene of an emergency not on behalf of the Policyholder and/or 

Participating Organization or any other organization. 



 

4 

 

 

DEATH BENEFITS 
 

Accidental Death or Illness Loss of Life 

We will pay a Death Benefit when a member dies as a result of an Injury 
or Illness that occurs:   

a. during a specific Covered Activity; or 

b. due to a covered Injury or Illness; or 

c. due to a heart attack or stroke within 48 hours of an emergency 
response or training exercise requiring active physical 

participation. 
 

Injury(ies) –  means accidental bodily inju ry sus t ained by t he Insured 

Person: 
(1) during and resulting from an Insured Person's partic ipation in a 

specific Covered Activity while coverage under this policy is in force a s  
to the Insured Person; 

(2) which directly (independent of s ickness, disease, mental i ncapac it y o r  

any other cause) causes a loss to the Insured Person; and 
(3) which is not otherwise defined as an Illness. 

 

The term Injury, for the purposes of this policy, wi l l  no t i nc lude  human 
immunodeficiency virus (HIV), acquired immune deficiency syndrome (AIDS) 

or A IDS related complex (ARC), or any heart or c irculatory malfunction. 

 
Illness(es) –  means  any disease, s ickness , or infec tion of an Insured 

Person while coverage under this  policy is  in force as  to the Insured 
Person. The Illness must:  

(1) manifest itself during a specific Covered Activity with the result 

that the Insured Person interrupts his or her partic ipat ion  i n  
such Covered Activity in order to receive immediate Medical 

Treatment; or 

(2) directly result from participation in a Covered Activity and also result in 
the Insured Person receiving Medical Treatment  within 48 hours of 

participation in such Covered Activity. The requirement that Medical 

Treatment  be received within 48 hours is waived for Infectious 
Diseases; or 

(3) Illness also includes the Mandatory Quarantine of an Insured 
Person.   

 

No Illness Loss of Life Benefit will be payable if an Accidental Death 
Benefit is payable under the policy, or if, as a direct result of 

participation in the same Covered Activity, an HIV Positive Benefit was 

paid to the member under the policy. 

 
 
Seat Belt Benefit 

We will pay an additional amount if a member was wearing a properly 

fastened seat belt at the time of a motor vehicle accident which caused 

death.  
 
Safety Vest Benefit 

We will pay an additional amount if a member was wearing an approved 

safety vest and death occurs when struck as a pedestrian at a motor 
vehicle accident or while directing traffic.  

 
Military Death Benefit 

We will pay a Death Benefit if a Covered Person’s death occurs due to 

bodily injury while serving in the United States Military or their 
respective Guard or Reserve units.  Death must occur within 12 months. 

 

Covered Person - means  all members  who are lis ted on the Policyholder 

and/or Participating Organization’s roster. The roster will be maintained a nd  
periodically updated by the Policyholder and/or Participating Organizat ion. 

The ros ter will be kept on file by the Policyholder and/or Participating 
Organization. 

 

Dependent Child And Education Benefit 

If a Death Benefit is payable, We will pay an additional benefit for each 

surviving Dependent Child which can be used for anything at the payee’s 
discretion, including costs for education, living expenses, grief 
counseling, etc. 

 

Dependent Child - means  any unmarried child of the Insured Person who 

was  dependent upon the Insured Person and either claimed on t he  Insured 

Person’s most recent or final federal tax return, or was  dependent as a  re su lt 
of a legally enforceable agreement filed with a court or o ther a dmin is trat ive 

body. 

 

Spousal Support And Education Benefit 

If a Death Benefit is payable, We will pay an additional benefit to the 

surviving spouse of a married member. This benefit can be used for 
anything at the spouse’s discretion including education, final expenses, 

grief counseling, etc. 

  



 

5 

 

 

 
 

Memorial Benefit  
 

If a Death Benefit is payable, then the deceased member’s department 
will receive an additional lump sum benefit. This benefit can be used for 

anything at the department’s discretion, such as final expenses incurred 

by the department, establishing a memorial or trust fund or financial 
assistance to beneficiaries.  This benefit is payable for each such death. 

 

Dependent Elder Benefit 
If a Death Benefit is payable, We will pay a benefit for each surviving 
Dependent Elder.  

 

Dependent Elder - means  any parent, parent-in-law, grandparent, 

grandparent-in-law, great grandparent or gre at  g randparent -in -law o f t he  
Insured Person who was  dependent upon the Insured Person and c laimed on 

the Insured Person's final federal tax return. 

 
Repatriation Benefit 

If a Death Benefit is payable, We will pay the expense to transport the 
deceased member when their body is beyond a 30 mile radius from the ir  

current primary residence at the time of death resulting from a Covered 

Activity. 

LUMP SUM LIVING BENEFITS 
 

Accidental Dismemberment And Paralysis Benefit 

 
If a member sustains a covered Injury and suffers dismemberment or 

paralysis, a lump sum benefit will be payable based on the extent of the 

Injury. 
 

Accidental Dismemberment and Paralysis Chart 

 
                    % of Principal 

       For Loss of:                                           Sum Payable 

Quadriplegia..................................................... 200% 
Paraplegia ....................................................... 200% 
Hemiplegia ...................................................... 200% 
Uniplegia ......................................................... 100% 
Both Hands or Both Feet ..................................... 100% 
One Hand and One Foot ...................................... 100% 
Entire Sight of Both Eyes ..................................... 100% 

One Hand and Entire Sight of One Eye .................... 100% 
One Foot and Entire Sight of One Eye ..................... 100% 
Speech and/or Hearing  ...................................... 100% 
One Arm or One Leg........................................... 100% 
One Hand or One Foot .......................................... 50% 
Entire Sight of One Eye ......................................... 50% 

Both Thumbs  ..................................................... 50% 
One Thumb ........................................................ 25% 
Each Joint of a Finger or Toe .................................. 10% 



 

6 

 

 

Vision Impairment Benefit 
 

If a member sustains a covered Injury which causes permanent vision 

impairment, a lump sum will be payable to the member based on the 
extent of the Injury. This chart shall apply separately to each eye. 

 

Vision Impairment Chart 
 

 % of Vision Impairment Benefit 

Vision Impairment Payable Per Each Eye 

 20/20 ................................................................ 0.00% 
 20/30 ................................................................ 2.75% 

 20/40 ................................................................ 5.50% 

 20/50 ................................................................ 8.25% 
 20/60 .............................................................. 11.00% 

 20/80 .............................................................. 16.50% 

 20/100............................................................. 22.00% 
 20/120............................................................. 28.00% 

 20/150............................................................. 36.00% 

 20/180............................................................. 44.50% 
 20/200 or poorer .............................................. 50.00% 

 

In no event will benefits be paid for both Vision Impairment Benefit and 
Accidental Dismemberment and Paralysis Benefit for an Injury to the 

same eye sustained while participating in the same Covered Activity. 

 
Permanent Damage - means with reference to the eyes, irreparabl e Injury  

which results in permanently impaired vision, but not in total and irrecoverabl e 
loss of s ight. 

Injury Permanent Impairment Benefit 
 

A lump sum benefit will be paid to any member who suffers a Permanent 

Impairment as a result of an Injury. An impairment value is assigned 
after the member has reached maximum medical rehabilitation, and the 

member’s medical condition is considered stable or non-progressive.  

 
To calculate the benefit paid, the Physician uses the “Guides to the 

Evaluation of Permanent Impairment” published by the American Medical 

Association to determine the impairment rating.  
 

If a member has an Injury resulting in Quadriplegia, Paraplegia or 

Hemiplegia, 200% of the Principal Sum is payable. Uniplegia will be paid 
at 100% of the Principal Sum.  

 

Benefits for an Injury due to a Permanent Impairment paid under this 
provision will be in addition to any Accidental Dismemberment Benefit or 

Vision Impairment Benefit paid or payable under the policy. However, in 

no event will the total amount of benefits payable as a result of any one 
accident exceed 100% of the largest Principal Sum shown in the 

Schedule for these benefits, unless: 

 
(1) the Permanent Impairment rating for an Injury is 90% or higher 

in which case 125% of the Principal Sum is payable, or  

(2) an Injury resulting in Quadriplegia, Paraplegia or Hemiplegia, in 
which case 200% of the Principal Sum is payable. 

 

Permanent Impairment  - means a medical condition which i s  a  phys ica l o r  

func tional abnormality or loss, which remains  a ft er  t he maximum med ical 
rehabilitation has been achieved, and wh i ch i s  c ons i de red  s tab le o r  non -

progressive by the Physician at the time an evaluation is made. 
 

Physician(s) –  means any duly licensed medical practitioner: 

(1) who is  ac ting within the scope of his or her license; and  
(2) who is  not the Insured Person or an Immediate Family Member. 



 

7 

 

 

Heart Permanent Impairment Benefit 
 

This lump sum benefit is payable if a member suffers a Heart Permanent 
Impairment which results in at least 26 weeks of Total Disability. 

 
Heart Permanent Impairment Benefit Chart 

   

Left Ventricular Ejection 
Fraction 

New York Heart 
Association 

Functional 

Classif ication 

Heart Permanent 
Impairment 

Benef it Due 

26 to 30% function Class II 25% 

26 to 30% function Class III or IV 50% 

21 to 25% function Class II or III 50% 

21 to 25% function Class IV 75% 
Less than 21% function Class II or III 75% 

Less than 21% function Class IV        100% 
 

The benefit due is calculated by multiplying the benefit percentage due 
and the Principal Sum. The benefit is further modified by the member's 

age on the date of the heart impairment, according to the following 

table: 

• Age 40 or less – 125% of the amount payable 

• Age 41 to 65 –   75% of the amount payable 

• Age 66 or over –   50% of the amount payable 

 

No benefit is payable if a member had a pre-existing Left Ventricular 

Ejection Fraction of 35% or lower prior to the Covered Activity causing 
the Heart Permanent Impairment. 

 
Heart Permanent Impairment  - means  a medical condition which is  a 

phys ical and functional abnormality or loss as a consequence o f a n  Insured 

Person sus taining a heart impairment as a result o f a  Covered A ct ivit y, 
resulting in: 

(1) a “Left V entricular Ejection Fraction” of 30% or less; and  
(2) a “New York Heart Association Functional Classification” of I I, I II, or IV; 

and 

(3) at least 26 weeks of Total Disability. 
 

 

Left Ventricular Ejection Fraction - means a c linically used measure of t he 

percentage of blood the heart is able to eject from the left ventricle. 

 

New York Heart Association Functional Classif ication is  a s tandard 

measurement of how heart function affects activities of daily living. B el ow i s  a  
summary of the New York Heart Association C lassification: 

I . No symptoms and no limitation in ordinary physical activity. 

II . Mild symptoms and slight limitation during ordinary activity. C omfortable at 
res t. 

III. Marked limitation in activity due to symptoms, e v en duri ng  l ess-t han-

ordinary activity. Comfortable only at rest. 
IV . Severe limitations. Experiences symptoms even while at rest. 

 
Illness Permanent Impairment Benefit 

 

If an Illness to a member results in 260 weeks of Total Disability 
Benefits, the following percentage of the Illness Permanent Impairment 

Benefit shown in the schedule will be payable: 

 
• 50% If the member is unable to return to their occupation. 

• 75% If the member is unable to return to any Gainful 

Occupation. 
• 125% If the member has been approved or, if not eligible, 

otherwise meets the eligibility criteria for Social Security 

disability benefits. 
 

If a member has received a Heart Permanent Impairment Benefit and 

later becomes eligible for payment under this benefit for the same 
condition, the amount payable under this benefit is reduced by the 

amount previously paid under the Heart Permanent Impairment Benefit. 

The percentages shown above will also apply to the total amount 
payable. 



 

8 

 

 

Cosmetic Disfigurement Resulting from Burns Benefit 
 

If a member suffers a cosmetic disfigurement due to a burn classified as 

a full thickness or third degree burn, as a result of an Injury, We will 
provide a lump sum benefit to the member. 

 

The payment amount is based on the amount of surface area and body 
part burned. Burns to body parts that are more visible will result in a 

higher benefit than burns occurring to less visible body parts.  
 

Cosmetic Burn Chart 

 
 

 
Body Part 

 
 

Area  
Classif ication 

Maximum 
Allowable % 

for Area 
Surface 

Burned 

Maximum % of  
Cosmetic 

Disf igurement 
from Burns 

Principal Sum  

Face, Neck, Head        11  9 .0% 100% 

Hand and Forearm (Right or 

Left) 5  4 .5% 22.5% 

Upper Arm (Right or Left) 
3  4 .5% 13.5% 

Torso (Front or back) 
2      18 .0% 36.0% 

Thigh (Right or Left) 
1  9 .0%  9 .0% 

Lower Leg (Below Knee) 

(Right or Left) 3  9 .0% 27.0% 

 

Example using the Cosmetic Burn Chart   

(a) if 100% of the surface of the right hand and forearm were burned the 

benefit would be 5  x 4 .5% = 22.5% of the Cosmetic D is figurement 

Resulting from Burns Principal Sum payable; or 

(b) if 50% of surface of the right hand and fo re arm we re burned t he  

benefit would be 5  x 2 .25% (which is 50% of 4 .5) = 11.25% o f t he  
C osmetic Disfigurement Resulting from Burns Principal Sum payable. 

 

I f the Insured Person suffers burns in more than one area as a resul t o f 
any one accident, benefits will not exceed more than 100% of the Cosmetic 

Dis figurement Resulting from Burns Principal Sum. 

 
A ny Cosmetic Disfigurement Resulting from Burns Benefit paid or pa yab le  

under this policy will be in addition to any A cci de ntal D is me mberment 
Benefit, Injury Permanent Impairment, Heart Permanent Impa irment, o r  

I llness P ermanent Impairment Benefit paid or payable under t his  pol icy. 

However, in no event will the total amount of benefits payable as a  re su lt 
of any one accident exceed 100% of the largest Principal Sum shown in the 

Schedule for these benefits. 

HIV Positive Lump Sum Living Benefit 
 

If a member contracts Human Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV) as a direct 

result of participation in a specific Covered Activity a lump sum benefit is 
payable to the member.  

 

If either the Illness Loss of Life Benefit or the Illness Permanent 
Impairment Benefit is payable and the HIV Positive Lump Sum Living 

Benefit is also payable, only the largest lump sum amount will be paid. 

 

HIV Positive - means  the presence of HIV antibodies  in the blood of an 

Insured Person as  subs tantiated through both a pos itive sc reening tes t 
(enzyme-linked immunosorbent assay, ELISA) and a positive supplemental t e s t 

such as Western Blot. All such tests must be approved by the F ood  a nd  D rug 

A dministration (FDA) with the interpretation of positivity a s  s pec ifi ed by t he 
manufacturer(s). 

 

WEEKLY INCOME BENEFITS 

 
Total Disability Benefit/Weekly Income Benefit 

 

If a member is unable to perform all of the material and substantial 
duties of their own occupation because of an Injury or Illness, We will 

pay the Total Disability Weekly Income Benefit.  

 

Total Disability, Totally Disabled –  means, 

(1) For an Insured Person with an occupation producing wages as described  
in the definition of Average Weekly Wage, the inability to perform all  o f 

the material and substantial duties of his or her own occupation.   
(2) I f the Insured Person does not have an occupation producing wages  as  

described in the definition of Average Weekly Wage, Total Disabilit y, 

Totally Disabled means:   
(a) the inability to perform all of the material and substantial duties of an 

occupation for which the Insured Person is  qualified by  re ason  o f 

education, training, or experience; or  

(b) the inability to perform all of the regular activit ies  o f the  Insured 

Person prior to the covered Injury or Illness.   
The Insured Person must be under the regular care of a Physician during 

Total Disability. 

  



 

9 

 

 

• First 28 Days of Total Disability 
For the first 28 days of Total Disability, the Total Disability Benefit 

Amount selected will be paid regardless of the amount of lost income 

and is not coordinated with income from other sources (e.g. Workers’ 
Compensation). 

 

• After 28 Days of Total Disability 
We will pay up to 100% of the member's pre-disability average 

income not to exceed the weekly benefit amount shown in the 

Schedule. The amount payable will be offset by Other Valid and 
Collectible Insurance or payable Workers’ Compensation.  

 
Other Valid and Collectible Insurance –  means any: 

(1) group plan, program, or insurance policy;  
(2) other group hospital, surgical or medical benefit plan;  

(3) union welfare plans or group employer or employee benefit programs;  

(4) no-fault automobile insurance plan or similar law; or 
(5) regular or disability benefits paid under a  R et irement  P rog ram a ft er  t he 

commencement of P artial Disability or Total Disabi lit y be ne fits  under t h is  
policy. 

Other Valid and Collectible Insurance will not include benefits provided  by  t he 

United States Social Security Act or any individual disability insurance plans. 

 

Retirement Program - means any normal, early, or disability retirement be nefit , 

provided by the Policyholder and/or Participating Organization, s tate, union  o r  

other entity where eligibility and/or benefits are based on  e mpl oyment wi t h  t he 
Policyholder and/or Participating Organization. 

 

After 52 weeks of Total Disability, on July 1st disability benefits will 

increase a minimum of 5% up to 10% maximum based on the Consumer 
Price Index.   

 

Payment Example for the Fifth Week of Disability: 
 

  Amount on Schedule after 28 days     $400 
  Member’s Average Weekly Wage:  $1,000 

  Workers’ Compensation Payment:     $400 

  We will pay:            $400 

 
Based on your benefit selection, Total Disability is payable  

 (1) up to two hundred sixty (260) weeks, or  

(2) up to 520 weeks under Extended Total Disability, or 
(3) up to age 70 under Long-Term Total Disability. 

Partial Disability Benefit/Weekly Income Benefit 

 

If a member is unable to perform one or more, but not all, of the duties 
of their own occupation because of an Injury or Illness, We will pay the 

Partial Disability Weekly Income Benefit shown in the Schedule for the 

first 28 days of Partial Disability. The calculation will be similar to the 
Total Disability Benefit after 28 days. 

 
The benefit for Partial Disability is payable for up to 52 weeks. 

 

Partial Disability, Partially Disabled - means  
(1) For an Insured Person with an occupation producing wages as descri bed  

in the definition of Average Weekly Wage, the inability to perform one or 

more, but not all, of the material and substantial duties of his or  he r  own 
occupation.   

(2) I f the Insured Person does not have an occupation producing  wages  as  

described in the definition of Average Weekly Wage, Partial Disabilit y, 
Partially Disabled means:  

(a) the inability to perform one or more, but not all, of the mater i al a nd  
substantial duties of an occupation for which the Insured Person i s  

qualified by reason of education, training, or experience; or  

(b) the inability to perform one or more, but not all, of the regular 
ac tivities of the Insured Person.  

The Insured Person must be under the regular care of a  Physician dur i ng  

Partial Disability. 

 

If 52 weeks of Total Disability has been paid and the Consumer Price 
Index applied to the benefit, should the member become Partial/Partially 

Disabled, the Consumer Price Index will be applied on July 1st to the 

Partial Disability Benefit at a minimum of 5% up to 10% maximum. 
 

The definition of Illness is expanded to include Mandatory Quarantine, 

which allows Us to reimburse wages lost due to a government mandated 
quarantine intended to contain an Infectious Disease. 
 

Mandatory Quarantine - means  period of isolation intended to limit the spread 

of an Infectious Disease.  The Mandatory Quarantine of an Insured 
Person must be ordered by appropriate medical officials while acting under t he 

authority of the local, state or federal government. 



 

10 

 

 

OCCUPATIONAL RETRAINING BENEFIT 
 

If an Injury or an Illness prevents a member from holding a Gainful 

Occupation, We will pay Covered Retraining Expenses. This benefit is 
paid if the member enrolls in an institution of higher learning or a 

professional or trade training program. The objective of any professional 

or trade training program must be to return the member to a job for 
which he or she is suited. The professional or trade training program 

must be agreed upon by Us and the member. 
 

Gainful Occupation - means  a job for which an Insured Person is  qua l ifi ed 

by reason of education, training or experience, which has  a reasonable 
expectation to provide more than 85% of pre-disability earnings. 

 

Covered Retraining Expenses inc ludes, but is not limited t o , e x penses fo r  
tuition, books, and any other training materials required by the  i ns t itu ti on  o f 

higher learning or professional or trade training program. 

WEEKLY INJURY PERMANENT IMPAIRMENT (LIFETIME) BENEFIT 

 

We will pay a weekly benefit if a member suffers a Permanent 
Impairment of 50% or greater due to a covered Injury. The benefit is 

payable:  

• weekly for life 
• even if the member returns to work in any job 

• in addition to any benefit paid or payable under the policy. 

Payments begin on the 261st week of disability or 521st week if the 

Extended Total Disability is selected. The weekly payment is calculated 

by applying the impairment rating percentage to the Weekly Income 
Benefit received by the member on the 29th day of Total Disability.  

Subsequent changes in the Permanent Impairment rating due to an 

Injury will not affect the Weekly Injury Permanent Impairment Benefits 
paid or payable. 

 

Permanent Impairment  - means a medical condition which is  a  phys ica l o r  

func tional abnormality or loss, which remains  a ft er  t he maximum med ical 

rehabilitation has been achieved, and wh i ch i s  c ons i de red  s tab le o r  non -
progressive by the Physician at the time an evaluation is made. 

 

Example:   

If the Total Disability Weekly Income Benefit payable on the 29th day of 

Total Disability is $600.00 and the member's Permanent Impairment 

rating is 70%, the lifetime Weekly Injury Permanent Impairment Benefit 
would be $420 per week ($600 x 70% = $420). 



 

11 

 

 

MEDICAL EXPENSE BENEFITS 
 

Reasonable and Customary Expense –  means an expense which: 
(1) is  charged for treatment, supplies or medical services medically necessary 

to treat the Insured Person's condition;  

(2) does  not exceed the usual level of charges for s imilar treatment, supplies or 
medical services in the locality where the expense is incurred; and  

(3) does  not include charges that would not have been made if no  i nsurance  
existed. 

 

Medical Expense Benefits 

 
If Injury or Illness causes a member to incur expenses for medical care, 

We will pay the cost of any Reasonable and Customary Expenses. 

Medical expenses include items such as: 
• medical, Hospital, or surgical treatment 

• Home Health Care 

• nursing services prescribed and monitored by a Physician 
• Post-exposure Prophylaxis Protocol (PEP) treatment, when 

such treatment is advised by the attending Physician 

• Infectious Disease screening tests 
• Post-exposure preventive inoculations as a result of 

participation in a Covered Activity 

 
Cosmetic Plastic Surgery Benefit 

 

If a member needs skin grafting or plastic surgery because of an Injury 

for which Medical Expense Benefits are paid or payable, We will pay for 

the Reasonable and Customary Expenses of the surgery, up to the policy  

limit 
 

Post-Traumatic Stress Disorder Benefit 

 
We will pay Reasonable and Customary Expenses when a member 

suffers from Post-Traumatic Stress Disorder as a result of participation in 

a specific Covered Activity in which a Traumatic Incident occurred. 
 

Post-Traumatic Stress Disorder - means emotional stress result ing from a  

Traumatic Incident  experienced by an Insured Person which adversely 

affec ts the psychological and physical well-being of the Insured Person. 

Critical Incident Stress Management Benefit 
 

When the department requires the services of a Critical Incident Stress 

Management Team, We will pay the expenses incurred by the team.  
These expenses include meals, lodging and necessary travel. 

 

The team must be requested and authorized by the Policyholder and 
needed due to a specific Covered Activity where a Traumatic Incident 

occurred. 

 
Critical Incident Stress Management Team (CISMT) - means  a formally 

organized group of mental health professionals and peer s uppo rt  i ndi vidua ls  

trained to provide support services to emergency s ervice pe rsonnel. S uch 
support services include s tress debriefing, defusi ng , de mobil izati on , s tress 

education, spousal support, one-on-one interviews or on the scene support. 

 

Traumatic Incident  –  means an abnormal experience, outside t he ra nge  o f 

usual human experiences and includes, but is not limited to: 
(1) line-of-duty death or serious injury to other Insured Persons;  

(2) a s ingle incident having multiple casualties; 

(3) death or serious injury of a child; and  
(4) dealing with victims known to the Insured Person. 

 

Family Expense Benefit 

 
When a member is admitted as an inpatient to a Hospital for a covered 

Injury or Illness, We will pay a daily benefit to the member.   

 
After such Hospital confinement, We will provide 50% of the scheduled 

daily benefit for each day the member participates in Out-Patient 

Physical Therapy. This benefit is payable for a combined maximum of 26 
weeks for any one accidental Injury or Illness regardless of whether it is 

paid at 100% or 50%. 

 
Family Bereavement and Trauma Counseling Benefit 

 

We will pay this benefit if an Accidental Death or Illness Loss of Life 
Benefit is payable, or if a member’s participation in a Covered Activity  in 

which a Traumatic Incident occurred, requires a member’s spouse, 

Dependent Child, or resident Immediate Family Member to require 
counseling. 



 

12 

 

 

TRANSITION BENEFIT 
 

We will pay a weekly Transition Benefit equivalent to the last Total 

Weekly Disability Benefit if, while a member is receiving Total Disability 
benefits, they are involuntarily terminated from their regular 

employment and remain unemployed after Total Disability ends under 

this plan. This benefit is payable as long as the member remains 
unemployed up to a maximum of 26 weeks. 

 

FELONIOUS ASSAULT BENEFIT 

 

This benefit is payable if a member suffers an Injury or Illness as the 

result of a Felonious Assault that is directed at the member while 

participating in a Covered Activity. 

 
Only one benefit is payable for all losses as a result of the same 

Felonious Assault. 

 

Felonious Assault  - means  any willful or unlawful use of force upon the 

Insured Person:   
(1) with the intent to cause bodily injury to the Insured Person; and  

(2) that results in bodily harm to the Insured Person; and  
(3) that is  a felony or a misdemeanor in the jurisdiction in which it occurs. 

HOME ALTERATION AND VEHICLE MODIFICATION BENEFIT 
 

We will pay for home alteration and vehicle modification expenses 

incurred within three years of the date of Injury or Illness, if a member 
requires alterations to their home and/or modifications to their vehicle as 

a direct result of a covered permanent and irrevocable loss. This benefit 

is payable in excess of benefits paid or payable under any Workers’ 
Compensation act, no fault automobile insurance plan, and any Other 

Valid and Collectible Insurance. 

 

Home Alteration and Vehicle Modif ication Expenses - means  one-time 
expenses that: 

 

(1) are charged for: 
(a) alterations to the Insured Person’s res idence that are  necessa ry t o 

make the residence accessible and habitable for an impaired individual; 

and 
(b) modifications  to a motor vehic le owned or leased by the Insured 

Person or modifications to a motor vehicle newly purchased fo r  t he 

Insured Person that are necessary to make the vehicle accessi bl e t o  
and/or drivable by the Insured Person; and 

(2) do not inc lude charges that would not have been made i f no  i nsurance 
existed; and 

(3) do not exceed the usual level of charges  for s imilar alterations  and 

modifications in the locality where the expense is incurred;  
 

but only if the alterations  to the Insured Person’s res idence and the 

modifications to his or her motor vehicle are: 
 

(1) made on behalf of the Insured Person; 
(2) in compliance with any applicable laws or requirements for approval by t he 

appropriate government authorities; and 

(3) agreed to and approved by Us. 



 

13 

 

 

OPTIONAL BENEFITS 
 

Weekly Hospital Benefit  

 
When a member requires inpatient hospitalization or outpatient physical 

therapy for either an Injury or Illness, We will pay this benefit in addition 

to the Weekly Income Benefit.  
 

This benefit is payable for a maximum period of 104 weeks. 

 
If the member is in an intensive, cardiac or critical care unit, the Weekly 

Hospital Benefit Amount shown in the Schedule is doubled. 

 
First Week Total Disability Benefit  

 

A member will receive an additional payment for the first week of Total 
Disability as a result of an Injury or Illness. If the member is Totally 

Disabled for less than one full week, We will pay a daily benefit for each 

day of disability. This daily benefit will be 1/7 of the scheduled weekly 
benefit. 

 

This benefit is paid in addition to other weekly income benefits. 
 

Coordinated 28 Day Total Disability Benefit  

 
A member will receive 100% of the difference between their Average 

Weekly Wage, and the Total Disability Weekly Amount (first 28 days) 

payable under the policy plus any disability income benefits received 

from Workers’ Compensation or similar law during the first 28 Days of 
Total Disability. If the member is Totally Disabled for less than one full 

week, We will pay a daily benefit for each day of disability. This daily 

benefit will be 1/7 of the scheduled weekly benefit. 
 

Extended Total Disability Benefit  

 
If the Extended Total Disability is shown on the Schedule the maximum 

Total Disability Benefit period is increased from five years (260 weeks) 

to 10 years (520 weeks). This benefit is payable if the member is Totally  
Disabled due to an Injury or Illness.  Total Disability Definition continues 

to apply to your own occupation.  

 

 
 

Long-Term Total Disability Benefit 

 
If the Long-Term Total Disability Benefit is shown on the Schedule the 

Total Disability Benefit is payable to age 70. This benefit is payable if a 

member is Totally Disabled due to an Injury or Illness. 
 

Long-Term Total Disability – means  
(1) For an Insured Person with an occupation producing wages as described 

in the definition of Average Weekly Wage at the time Total Disabilit y 

benefits  become payable, Long-Term Total Disability means  the 
inability to perform all of the material  a nd  s ubs tant ial  du ti es  o f a ny 

Gainful Occupation. 

(2) For an Insured Person who did not have an occupation p roduc i ng  
wages  as described in the definition of Average Weekly W age at  

the time Total Disability benefits  become payable, Long-Term 

Total Disability means:   
(a) the inability to perform all of the material and substantial duties  

of an occupation for which the Insured Person is  qualifi ed  by 
reason of education, training, or experience; or  

(b) the inability to perform any two of s ix activities of daily living o f 

the Insured Person.  A c tivities of daily living include mobilit y, 
eating, elimination, cognition, personal hygiene and dressing. 

 

After 10 years of Total Disability the definition of disability will be based 
on any Gainful Occupation when the Long-Term Total Disability Benefit is 

provided. 
 

Gainful Occupation - means a job for which an Insured Person is  quali fie d 

by reason of education, training or experience, which has  a reasonable 
expectation to provide more than 85% of pre-disability earnings. 

 

Cost of Living Adjustment (COLA) Benefits  
 

If Weekly Injury Permanent Impairment COLA or Long-Term Total 

Disability COLA is shown on the Schedule, the amount payable will be 
increased after benefits have been paid for at least 52 consecutive 

weeks. The percentage of increase, a minimum of 5% up to 10% 

maximum, is based on the increase in the Consumer Price Index.  
 

Consumer Price Index - means the consumer price index published by the U.S. 
Department of Labor's Bureau of Labor Statistics for All U rban C onsume rs, A ll  

I tems (CPI-U). 

  



 

14 

 

 

 
 

Extra Expense Benefit 

 
After 26 weeks of a member’s Total Disability due to a covered Injury  or 

Illness, the member will receive the Extra Expense Benefit Monthly 

Amount. This benefit will cease when the member is no longer Totally 
Disabled, or the maximum amount shown in the schedule is paid. 

 

Organized Team Sports Rider 

 
This benefit provides accidental death, accidental dismemberment, total 

disability, or medical expense benefits if death or Injury to a member 

results from participation in (including travel directly to and from) a 
specific organized team league event, including a game or practice. 

 

OPTIONAL 24-HOUR or OFF-DUTY ACCIDENT BENEFITS 

For 24-Hour and Off-Duty Accident Benefits, Covered Person means: 

 

Covered Person - means  all members  who are lis ted on the Policyholder 
and/or Participating Organization’s roster. The roster will be maintained and  

periodically updated by the Policyholder and/or Participating Organizat ion. 

The ros ter will be kept on file by the Policyholder and/or Participating 
Organization. 

 

24-Hour Accident Benefit – Injury Only 

 

This benefit provides a lump sum amount if a Covered Person dies or 

suffers dismemberment, vision loss or paralysis due to bodily injury. This 
benefit is paid if death, dismemberment, vision loss or paralysis occurs 

during a Covered Activity or an off-duty activity.  

 
Off-Duty Accident Benefit – Injury Only 

 

This benefit provides a lump sum amount if a Covered Person dies or 
suffers dismemberment, vision loss or paralysis due to bodily injury. This 

benefit is paid only if death, dismemberment, vision loss or paralysis 

does not occur during a Covered Activity. 
 

Please note: Coverage provided under the optional 24-Hour or Off-Duty 
Benefits cannot be issued until a roster listing the covered members is 

submitted. 

EXCLUSIONS 
 

We will not cover any loss caused by or resulting from: 

 

(1) suicide or any attempt at it; or intentionally self-inflicted 
injuries; 

(2) injuries that happen while flying except:  

(a) as a passenger on a commercial aircraft; 

(b) as a passenger on any aircraft while taking part in a 
Covered  Activity; 

(3) injuries that happen while flying as a crew member or during 
parachute jumps from the aircraft; 

(4) war or any act of war, whether declared or undeclared; 

(5) mental or emotional disorders, except as specifically 
provided for covered Post-Traumatic Stress Disorder; 

(6) treatment of alcoholism or drug addiction and any 

complications arising from it, except loss caused by Injury 
sustained during and resulting from a Covered Activity; 

(7) illness, except as provided by the policy; 

(8) military service of any state or country; 

(9) any form of football, hockey, lacrosse, soccer, boxing, rugby 
and martial arts; 

(10)  any league sports event, except as covered under the 
Organized Team Sports Rider; or 

(11)  Cancer. 

 

 

 



Response
An integral part of our cyber policy, 
our award-winning mobile app 
Response gives policyholders 
access to a range of proactive 
cybersecurity tools and services.

Here’s what this valuable tool has to offer:

 Simply use your CFC cyber policy number to register.
 The app is available on the App Store or Google Play. 

1     Phishing simulations – Targeting members 
of your team whose credentials are the most 
vulnerable, these simulations send mock 
phishing emails in order to raise awareness of 
this criminal tactic.

2      Dark web monitoring – This tool scours the 
dark web for information relating to your 
business, including corporate login credentials 
and other breaches of sensitive data relating to 
your domain name.

3     Deep scanning – This service actively scans 
the external client network footprint  to 
identify claims correlated vulnerabilities that 
lead to cyber attacks and ransomware.

4     Cybersecurity advice – The “Ask the Expert” 
section of Response allows users to get 
in touch with our specialist team for help 
with cyber risk mitigation, best practices, 
cybersecurity services on offer, and more.

5     Real time threat alerts – Through continuous 
monitoring of our customers and analysis of 
the latest cyber claims, our team is able to 
spot problems fast. Through Response, we 
send policyholders critical alerts specific to 
their business along with guidance on how to 
rectify any issues.

Access to CFC’s cyber risk management tools

... and instant notification of claims

Suffering an incident? The app allows you to instantly notify our specialist team if you have an issue.  
This feature of Response triggers an immediate call-back from our experience team of responders.

https://apps.apple.com/gb/app/cfc-cyber-incident-response/id1198278201
https://play.google.com/store/apps/details?id=com.cfcunderwriting.cyber


©2019 CFC Underwriting Ltd, All Rights Reserved

INDICATION OF TERMS

REFERENCE NUMBER: 3289641

COMPANY NAME: Tubac Fire District

TOTAL PAYABLE: USD3,260.00

Premium breakdown:  

   Cyber & Privacy: USD1,810.00

   Cyber Crime: USD1,300.00

   Policy Administration Fee: USD150.00

   TRIA: USD0.00

BUSINESS OPERATIONS: Fire District 

LEGAL ACTION: Worldwide

TERRITORIAL SCOPE: Worldwide

REPUTATIONAL HARM PERIOD: 12 months

INDEMNITY PERIOD: 12 months

WAITING PERIOD: 8 hours

WORDING: Cyber, Private Enterprise (US) v3.0

ENDORSEMENTS: AmWINS Special Amendatory Clause
Policyholder Disclosure Notice Of Terrorism Insurance 
Coverage

SUBJECTIVITIES: This quote is subject to the following being provided by 
the stated deadline:

 
 

2. Satisfactory confirmation that you have 
downloaded & registered our incident response 
mobile app, details of which can be found with 
your policy documents. (30 days post binding)

3. Please provide name, position, email and 
telephone number for the designated contact to 
receive security related alerts and targeted threat 
intelligence. (14 days post binding)

4. confirmation that the insured operates on a 
segregated IT infrastructure to the municipality 
(prior to binding)

POLICY PERIOD: 12 months

DATE OF ISSUE: 28 Mar 2023

OPTIONAL EXTENDED REPORTING 
PERIOD:

12 months for 100% of applicable annualized premium

SECURITY: Certain underwriters at Lloyd's and other insurers

UNDERWRITER: Ben Thomas



©2019 CFC Underwriting Ltd, All Rights Reserved

 

 

THIS INDICATION OF TERMS IS ONLY VALID FOR 30 DAYS FROM THE DATE OF ISSUE

PLEASE REFER TO THE FOLLOWING PAGES FOR A FULL BREAKDOWN OF LIMITS, 
RETENTIONS AND APPLICABLE CLAUSES



©2019 CFC Underwriting Ltd, All Rights Reserved

DECLARATIONS

THE FOLLOWING INSURING CLAUSES ARE SUBJECT TO AN EACH AND EVERY CLAIM 
LIMIT

INSURING CLAUSE 1: CYBER INCIDENT RESPONSE

SECTION A: INCIDENT RESPONSE COSTS

Limit of liability:
 

USD1,000,000 each and every claim

Deductible:
 

USD0 each and every claim

SECTION B: LEGAL AND REGULATORY COSTS

Limit of liability:
 

USD1,000,000 each and every claim

Deductible:
 

USD2,500 each and every claim

SECTION C: IT SECURITY AND FORENSIC COSTS

Limit of liability:
 

USD1,000,000 each and every claim

Deductible:
 

USD2,500 each and every claim

SECTION D: CRISIS COMMUNICATION COSTS

Limit of liability:
 

USD1,000,000 each and every claim

Deductible:
 

USD2,500 each and every claim

SECTION E: PRIVACY BREACH MANAGEMENT COSTS

Limit of liability:
 

USD1,000,000 each and every claim

Deductible:
 

USD2,500 each and every claim

SECTION F: THIRD PARTY PRIVACY BREACH MANAGEMENT COSTS

Limit of liability:
 

USD1,000,000 each and every claim

Deductible:
 

USD2,500 each and every claim

SECTION G: POST BREACH REMEDIATION COSTS

Limit of liability:
 

USD50,000 each and every claim, subject to a 
maximum of 10% of all sums we have paid 
as a direct result of the cyber event

Deductible:
 

USD0 each and every claim



©2019 CFC Underwriting Ltd, All Rights Reserved

INSURING CLAUSE 2: CYBER CRIME

SECTION A: FUNDS TRANSFER FRAUD

Limit of liability:
 

USD250,000 each and every claim

Deductible:
 

USD2,500 each and every claim

SECTION B: THEFT OF FUNDS HELD IN ESCROW

Limit of liability:
 

USD250,000 each and every claim

Deductible:
 

USD2,500 each and every claim

SECTION C: THEFT OF PERSONAL FUNDS

Limit of liability:
 

USD250,000 each and every claim

Deductible:
 

USD2,500 each and every claim

SECTION D: EXTORTION

Limit of liability:
 

USD1,000,000 each and every claim

Deductible:
 

USD2,500 each and every claim

SECTION E: CORPORATE IDENTITY THEFT

Limit of liability:
 

USD250,000 each and every claim

Deductible:
 

USD2,500 each and every claim

SECTION F: TELEPHONE HACKING

Limit of liability:
 

USD250,000 each and every claim

Deductible:
 

USD2,500 each and every claim

SECTION G: PUSH PAYMENT FRAUD

Limit of liability:
 

USD50,000 each and every claim

Deductible:
 

USD2,500 each and every claim

SECTION H: UNAUTHORIZED USE OF COMPUTER RESOURCES

Limit of liability:
 

USD250,000 each and every claim

Deductible:
 

USD2,500 each and every claim



©2019 CFC Underwriting Ltd, All Rights Reserved

INSURING CLAUSE 3: SYSTEM DAMAGE AND BUSINESS INTERRUPTION

SECTION A: SYSTEM DAMAGE AND RECTIFICATION COSTS

Limit of liability:
 

USD1,000,000 each and every claim

Deductible:
 

USD2,500 each and every claim

SECTION B: INCOME LOSS AND EXTRA EXPENSE

Limit of liability:
 

USD1,000,000 each and every claim, sub-limited to 
USD1,000,000 in respect of system failure

Deductible:
 

USD2,500 each and every claim

SECTION C: ADDITIONAL EXTRA EXPENSE

Limit of liability:
 

USD100,000 each and every claim

Deductible:
 

USD2,500 each and every claim

SECTION D: DEPENDENT BUSINESS INTERRUPTION

Limit of liability:
 

USD1,000,000 each and every claim, sub-limited to 
USD1,000,000 in respect of system failure

Deductible:
 

USD2,500 each and every claim

SECTION E: CONSEQUENTIAL REPUTATIONAL HARM

Limit of liability:
 

USD1,000,000 each and every claim

Deductible:
 

USD2,500 each and every claim

SECTION F: CLAIM PREPARATION COSTS

Limit of liability:
 

USD25,000 each and every claim

Deductible:
 

USD0 each and every claim

SECTION G: HARDWARE REPLACEMENT COSTS

Limit of liability:
 

USD1,000,000 each and every claim

Deductible:
 

USD2,500 each and every claim



©2019 CFC Underwriting Ltd, All Rights Reserved

THE FOLLOWING INSURING CLAUSES ARE SUBJECT TO AN AGGREGATE LIMIT

INSURING CLAUSE 4: NETWORK SECURITY & PRIVACY LIABILITY

SECTION A: NETWORK SECURITY LIABILITY

Aggregate limit of liability:
 

USD1,000,000 in the aggregate, including costs and 
expenses

Deductible:
 

USD2,500 each and every claim, including costs and 
expenses

SECTION B: PRIVACY LIABILITY

Aggregate limit of liability:
 

USD1,000,000 in the aggregate, including costs and 
expenses

Deductible:
 

USD2,500 each and every claim, including costs and 
expenses

SECTION C: MANAGEMENT LIABILITY

Aggregate limit of liability:
 

USD1,000,000 in the aggregate, including costs and 
expenses

Deductible:
 

USD2,500 each and every claim, including costs and 
expenses

SECTION D: REGULATORY FINES

Aggregate limit of liability:
 

USD1,000,000 in the aggregate, including costs and 
expenses

Deductible:
 

USD2,500 each and every claim, including costs and 
expenses

SECTION E: PCI FINES, PENALTIES AND ASSESSMENTS

Aggregate limit of liability:
 

USD1,000,000 in the aggregate, including costs and 
expenses

Deductible:
 

USD2,500 each and every claim, including costs and 
expenses

INSURING CLAUSE 5: MEDIA LIABILITY

SECTION A: DEFAMATION

Aggregate limit of liability:
 

USD1,000,000 in the aggregate, including costs and 
expenses

Deductible:
 

USD2,500 each and every claim, including costs and 
expenses

SECTION B: INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY RIGHTS INFRINGEMENT

Aggregate limit of liability:
 

USD1,000,000 in the aggregate, including costs and 
expenses

Deductible:
 

USD2,500 each and every claim, including costs and 
expenses

INSURING CLAUSE 6: TECHNOLOGY ERRORS AND OMISSIONS

NO COVER GIVEN



©2019 CFC Underwriting Ltd, All Rights Reserved

INSURING CLAUSE 7: COURT ATTENDANCE COSTS

Aggregate limit of liability:
 

USD100,000 in the aggregate

Deductible:
 

USD0 each and every claim



©2019 CFC Underwriting Ltd, All Rights Reserved

AMWINS SPECIAL AMENDATORY CLAUSE

ATTACHING TO POLICY 
NUMBER:

N/A

THE INSURED: Tubac Fire District
WITH EFFECT FROM: -

 It is understood and agreed that the following amendments are made 
to the Declarations page:

1. The “OPTIONAL EXTENDED REPORTING PERIOD” is deleted in its 
entirety.

2. The following SECTION is added to INSURING CLAUSE 4:

SECTION F: CONTINGENT BODILY INJURY
Aggregate limit of 
liability:

USD250,000 in the aggregate, including 
costs and expenses

Deductible: USD25,000 each and every claim, 
including costs and 
expenses 

It is further understood and agreed that the following amendments are 
made to this Policy:

1. The following SECTION is added to INSURING CLAUSE 4:

SECTION F: CONTINGENT BODILY INJURY

We agree to pay on your behalf all sums which you become legally 
obliged to pay (including liability for claimants' costs and expenses) 
as a result of any claim arising out of any bodily injury as a direct 
result of a cyber event affecting your computer systems first 
discovered by you during the period of the policy.

We will also pay costs and expenses on your behalf.

However, we will not make any payment under this Section for 
which you are entitled to indemnity under any other insurance , 
except for any additional sum which is payable over and above the 
other insurance .

2. The following DEFINITION is added:

"Bodily injury" means

death, bodily injury, mental injury, illness or disease.

3. The "Senior executive officer" DEFINITION is deleted in its entirety 
and replaced with the following:

"Senior executive officer" means

the chief executive officer, the chief finance officer, human resources 
directors, the chief risk officer and senior executives of the company 



©2019 CFC Underwriting Ltd, All Rights Reserved

or their functional equivalents.

4. The “Bodily injury and property damage” EXCLUSION is deleted in its 
entirety and replaced with the following:

arising directly or indirectly out of:

a. bodily injury; or

b. tangible property damage.

However, part a. of this Exclusion will not apply to:

a. INSURING CLAUSES 4 (SECTIONS A, B and C only) and 5 for 
any claim as a direct result of mental injury or emotional 
distress; and

b. INSURING CLAUSE 4 (SECTION F only).

5. Where “80%” and “20%” are stated in the “Agreement to pay claims” 
CONDITION, they are deleted in their entirety and replaced with 
“90%” and “10%” respectively.

6. The "Cancelation” CONDITION is deleted in its entirety and replaced 
with the following:

This Policy may be canceled with 30 days written notice by you.

If you give us notice of cancelation, the return premium will be in 
proportion to the number of days that the Policy is in effect. 
However, if you have made a claim under this Policy there will be no 
return premium.

We reserve the right of cancelation in the event that any amount 
due to us by you remains unpaid more than 60 days beyond the 
inception date. If we exercise this right of cancelation it will take 
effect from 14 days after the date the written notice of cancelation is 
issued.

The Policy Administration Fee will be deemed fully earned upon 
inception of the Policy.

7. Where “60 days” and “60 day” are referred to in the “Extended 
reporting period” CONDITION, they are deleted in their entirety and 
replaced with “90 days” and “90 day” respectively.

8. The “Optional extended reporting period” CONDITION is deleted in 
its entirety and replaced with the following:

If we or you decline to renew or cancel this Policy then you will have 
the right to have issued an endorsement providing an optional 
extended reporting period for any of the following durations:

a. 12 months for 100% of the premium;

b. 24 months for 140% of the premium; or

c. 36 months for 190% of the premium.



©2019 CFC Underwriting Ltd, All Rights Reserved

This optional extended reporting period will take effect from the 
cancelation or non-renewal date and will cover, subject to all other 
terms, conditions and exclusions of this Policy:

a. any claim first made against you and reported to us during 
this optional extended reporting period, provided that the 
claim arises out of any act, error or omission committed prior 
to the date of cancelation or non-renewal; and

b. any cyber event, loss or system failure first discovered by you 
during this optional extended reporting period, provided 
that the cyber event, loss or system failure occurred during 
the period of the policy.

If you would like to purchase the optional extended reporting period 
you must notify us and pay us the optional extended reporting 
period premium stated in the first a., b. and c. above within 30 days 
of cancelation or non-renewal.

The right to the optional extended reporting period will not be 
available to you where cancelation or non-renewal by us is due to 
non-payment of the premium or your failure to pay any amounts in 
excess of the applicable policy limit and incident response limit or 
within the amount of the applicable deductible as is required by this 
Policy in the payment of claims.

At the renewal of this Policy, our quotation of different premium, 
deductible, limits of liability or changes in policy language will not 
constitute non-renewal by us.

9. Where “20%” is stated in the “Mergers and acquisitions” CONDITION, 
it is deleted in its entirety and replaced with “25%”.

10. Where “final adjudication” is stated anywhere throughout this Policy, 
it is deleted in its entirety and replaced with “final and non-
appealable adjudication”.

 SUBJECT OTHERWISE TO THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE 
POLICY



©2019 CFC Underwriting Ltd, All Rights Reserved

POLICYHOLDER DISCLOSURE NOTICE OF TERRORISM INSURANCE COVERAGE

ATTACHING TO POLICY 
NUMBER:

N/A

THE INSURED: Tubac Fire District
WITH EFFECT FROM: -

 Coverage for acts of terrorism is included in your policy. You are hereby 
notified that under the Terrorism Risk Insurance Act, as amended in 
2015, the definition of act of terrorism has changed. As defined in Section 
102(1) of the Act: The term “act of terrorism” means any act or acts that 
are certified by the Secretary of the Treasury—in consultation with the 
Secretary of Homeland Security, and the Attorney General of the United 
States—to be an act of terrorism; to be a violent act or an act that is 
dangerous to human life, property, or infrastructure; to have resulted in 
damage within the United States, or outside the United States in the 
case of certain air carriers or vessels or the premises of a United States 
mission; and to have been committed by an individual or individuals as 
part of an effort to coerce the civilian population of the United States or 
to influence the policy or affect the conduct of the United States 
Government by coercion.

Under your coverage, any losses resulting from certified acts of terrorism 
may be partially reimbursed by the United States Government under a 
formula established by the Terrorism Risk Insurance Act, as amended. 
However, your policy may contain other exclusions which might affect 
your coverage, such as an exclusion for nuclear events. Under the 
formula, the United States Government generally reimburses 85% 
through 2015; 84% beginning on January 1, 2016; 83% beginning on 
January 1, 2017; 82% beginning on January 1, 2018; 81% beginning on 
January 1, 2019 and 80% beginning on January 1, 2020, of covered 
terrorism losses exceeding the statutorily established deductible paid by 
the insurance company providing the coverage.

The Terrorism Risk Insurance Act, as amended, contains a $100 billion 
cap that limits U.S. Government reimbursement as well as insurers' 
liability for losses resulting from certified acts of terrorism when the 
amount of such losses exceeds $100 billion in any one calendar year. If 
the aggregate insured losses for all insurers exceed $100 billion, your 
coverage may be reduced.

The portion of your annual premium that is attributable to coverage for 
acts of terrorism is USD0.00 and does not include any charges for the 
portion of losses covered by the United States government under the 
Act.

 SUBJECT OTHERWISE TO THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE 
POLICY



Cyber
Private enterprise

Policy document
United States

 



1

CFC Underwriting Limited is Authorized and Regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority 
©1999-2022 CFC Underwriting Ltd, All Rights Reserved Cyber, Private Enterprise v3.0

PREAMBLE
 

IMPORTANT: COVERAGE TRIGGERS. It is important for you to review this Policy carefully as the 

trigger for coverage, including when you must notify us of a claim, under each Section and 

Insuring Clause may differ.

This Policy is a contract of insurance between you and us. Your Policy contains all the details of 

the cover that we provide. This Policy consists of and must be read together with the 

Declarations page and any Endorsements. This Policy is not complete unless it is signed and a 

Declarations page is attached.

The sections of this Policy are identified by the blue lines across the page with white upper case 

print, these are for information purposes only and do not form part of the cover given by this 

Policy. Terms in bold upper case print are references to specific Insuring Clauses, Sections or 

Conditions. Other terms in bold lower case print are defined terms and have a special meaning 

as set forth in the Definitions section and elsewhere. Words stated in the singular will include the 

plural and vice versa.

In consideration of the premium and in reliance upon the information that you have provided to 

us prior to the commencement of this insurance, we agree to provide the cover as set out below:

 

INSURING CLAUSES
 

INSURING CLAUSE 1: CYBER INCIDENT RESPONSE
SECTION A: INCIDENT RESPONSE COSTS

We agree to pay on your behalf any reasonable sums necessarily incurred by you, or on your 

behalf, as a direct result of a cyber event first discovered by you during the period of the policy to:

a. gain access to our 24/7 cyber incident response line;

b. engage with our cyber incident manager who will coordinate the initial response;

c. obtain initial advice and consultancy from our cyber incident manager, including threat 

intelligence in relation to the cyber event; and

d. obtain initial remote support and assistance from our cyber incident manager to respond 

to the cyber event.

SECTION B: LEGAL AND REGULATORY COSTS

We agree to pay on your behalf any reasonable sums necessarily incurred by you, or on your 

behalf, as a direct result of a cyber event first discovered by you during the period of the policy to:

a. obtain legal advice to determine the correct course of action;

b. draft privacy breach notification letters, substitute notices, website notices or e-mail 

notification templates;



2

CFC Underwriting Limited is Authorized and Regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority 
©1999-2022 CFC Underwriting Ltd, All Rights Reserved Cyber, Private Enterprise v3.0

c. notify any appropriate governmental, regulatory, law enforcement, professional or 

statutory body;

d. respond to any regulatory investigation; and

e. defend any regulatory action.

SECTION C: IT SECURITY AND FORENSIC COSTS

We agree to pay on your behalf any reasonable sums necessarily incurred by you, or on your 

behalf, as a direct result of a cyber event first discovered by you during the period of the policy to:

a. engage with an external IT security consultant to identify the source and scope of the 

cyber event;

b. obtain initial advice to remediate the impact of the cyber event;

c. conduct a forensic investigation of your computer systems where reasonable and 

necessary or as required by law or a regulatory body (including a requirement for a PCI 

Forensic Investigator);

d. contain and remove any malware discovered on your computer systems; and

e. engage with an IT security consultant to provide expert witness testimony at any trial or 

hearing arising from the cyber event.

SECTION D: CRISIS COMMUNICATION COSTS

We agree to pay on your behalf any reasonable sums necessarily incurred by you, or on your 

behalf, as a direct result of a cyber event first discovered by you during the period of the policy to:

a. engage with a crisis communications consultant to obtain specific advice in direct 

relation to the cyber event;

b. coordinate media relations in response to the cyber event;

c. receive training for relevant spokespeople with respect to media communications in 

direct relation to the cyber event; and

d. formulate a crisis communications plan in order to reduce damage to your brand and 

reputation as a direct result of the cyber event.

SECTION E: PRIVACY BREACH MANAGEMENT COSTS

We agree to pay on your behalf any reasonable sums necessarily incurred by you, or on your 

behalf, as a direct result of a cyber event first discovered during the period of the policy to:

a. print and post appropriate notices for any individual affected by the actual or suspected 

cyber event or to send e-mail notices or issue substitute notices;

b. provide credit monitoring services, identity monitoring services, identity restoration 

services or identity theft insurance to affected individuals;

c. set up a call center to manage inbound and outbound calls in direct relation to the cyber 

event; and

d. provide translation services to manage communications with affected individuals.



3

CFC Underwriting Limited is Authorized and Regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority 
©1999-2022 CFC Underwriting Ltd, All Rights Reserved Cyber, Private Enterprise v3.0

SECTION F: THIRD PARTY PRIVACY BREACH MANAGEMENT COSTS

We agree to pay on behalf of any third party any reasonable sums necessarily incurred as a direct 

result of a cyber event first discovered by you during the period of the policy to:

a. print and post appropriate notices for any individual affected by the actual or suspected 

cyber event or to send e-mail notices or issue substitute notices;

b. provide credit monitoring services, identity monitoring services, identity restoration 

services or identity theft insurance to affected individuals;

c. set up a call center to manage inbound and outbound calls in direct relation to the cyber 

event; and

d. provide translation services to manage communications with affected individuals;

provided that you have contractually indemnified the third party against this cyber event and 

they have a legal obligation to notify affected individuals.

SECTION G: POST BREACH REMEDIATION COSTS

We agree to pay on your behalf any reasonable sums necessarily incurred by you, or on your 

behalf, with our cyber incident manager following a cyber event covered under INSURING 

CLAUSE 1 (SECTIONS A, B, C, D, E and F only) for the following services in order to mitigate the 

potential of a future cyber event:

a. complete an information security risk assessment;

b. conduct an information security gap analysis;

c. develop an information security document set; and

d. deliver an information security awareness training session.

INSURING CLAUSE 2: CYBER CRIME
SECTION A: FUNDS TRANSFER FRAUD

We agree to reimburse you for loss first discovered by you during the period of the policy as a 

direct result of any third party committing:

a. any unauthorized electronic transfer of funds from your bank;

b. theft of money or other financial assets from your bank by electronic means;

c. theft of money or other financial assets from your corporate credit cards by electronic 

means; or

d. any phishing, vishing or other social engineering attack against any employee or senior 

executive officer that results in the transfer of your funds to an unintended third party.

SECTION B: THEFT OF FUNDS HELD IN ESCROW

We agree to reimburse you for loss (including compensation you are required to pay) first 

discovered by you during the period of the policy as a direct result of you having to reimburse 

any third party for theft, committed by a third party by electronic means, of their money or other 

financial assets from a bank account held by you on their behalf.



4

CFC Underwriting Limited is Authorized and Regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority 
©1999-2022 CFC Underwriting Ltd, All Rights Reserved Cyber, Private Enterprise v3.0

SECTION C: THEFT OF PERSONAL FUNDS

We agree to reimburse any senior executive officer for personal financial loss first discovered by 

them during the period of the policy as a direct result of any third party compromising the 

company's network security which results in:

a. theft of money or other financial assets from a personal bank account of the senior 

executive officer; or

b. identity theft of the senior executive officer as a result of a privacy breach suffered by you.

SECTION D: EXTORTION

We agree to reimburse you for any ransom paid by you, or on your behalf, in response to an 

extortion demand first discovered by you during the period of the policy as a direct result of any 

threat to:

a. introduce malware, or the actual introduction of malware, including Ransomware, into 

your computer systems;

b. prevent access to your computer systems or data or any third party systems hosting your 

applications or data;

c. reveal your confidential information or confidential information entrusted to you; or

d. damage your brand or reputation by posting false or misleading comments about you on 

social media sites.

SECTION E: CORPORATE IDENTITY THEFT

We agree to reimburse you for loss first discovered by you during the period of the policy arising 

as a direct result of the fraudulent use or misuse of your electronic identity including the 

establishment of credit in your name, the electronic signing of any contract, the creation of any 

website designed to impersonate you or the reliance by any third party on a fraudulent version of 

your digital identity.

SECTION F: TELEPHONE HACKING

We agree to reimburse you for loss first discovered by you during the period of the policy as a 

direct result of your telephone system being hacked by a third party including the cost of 

unauthorized calls or unauthorized use of your bandwidth.

SECTION G: PUSH PAYMENT FRAUD

We agree to reimburse you in the event of fraudulent electronic communications or websites 

designed to impersonate you or any of your products first discovered by you during the period of 

the policy, for:

a. the cost of creating and issuing a specific press release or establishing a specific website 

to advise your customers and prospective customers of the fraudulent communications; 

and



5

CFC Underwriting Limited is Authorized and Regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority 
©1999-2022 CFC Underwriting Ltd, All Rights Reserved Cyber, Private Enterprise v3.0

b. the cost of reimbursing your existing customers for their financial loss arising directly 

from the fraudulent communications, including fraudulent invoices manipulated to 

impersonate you; and

c. your income loss sustained following your discovery of the fraudulent communications as 

a direct result of the fraudulent communications; and

d. external costs associated with the removal of websites designed to impersonate you.

SECTION H: UNAUTHORIZED USE OF COMPUTER RESOURCES

We agree to reimburse you for loss first discovered by you during the period of the policy as a 

direct result of cryptojacking or botnetting.

INSURING CLAUSE 3: SYSTEM DAMAGE AND BUSINESS INTERRUPTION
SECTION A: SYSTEM DAMAGE AND RECTIFICATION COSTS

We agree to reimburse you for the additional cost of employing:

a. contract staff or overtime costs for employees to rebuild your data, including the cost of 

data re-entry or data re-creation;

b. specialist consultants, including IT forensic consultants, to recover your data or 

applications; and

c. specialist consultants or overtime costs for employees working within your IT department 

to reconstitute your computer systems to the position they were in immediately prior to 

the cyber event;

reasonably and necessarily incurred as a direct result of a cyber event first discovered by you 

during the period of the policy.

SECTION B: INCOME LOSS AND EXTRA EXPENSE

We agree to reimburse you for your income loss and extra expense during the indemnity period 

as a direct result of an interruption to your business operations caused by computer systems 

downtime arising directly out of a cyber event or system failure which is first discovered by you 

during the period of the policy, provided that the computer systems downtime lasts longer than 

the waiting period.

SECTION C: ADDITIONAL EXTRA EXPENSE

We agree to reimburse you for any reasonable sums necessarily incurred during the indemnity 

period that are in addition to your normal operating expenses and the extra expense recoverable 

under INSURING CLAUSE 3 (SECTION B only):

a. to source your products or services from alternative sources in order to meet contractual 

obligations to supply your customers;

b. to employ contract staff or overtime costs for employees in order to continue your 

business operations;



6

CFC Underwriting Limited is Authorized and Regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority 
©1999-2022 CFC Underwriting Ltd, All Rights Reserved Cyber, Private Enterprise v3.0

c. to employ specialist consultants, including IT forensic consultants to diagnose the source 

of the computer systems downtime; and

d. for employees working overtime within your IT department to diagnose and fix the source 

of the computer systems downtime;

to mitigate an interruption to your business operations caused by computer systems downtime 

arising directly out of a cyber event or system failure which is first discovered by you during the 

period of the policy, provided that the computer systems downtime lasts longer than the waiting 

period.

SECTION D: DEPENDENT BUSINESS INTERRUPTION

We agree to reimburse you for your income loss and extra expense sustained during the 

indemnity period as a direct result of an interruption to your business operations arising directly 

out of any sudden, unexpected and continuous outage of computer systems used directly by a 

supply chain partner which is first discovered by you during the period of the policy, provided 

that the computer systems downtime lasts longer than the waiting period and arises directly out 

of any cyber event or system failure.

SECTION E: CONSEQUENTIAL REPUTATIONAL HARM

We agree to reimburse you for your income loss sustained during the reputational harm period 

as a direct result of the loss of current or future customers caused by damage to your reputation 

as a result of a cyber event first discovered by you during the period of the policy.

SECTION F: CLAIM PREPARATION COSTS

We agree to pay on your behalf any reasonable sums necessarily incurred to determine the 

amount of your income loss sustained following an interruption to your business operations 

covered under INSURING CLAUSE 3 (SECTIONS A, B, C, D and E only). We will only pay these costs 

where they are incurred with an independent expert appointed by the cyber incident manager.

SECTION G: HARDWARE REPLACEMENT COSTS

We agree to pay on your behalf any reasonably sums necessarily incurred to replace any 

computer hardware or tangible equipment forming part of your computer systems that have 

been damaged as a direct result of a cyber event first discovered by you during the period of the 

policy, provided that replacing the computer hardware or tangible equipment is a more time 

efficient and cost effective solution than installing new firmware or software onto your existing 

hardware.

INSURING CLAUSE 4: NETWORK SECURITY & PRIVACY LIABILITY
SECTION A: NETWORK SECURITY LIABILITY

We agree to pay on your behalf all sums which you become legally obliged to pay (including the 

establishment of any consumer redress fund and associated expenses) as a result of any claim 

arising out of a cyber event first discovered by you during the period of the policy that results in:



7

CFC Underwriting Limited is Authorized and Regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority 
©1999-2022 CFC Underwriting Ltd, All Rights Reserved Cyber, Private Enterprise v3.0

a. the transmission of malware to a third party's computer system;

b. your computer systems being used to carry out a denial of service attack;

c. your failure to prevent unauthorized access to information stored or applications hosted 

on your computer systems or a third party's computer systems; and

d. identity theft, experienced by your employees, senior executive officers or any third party.

We will also pay costs and expenses on your behalf.

SECTION B: PRIVACY LIABILITY

We agree to pay on your behalf all sums which you become legally obliged to pay (including the 

establishment of any consumer redress fund and associated expenses) as a result of any claim 

arising out of a cyber event first discovered by you during the period of the policy that results in:

a. an actual or suspected disclosure of or unauthorized access to any Personally Identifiable 

Information (PII), including payment card information or Protected Health Information 

(PHI);

b. your failure to adequately warn affected individuals of a privacy breach, including the 

failure to provide a data breach notification in a timely manner;

c. a breach of any rights of confidentiality as a direct result of your failure to maintain the 

confidentiality of any data pertaining to an employee or a senior executive officer;

d. a breach of any rights of confidentiality, including a breach of any provisions of a non-

disclosure agreement or breach of a contractual warranty relating to the confidentiality of 

commercial information, PII, or PHI;

e. a breach of any part of your privacy policy; or

f. actual or suspected disclosure of or unauthorized access to your data or data for which 

you are responsible.

We will also pay costs and expenses on your behalf.

SECTION C: MANAGEMENT LIABILITY

We agree to pay on behalf of any senior executive officer all sums they become legally obliged to 

pay as a result of any claim made against them arising directly out of a cyber event first 

discovered by you during the period of the policy.

We will also pay costs and expenses on behalf of your senior executive officers.

However, we will not make any payment under this Section for which the senior executive officer 

is entitled to indemnity under any other insurance, except for any additional sum which is 

payable over and above the other insurance.

SECTION D: REGULATORY FINES

We agree to pay on your behalf any fines and penalties resulting from a regulatory investigation 

arising as a direct result of a cyber event first discovered by you during the period of the policy.



8

CFC Underwriting Limited is Authorized and Regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority 
©1999-2022 CFC Underwriting Ltd, All Rights Reserved Cyber, Private Enterprise v3.0

We will also pay costs and expenses on your behalf.

SECTION E: PCI FINES, PENALTIES AND ASSESSMENTS

We agree to pay on your behalf any fines, penalties and card brand assessments including fraud 

recoveries, operational reimbursements, non-cooperation costs and case management fees 

which you become legally obliged to pay your acquiring bank or payment processor as a direct 

result of a payment card breach first discovered by you during the period of the policy.

We will also pay costs and expenses on your behalf.

INSURING CLAUSE 5: MEDIA LIABILITY
SECTION A: DEFAMATION

We agree to pay on your behalf all sums which you become legally obliged to pay (including 

liability for claimants' costs and expenses) as a result of any claim first made against you during 

the period of the policy for any:

a. defamation, including but not limited to libel, slander, trade libel, product disparagement 

and injurious falsehood; or

b. emotional distress or outrage based on harm to the character or reputation of any person 

or entity;

arising out of any media content.

We will also pay costs and expenses on your behalf.

SECTION B: INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY RIGHTS INFRINGEMENT

We agree to pay on your behalf all sums which you become legally obliged to pay (including 

liability for claimants' costs and expenses) as a result of any claim first made against you during 

the period of the policy for any:

a. infringement of any intellectual property rights, including, but not limited to, copyright, 

trademark, trade dilution, trade dress, commercial rights, design rights, domain name 

rights, image rights, moral rights, service mark or service name, but not including patent;

b. act of passing-off, piracy or plagiarism or any misappropriation of content, concepts, 

format rights or ideas or breach of a contractual warranty relating to intellectual property 

rights;

c. breach of any intellectual property rights license acquired by you; or

d. failure to attribute authorship or provide credit;

arising out of any media content.

We will also pay costs and expenses on your behalf.



9

CFC Underwriting Limited is Authorized and Regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority 
©1999-2022 CFC Underwriting Ltd, All Rights Reserved Cyber, Private Enterprise v3.0

INSURING CLAUSE 6: TECHNOLOGY ERRORS AND OMISSIONS

We agree to pay on your behalf all sums which you become legally obliged to pay (including 

liability for claimants' costs and expenses) as a result of any claim first made against you during 

the period of the policy arising out of any act, error, omission or breach of contract in the 

provision of your technology services.

We will also pay costs and expenses on your behalf.

INSURING CLAUSE 7: COURT ATTENDANCE COSTS

We agree to reimburse you for any reasonable sums necessarily incurred by you with our prior 

written agreement (which will not be unreasonably withheld) to attend court or any tribunal, 

arbitration, adjudication, mediation or other hearing in connection with any claim for which you 

are entitled to indemnity under this Policy.

 

HOW MUCH WE WILL PAY
 

YOUR MAXIMUM LIMITS UNDER THIS POLICY

The maximum amount payable by us under this Policy for any one claim or series of related 

claims is the policy limit plus the incident response limit.

The maximum amount payable by us under any Insuring Clause for any one claim or series of 

related claims is the amount shown as the limit in the Declarations page for that Insuring Clause.

The maximum amount payable by us under any Section for any one claim or series of related 

claims is the amount shown as the limit in the Declarations page for that Section.

YOUR MAXIMUM LIMIT FOR RELATED INCIDENTS

Where more than one claim arises from the same original cause or single source or event, all of 

those claims will be deemed to be one claim and only one policy limit and one incident response 

limit will apply in respect of that claim.

In the event that cover is provided under multiple Insuring Clauses or multiple Sections for any 

one claim, only one policy limit and one incident response limit will apply in total for that claim.

YOUR AGGREGATE LIMIT FOR LIABILITY CLAIMS

In respect of INSURING CLAUSES 4, 5, 6 and 7, the maximum amount payable under this Policy in 

total aggregate will be the policy limit.

In respect of INSURING CLAUSES 4, 5, 6 and 7, we may at any time pay to you in connection with 

any claim the amount of the policy limit (after deduction of any amounts already paid). Upon 

that payment being made we will relinquish the conduct and control of the claim and be under 



10

CFC Underwriting Limited is Authorized and Regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority 
©1999-2022 CFC Underwriting Ltd, All Rights Reserved Cyber, Private Enterprise v3.0

no further liability in connection with that claim except for the payment of costs and expenses 

incurred prior to the date of such payment (unless the policy limit is stated to be inclusive of 

costs and expenses).

If costs and expenses are stated in the Declarations page to be in addition to the policy limit plus 

the incident response limit, or if the operation of local laws require costs and expenses to be paid 

in addition to the policy limit plus the incident response limit, and if a damages payment in 

excess of the policy limit plus the incident response limit has to be made to dispose of any claim, 

our liability for costs and expenses will be in the same proportion as the policy limit plus the 

incident response limit bears to the total amount of the damages payment.

 

YOUR DEDUCTIBLE
 

We will only be liable for that part of each and every claim which exceeds the amount of the 

deductible. If any expenditure is incurred by us which falls within the amount of the deductible, 

then you will reimburse that amount to us upon our request.

Where more than one claim arises from the same original cause or single source or event all of 

those claims will be deemed to be one claim and only one deductible will apply.

In respect of INSURING CLAUSE 3 (SECTION B and D only), a single waiting period, deductible 

and indemnity period will apply to each claim. Where the same original cause or single source or 

event causes more than one period of computer systems downtime these will be considered one 

period of computer systems downtime whose total duration is equal to the cumulative duration 

of each individual period of computer systems downtime.

Where cover is provided under multiple Sections or multiple Insuring Clauses only one 

deductible will apply to that claim and this will be the highest deductible of the Sections under 

which cover is provided.

 

DEFINITIONS
 

1. "Approved claims panel providers" means

the approved claims panel providers stated in the Declarations page.

2. "Botnetting" means

the unauthorized use of your computer systems by a third party for the purpose of launching 

a denial of service attack or hacking attack against another third party.

3. "Business operations" means

the business operations stated in the Declarations page.



11

CFC Underwriting Limited is Authorized and Regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority 
©1999-2022 CFC Underwriting Ltd, All Rights Reserved Cyber, Private Enterprise v3.0

4. "Claim" means

a. a written demand for compensation;

b. a written request for a retraction or a correction;

c. a threat or initiation of a lawsuit; or

d. a disciplinary action or regulatory investigation.

made against you.

5. "Client" means

any third party with whom you have a contract in place for the supply of your business 

services in return for a fee, or where a fee would normally be expected to be paid.

6. "Company" means

the company named as the Insured in the Declarations page or any subsidiary.

7. "Computer systems" means

all electronic computers used directly by you, including operating systems, software, 

hardware and all communication and open system networks and any data or websites 

wheresoever hosted, off-line media libraries and data back-ups and mobile devices including 

but not limited to smartphones, iPhones, tablets or personal digital assistants.

8. "Continuity date" means

the inception date or if you have maintained uninterrupted insurance of the same type with 

us, the date this insurance was first incepted with us.

9. "Costs and expenses" means

a. third party legal and professional expenses (including disbursements) reasonably 

incurred in the defense of claims or circumstances which could reasonably be 

expected to give rise to a claim or in quashing or challenging the scope of any 

injunction, subpoena or witness summons;

b. any post judgment interest; and

c. the cost of appeal, attachment and similar bonds including bail and penal bonds.

Subject to all costs and expenses being incurred with the cyber incident manager's prior 

written agreement.

10. "Cryptojacking" means

the unauthorized use of your computer systems by a third party for the sole purpose of 

cryptocurrency mining activities.



12

CFC Underwriting Limited is Authorized and Regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority 
©1999-2022 CFC Underwriting Ltd, All Rights Reserved Cyber, Private Enterprise v3.0

11. "Cyber event" means

any actual or suspected unauthorized system access, electronic attack or privacy breach, 

including denial of service attack, cyber terrorism, hacking attack, Trojan horse, phishing 

attack, man-in-the-middle attack, application-layer attack, compromised key attack, malware 

infection (including spyware or Ransomware) or computer virus.

Cyber event does not mean system failure.

12. "Cyber incident manager" means

the company or individual named as the cyber incident manager in the Declarations page.

13. "Cyber incident response line" means

the telephone number stated as the cyber incident response line in the Declarations page.

14. "Deductible" means

the amount stated as the deductible in the Declarations page.

15. "Employee" means

any employee of the company, any volunteer working for the company and any individual 

working for the company as an independent contractor.

"Employee" does not mean any senior executive officer.

16. "Expiry date" means

the expiry date stated in the Declarations page.

17. "Extra expense" means

your reasonable sums necessarily incurred in addition to your normal operating expenses to 

mitigate an interruption to and continue your business operations, provided that the costs are 

less than your expected income loss sustained had these measures not been taken.

18. "Inception date" means

the inception date stated in the Declarations page.

19. "Incident response limit" means

the highest individual limit available where cover is applicable under INSURING CLAUSE 1 as 

stated in the Declarations page.

20. "Income loss" means

your income that, had the cyber event or system failure which gave rise to the claim not 

occurred, would have been generated directly from your business operations (less sales tax) 

during the indemnity period or reputational harm period, less:



13

CFC Underwriting Limited is Authorized and Regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority 
©1999-2022 CFC Underwriting Ltd, All Rights Reserved Cyber, Private Enterprise v3.0

a. actual income (less sales tax) generated directly from your business operations during 

the indemnity period or reputational harm period; and

b. any cost savings achieved as a direct result of the reduction in income.

21. "Indemnity period" means

the period starting from the first occurrence of:

a. the computer systems downtime; or

b. the downtime of computer systems used directly by a supply chain partner;

and lasting for the period stated as the indemnity period in the Declarations page.

22. "Loss" means

any direct financial loss sustained by the company.

23. "Media content" means

any content created or disseminated by you or on your behalf, including but not limited to 

content disseminated through books, magazines, brochures, social media, billboards, 

websites, mobile applications, television and radio.

"Media content" does not include any:

a. tangible product design;

b. industrial design;

c. architectural or building services;

d. any advertisement created by you for a third party;

e. business, company, product or trading name;

f. product packaging or labeling; or

g. software products.

24. "Payment card breach" means

an actual or suspected unauthorized disclosure of payment card data stored or processed by 

you arising out of an electronic attack, accidental disclosure or the deliberate actions of a 

rogue employee.

"Payment card breach" does not mean a situation where payment card data is deliberately 

shared with or sold to a third party with the knowledge and consent of a senior executive 

officer.

25. "Period of the policy" means

the period between the inception date and the expiry date or until the Policy is canceled in 

accordance with CONDITION 5



14

CFC Underwriting Limited is Authorized and Regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority 
©1999-2022 CFC Underwriting Ltd, All Rights Reserved Cyber, Private Enterprise v3.0

26. "Policy limit" means

the highest individual limit available where cover is applicable under any Insuring Clause or 

Section as stated in the Declarations page.

27. "Premium" means

the amount stated as the premium in the Declarations page and any subsequent 

adjustments.

28. "Privacy breach" means

an actual or suspected unauthorized disclosure of information arising out of an electronic 

attack, accidental disclosure, theft or the deliberate actions of a rogue employee or third 

party.

"Privacy breach" does not mean a situation where information is deliberately shared with or 

sold to a third party with the knowledge and consent of a senior executive officer.

29. "Regulatory investigation" means

a formal hearing, official investigation, examination, inquiry, legal action or any other similar 

proceeding initiated by a governmental, regulatory, law enforcement, professional or 

statutory body against you.

30. "Reputational harm period" means

the period starting from when the cyber event is first discovered and lasting for the period 

stated as the reputational harm period in the Declarations page.

31. "Senior executive officer" means

board members, C-level executives, in-house lawyers and risk managers of the company.

32. "Subsidiary" means

any entity in which the company has majority ownership of on or before the inception date.

33. "Supply chain partner" means

any:

a. third party that provides you with hosted computing services including infrastructure, 

platform, file storage and application level services; or

b. third party listed as a supply chain partner in an endorsement attaching to this policy 

which we have issued.

34. "System failure" means

any sudden, unexpected and continuous downtime of your computer systems which renders 

them incapable of supporting their normal business function and is caused by an application 

bug, an internal network failure or hardware failure.



15

CFC Underwriting Limited is Authorized and Regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority 
©1999-2022 CFC Underwriting Ltd, All Rights Reserved Cyber, Private Enterprise v3.0

However, in respect of INSURING CLAUSE 3 (SECTION D only), system failure also means any 

sudden, unexpected and continuous downtime of computer systems used directly by a 

supply chain partner which renders them incapable of supporting their normal business 

function and is caused by an application bug, an internal network failure or hardware failure.

System failure does not mean a cyber event.

35. "Technology services" means

means the supply by you of technology services to your client, including but not limited to 

hardware, software, data processing, internet services, data and application hosting, 

computer systems analysis, consulting, training, programming, installation, integration, 

support and network management.

36. "Third party" means

any person who is not an employee or any legal entity that is not the company.

37. "Waiting period" means

the number of hours stated as the waiting period in the Declarations page.

38. "We/our/us" means

the underwriters stated in the Declarations page.

39. "You/your" means

the company, employees and senior executive officers solely acting in the normal course of 

the company's business operations.

 

EXCLUSIONS
 

We will not make any payment under this Policy:

EXCLUSIONS RELATING TO SYSTEM DAMAGE AND BUSINESS INTERRUPTION
In respect of INSURING CLAUSE 3 only: 

1. Business interruption liability

for that part of any claim that constitutes actual or alleged liability to a third party, or legal 

costs in the defense of any claim, including customer compensation.

EXCLUSIONS RELATING TO ALL INSURING CLAUSES

2. Antitrust

in respect of INSURING CLAUSES 5 and 6, for or arising out of any actual or alleged antitrust 

violation, restraint of trade, unfair competition, false, deceptive or unfair trade practices, 

violation of consumer protection laws or false or deceptive advertising.



16

CFC Underwriting Limited is Authorized and Regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority 
©1999-2022 CFC Underwriting Ltd, All Rights Reserved Cyber, Private Enterprise v3.0

3. Associated companies

a. in respect of any claim made by any company, firm or partnership in which the 

company has greater than a 10% executive or financial interest, unless the claim 

emanates from an independent third party;

b. in respect of any claim made by any company, firm, partnership or individual which 

has greater than a 10% executive or financial interest in the company, unless the claim 

emanates from an independent third party;

c. arising out of or resulting from any of your activities as a trustee, partner, officer, 

director or employee of any employee trust, charitable organization, corporation, 

company or business other than that of the company; or

d. in respect of any claim made by or on behalf of the company against a third party.

4. Betterment

which results in you being in a better financial position or you benefitting from upgraded 

versions of your computer systems as a direct result of the event which gave rise to the claim 

under this policy.

However, in the event of a hacking attack, malware infection or computer virus, when 

rebuilding your computer systems we will pay the additional costs and expenses incurred to 

install a more secure and efficient version of the affected computer system, provided that the 

maximum amount we will pay is 25% more than the cost that would have been incurred to 

repair or replace the original model or license. Under no circumstances will we pay the cost of 

acquiring or installing computer systems which did not form a part of your computer systems 

immediately prior to the incident which gave rise to the claim.

This Exclusion will not apply to INSURING CLAUSES 1 (SECTION G only) and 3 (SECTION G 

only).

5. Bodily injury and property damage

arising directly or indirectly out of bodily injury, or tangible property damage.

However, this Exclusion will not apply to INSURING CLAUSES 4 (SECTIONS A, B and C only) 

and 5 for any claim as a direct result of mental injury or emotional distress.



17

CFC Underwriting Limited is Authorized and Regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority 
©1999-2022 CFC Underwriting Ltd, All Rights Reserved Cyber, Private Enterprise v3.0

6. Chargebacks

for any credit card company or bank, wholly or partially, reversing or preventing a payment 

transaction, unless specifically covered under INSURING CLAUSE 4 (SECTION E only) for which 

you have purchased coverage.

7. Core internet infrastructure failure

arising directly from a failure, material degradation or termination of any core element of the 

internet, telecommunications or GPS infrastructure that results in a regional, countrywide or 

global outage of the internet or core telecommunications network, including a failure of the 

core DNS root servers, satellite network or the IP addressing system or an individual state or 

non-state actor turning off all or part of the internet.

8. Domain name suspension or revocation

arising directly or indirectly from the suspension, cancellation, revocation or failure to renew 

any of your domain names or uniform resource locators.

9. Insolvency

arising out of or relating directly or indirectly to your insolvency or bankruptcy, or the 

insolvency or bankruptcy of any third party. However, your insolvency will not relieve us of any 

of our legal obligations under this contract of insurance where this insolvency does not give 

rise to a claim under this Policy.

10. Known claims and circumstances

arising out of any actual or suspected cyber event, claim or circumstance which might give 

rise to a claim under this Policy of which a senior executive officer was aware of, or ought 

reasonably to have been aware of, prior to the continuity date, including any claim or 

circumstance notified to any other insurer.

11. Liquidated damages, service credits and penalty clauses

for liquidated damages or service credits, or arising out of penalty clauses unless you would 

have been liable in the absence of any contract stipulating the liquidated damages or service 

credits or penalty clauses.

12. Loss of economic value

for the reduction in economic or market value (including loss of potential future sales) of any 

of your intellectual property assets.

13. Management liability

for any sums that your senior executive officers become legally obliged to pay, including costs 

and expenses, as a result of any claim made against them arising out of a cyber event.

However, this Exclusion will not apply to INSURING CLAUSE 4 (SECTION C only).



18

CFC Underwriting Limited is Authorized and Regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority 
©1999-2022 CFC Underwriting Ltd, All Rights Reserved Cyber, Private Enterprise v3.0

14. Misleading advertising

arising directly or indirectly from any advertisement, promotion or product description that is 

actually or alleged to be false or misleading.

15. Nuclear

arising directly or indirectly from or contributed to by:

a. ionizing radiations or contamination by radioactivity from any nuclear fuel or from any 

nuclear waste from the combustion of nuclear fuel; or

b. the radioactive, toxic, explosive or other hazardous properties of any explosive nuclear 

assembly or nuclear component.

16. Patent infringement

arising directly or indirectly out of the actual or alleged infringement of any patent or 

inducing the infringement of any patent.

17. Payment card industry related fines, penalties and assessments

for fines, penalties and card brand assessments, including fraud recoveries, operational 

reimbursements, non-cooperation costs and case management fees which you become 

legally obliged to pay your acquiring bank or payment processor as a direct result of a 

payment card breach.

However, this Exclusion will not apply to INSURING CLAUSE 4 (SECTION E only).

18. Power and utility failure

arising directly or indirectly from any:

a. failure in the power supply, including that caused by any surge or spike in voltage, 

electrical current or transferred energy; or

b. failure, disruption or reduction in the supply of utilities, including but not limited to gas 

and water infrastructure or services.

19. Product IP infringement

arising directly or indirectly from the actual or alleged theft or misappropriation of any trade 

secret by an employee from a former employer of theirs or infringement of any intellectual 

property right by any product manufactured, designed, formulated, licensed, distributed, or 

sold by you or the misappropriation of any trade secret by you or a third party.

20. Professional liability

arising directly out of any negligent advice or professional services provided to a client for a 

fee except when arising directly from a cyber event.

However, this Exclusion will not apply to INSURING CLAUSE 6.



19

CFC Underwriting Limited is Authorized and Regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority 
©1999-2022 CFC Underwriting Ltd, All Rights Reserved Cyber, Private Enterprise v3.0

21. Property and hardware costs

for any tangible property repair or replacement including the cost of repairing any hardware 

or replacing any tangible property or equipment that forms part of your computer systems.

However, this Exclusion will not apply to INSURING CLAUSE 3 (SECTION G only).

22. Regular hours staff costs

for contracted salary and bonus costs paid to employees or senior executive officers.

23. Sanctions

or will be deemed to provide any cover, to the extent that the provision of such payment or 

cover will expose us to any sanction, prohibition or restriction under the United Nations 

resolutions or the trade or economic sanctions, laws or regulations of Australia, Canada, the 

European Union, United Kingdom or United States of America.

24. Terrorism

arising directly or indirectly out of:

a. any act or threat of force or violence by an individual or group, whether acting alone or 

on behalf of or in connection with any organization or government, committed for 

political, religious, ideological or similar purposes including the intention to influence 

any government or to put the public, or any section of the public, in fear; or

b. any action taken in controlling, preventing, suppressing or in any way relating to a. 

above.

However, this Exclusion does not apply to a cyber event affecting your computer systems or a 

supply chain partner's computer systems.

25. Theft of funds held in escrow

for theft of money or other financial assets belonging to a third party from a bank account 

held by you on their behalf.

However, this Exclusion will not apply to INSURING CLAUSE 2 (SECTION B only).

26. Uninsurable fines

for fines, penalties, civil or criminal sanctions or multiple, punitive or exemplary damages, 

unless insurable by law.

27. Unlawful surveillance

in respect of any actual or alleged eavesdropping, wiretapping, or unauthorized audio or 

video recording committed by you or by a third party on your behalf with the knowledge and 

consent of your senior executive officers.



20

CFC Underwriting Limited is Authorized and Regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority 
©1999-2022 CFC Underwriting Ltd, All Rights Reserved Cyber, Private Enterprise v3.0

28. Unsolicited communications

arising directly or indirectly from any actual or alleged violation of:

a. the CAN-SPAM Act of 2003 or any subsequent amendments to that Act;

b. the Telephone Consumer Protection Act (TCPA) of 1991 or any subsequent 

amendments to that Act; or

c. any other law, regulation or statute relating to unsolicited communication, 

distribution, sending or transmitting of any communication via telephone or any other 

electronic or telecommunications device.

However, this Exclusion will not apply to INSURING CLAUSE 4 (SECTION A only).

29. War

arising directly or indirectly out of:

a. war, invasion, acts of foreign enemies, hostilities or warlike operations (whether war is 

declared or not), civil war, rebellion, insurrection, civil commotion assuming the 

proportions of or amounting to an uprising, military or usurped power; or

b. any action taken in controlling, preventing, suppressing or in any way relating to a. 

above.

30. Willful or dishonest acts of senior executive officers

arising directly or indirectly out of any willful, criminal, malicious or dishonest act, error or 

omission by a senior executive officer as determined by final adjudication, arbitral tribunal or 

written admission.

 

CONDITIONS
 

1. What you must do if an incident takes place

If any senior executive officer becomes aware of any incident which may reasonably be 

expected to give rise to a claim under this Policy, you must:

a. other than in accordance with CONDITION 2, notify the cyber incident manager as 

soon as is reasonably practicable and follow their directions. However, this notification 

must be made no later than the end of any applicable extended reporting period. A 

telephone call to our cyber incident response line or confirmed notification via our 

cyber incident response app will constitute notification to the cyber incident manager;

b. in respect of INSURING CLAUSE 2 (SECTIONS A, B and C only), report the incident to 

the appropriate law enforcement authorities; and

c. in respect of INSURING CLAUSES 4, 5 and 6, not admit liability for or settle or make or 

promise any payment or incur any costs and expenses without our prior written 

agreement (which will not be unreasonably withheld).



21

CFC Underwriting Limited is Authorized and Regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority 
©1999-2022 CFC Underwriting Ltd, All Rights Reserved Cyber, Private Enterprise v3.0

Due to the nature of the coverage offered by this Policy, any unreasonable delay by you in 

notifying the cyber incident manager could lead to the size of the claim increasing or to our 

rights of recovery being restricted. We will not be liable for that portion of any claim that is 

due to any unreasonable delay in you notifying the cyber incident manager of any incident in 

accordance with this clause. However, if you are prevented from notifying us by a legal or 

regulatory obligation then your rights under this Policy will not be affected.

If you discover a cyber event you may only incur costs without our prior written consent 

within the first 72 hours following the discovery and any third party costs incurred must be 

with a company forming part of the approved claims panel providers. All other costs may only 

be incurred with the prior written consent of the cyber incident manager (which will not be 

unreasonably withheld).

2. What you must do in the event of a circumstance which could give rise to a claim

In respect of INSURING CLAUSES 5 and 6, should a senior executive officer become aware of:

a. a situation during the period of the policy that could give rise to a claim; or

b. an allegation or complaint made or intimated against you during the period of the 

policy;

then you have the option of whether to report this circumstance to us or not. However, if you 

choose not to report it this circumstance we will not be liable for that portion of any claim that 

is greater than it would have been had you reported this circumstance.

If you choose to report this circumstance you must do so no later than the end of any 

applicable extended reporting period for it to be considered under this Policy and we will 

require you to provide full details of the circumstance, including but not limited to:

a. the time, place and nature of the circumstance;

b. the manner in which you first became aware of this circumstance;

c. the reasons why you believe that this circumstance could give rise to a claim;

d. the identity of the potential claimant; and

e. an indication as to the size of the claim that could result from this circumstance.

Any subsequent claim arising directly from this circumstance will be deemed to have been 

made at the time this circumstance was notified to us and we will regard this claim as having 

been notified under this Policy.



22

CFC Underwriting Limited is Authorized and Regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority 
©1999-2022 CFC Underwriting Ltd, All Rights Reserved Cyber, Private Enterprise v3.0

3. Additional insureds

We will indemnify any third party as an additional insured under this Policy, but only in 

respect of sums which they become legally obliged to pay (including liability for claimants' 

costs and expenses) as a result of a claim arising solely out of an act, error or omission 

committed by you, provided that:

a. you contracted in writing to indemnify the third party for the claim prior to it first 

being made against them; and

b. had the claim been made against you, then you would be entitled to indemnity under 

this Policy.

Before we indemnify any additional insured they must:

a. prove to us that the claim arose solely out of an act, error or omission committed by 

you; and

b. fully comply with CONDITION 1 as if they were you.

Where a third party is treated as an additional insured as a result of this Condition, any claim 

made by that third party against you will be treated by us as if they were a third party and not 

as an insured.

4. Agreement to pay claims (duty to defend)

We have the right and duty to take control of and conduct in your name the investigation, 

settlement or defense of any claim. We will not have any duty to pay costs and expenses for 

any part of a claim that is not covered by this Policy.

You may ask the cyber incident manager to consider appointing your own lawyer to defend 

the claim on your behalf and the cyber incident manager may grant your request if they 

consider your lawyer is suitably qualified by experience, taking into account the subject 

matter of the claim, and the cost to provide a defense.

We will endeavor to settle any claim through negotiation, mediation or some other form of 

alternative dispute resolution and will pay on your behalf the amount we agree with the 

claimant. If we cannot settle using these means, we will pay the amount which you are found 

liable to pay either in court or through arbitration proceedings, subject to the policy limit and 

incident response limit.

We will not settle any claim without your consent. If you refuse to provide your consent to a 

settlement recommended by us and elect to continue legal proceedings in connection with 

the claim, any further costs and expenses incurred will be paid by you and us on a 

proportional basis, with 80% payable by us and 20% payable by you. As a consequence of your 

refusal, our liability for the claim, excluding costs and expenses, will not be more than the 

amount for which the claim could have been settled.



23

CFC Underwriting Limited is Authorized and Regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority 
©1999-2022 CFC Underwriting Ltd, All Rights Reserved Cyber, Private Enterprise v3.0

5. Cancellation

This Policy may be canceled with 30 days written notice by either you or us.

If you give us notice of cancellation, the return premium will be in proportion to the number 

of days that the Policy is in effect. However, if you have made a claim under this Policy there 

will be no return premium.

If we give you notice of cancellation, the return premium will be in proportion to the number 

of days that the Policy is in effect.

We also reserve the right of cancellation in the event that any amount due to us by you 

remains unpaid more than 60 days beyond the inception date. If we exercise this right of 

cancellation it will take effect from 14 days after the date the written notice of cancellation is 

issued.

The Policy Administration Fee will be deemed fully earned upon inception of the Policy.

6. Continuous cover

If you have neglected, through error or oversight only, to report an incident discovered by you 

that might give rise to a claim under this Policy during the period of a previous renewal of this 

Policy issued to you by us, then provided that you have maintained uninterrupted insurance 

of the same type with us since the expiry of that earlier Policy, then, notwithstanding 

EXCLUSION 10, we will permit the matter to be reported under this Policy and we will 

indemnify you, provided that:

a. the indemnity will be subject to the applicable limit of liability of the earlier Policy 

under which the matter should have been reported or the policy limit plus the 

incident response limit, whichever is the lower;

b. we may reduce the indemnity entitlement by the monetary equivalent of any 

prejudice which has been suffered as a result of the delayed notification; and

c. the indemnity will be subject to all of the terms, Conditions, Definitions and Exclusions 

of this Policy, other than a) above.

7. Extended reporting period

An extended reporting period of 60 days following the expiry date will be automatically 

granted at no additional premium. This extended reporting period will cover, subject to all 

other terms, conditions and exclusions of this Policy:

a. any claim first made against you during the period of the policy and reported to us 

during this extended reporting period;

b. any cyber event, loss or system failure first discovered by you during the period of the 

policy and reported to us during this extended reporting period; and

c. any circumstance that a senior executive officer became aware of during the period of 

the policy and reports to us during this extended reporting period.



24

CFC Underwriting Limited is Authorized and Regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority 
©1999-2022 CFC Underwriting Ltd, All Rights Reserved Cyber, Private Enterprise v3.0

No claim will be accepted by us in this 60 day extended reporting period if you are entitled to 

indemnity under any other insurance, or would be entitled to indemnity under such 

insurance if its limit of liability was not exhausted.

8. Optional extended reporting period

If we or you decline to renew or cancel this Policy then you will have the right to have issued 

an endorsement providing an optional extended reporting period for the duration stated in 

the Declarations page which will be effective from the cancelation or non-renewal date. This 

optional extended reporting period will cover, subject to all other terms, conditions and 

exclusions of this Policy:

a. any claim first made against you and reported to us during this optional extended 

reporting period, provided that the claim arises out of any act, error or omission 

committed prior to the date of cancelation or non-renewal; and

b. any cyber event, loss or system failure first discovered by you during this optional 

extended reporting period, provided that the cyber event, loss or system failure 

occurred during the period of the policy;

If you would like to purchase the optional extended reporting period you must notify us and 

pay us the optional extended reporting period premium stated in the Declarations page 

within 30 days of cancelation or non-renewal.

The right to the optional extended reporting period will not be available to you where 

cancelation or non-renewal by us is due to non-payment of the premium or your failure to pay 

any amounts in excess of the applicable policy limit and incident response limit or within the 

amount of the applicable deductible as is required by this Policy in the payment of claims.

At the renewal of this Policy, our quotation of different premium, deductible, limits of liability 

or changes in policy language will not constitute non-renewal by us.

9. Fraudulent claims

If it is determined by final adjudication, arbitral tribunal or written admission by you, that you 

notified us of any claim knowing it to be false or fraudulent in any way, we will have no 

responsibility to pay that claim, we may recover from you any sums paid in respect of that 

claim and we reserve the right to terminate this Policy from the date of the fraudulent act. If 

we exercise this right we will not be liable to return any premium to you. However, this will not 

affect any claim under this Policy which has been previously notified to us.



25

CFC Underwriting Limited is Authorized and Regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority 
©1999-2022 CFC Underwriting Ltd, All Rights Reserved Cyber, Private Enterprise v3.0

10. Innocent non-disclosure

We will not seek to avoid the Policy or reject any claim on the grounds of non-disclosure or 

misrepresentation except where the non-disclosure or misrepresentation was reckless or 

deliberate.

11. Mergers and acquisitions

If you acquire an entity during the period of the policy whose annual revenue does not exceed 

20% of the company's annual revenue, as stated in its most recent financial statements, cover 

is automatically extended under this Policy to include the acquired entity as a subsidiary.

If you acquire an entity during the period of the policy whose annual revenue exceeds 20% of 

the company's annual revenue, as stated in its most recent financial statements, cover is 

automatically extended under this Policy to include the acquired entity as a subsidiary for a 

period of 45 days.

We will consider providing cover for the acquired entity after the period of 45 days if:

a. you give us full details of the entity within 45 days of its acquisition; and

b. you accept any amendment to the terms and conditions of this Policy or agree to pay 

any additional premium required by us.

In the event you do not comply with a. or b. above, cover will automatically terminate for the 

entity 45 days after the date of its acquisition.

Cover for any acquired entity is only provided under this Policy for any act, error or omission 

committed on or after the date of its acquisition.

No cover will be automatically provided under this Policy for any acquired entity:

a. whose business activities are materially different from your business activities;

b. that has been the subject of any lawsuit, disciplinary action or regulatory investigation 

in the 3 year period prior to its acquisition; or

c. that has experienced a cyber event in the 3 year period prior to its acquisition, if the 

cyber event cost more than the highest deductible of this Policy.

If during the period of the policy you consolidate, merge with or are acquired by another 

entity then all coverage under this Policy will terminate at the date of the consolidation, 

merger or acquisition unless we have issued an endorsement extending coverage, and you 

have agreed to any additional premium and terms of coverage required by us.

12. Our rights of recovery

You must maintain all of your rights of recovery against any third party and make these 

available to us where possible.



26

CFC Underwriting Limited is Authorized and Regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority 
©1999-2022 CFC Underwriting Ltd, All Rights Reserved Cyber, Private Enterprise v3.0

We will not exercise any rights of recovery against any employee or senior executive officer, 

unless this is in respect of any fraudulent or dishonest acts or omissions as proven by final 

adjudication, arbitral tribunal or written admission by you.

Any recoveries will be applied in proportion to the amounts paid by you and us.

13. Prior subsidiaries

Should an entity cease to be a subsidiary after the inception date, cover in respect of the 

entity will continue as if it was still a subsidiary during the period of the policy, but only in 

respect of an act, error, omission or event occurring prior to the date that it ceased to be a 

subsidiary.

14. Process for adjustment of business interruption losses

In order to determine the amount of loss following an interruption to your business 

operations covered under INSURING CLAUSE 3 (SECTIONS B, C, D and E only), the cyber 

incident manager will appoint an independent expert agreed between you and us which will 

be paid for by us in accordance with INSURING CLAUSE 3 (SECTION F only).

If an independent expert cannot be agreed upon, one will be appointed by an arbitrator 

mutually agreed between you and us whose decision will be final and binding.

Once an independent expert has been appointed, their calculation of loss will be final and 

binding.

15. Process for paying privacy breach notification costs

Any privacy breach notification transmitted by you or on your behalf must be done with our 

prior written consent. We will ensure that notification is compliant with any legal or 

regulatory requirements and contractual obligations. No offer must be made for financial 

incentives, gifts, coupons, credits or services unless with our prior written consent which will 

only be provided if the offer is commensurate with the risk of harm.

We will not be liable for any portion of the costs you incur under INSURING CLAUSE 1 

(SECTION E only) that exceed the costs that you would have incurred had you gained our 

prior written consent. In the absence of our prior written consent we will only be liable to pay 

you the equivalent cost of a notification made using the most cost effective means 

permissible under the governing law.

16. Supply chain interruption events

In respect of INSURING CLAUSE 3 (SECTION D only), it is a condition precedent to liability 

under this Policy that you submit to us a written report from the supply chain partner 

confirming the root cause and length of the outage.



27

CFC Underwriting Limited is Authorized and Regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority 
©1999-2022 CFC Underwriting Ltd, All Rights Reserved Cyber, Private Enterprise v3.0

17. Choice of law and service of suit

In the event of a dispute between you and us regarding this Policy, the dispute will be 

governed by the laws of the State of the United States of America shown as the choice of law 

stated in the Declarations page. We agree, at your request, to submit to the jurisdiction of a 

court of competent jurisdiction within the United States of America.

Nothing in this Condition constitutes or should be understood to constitute a waiver of our 

rights to commence an action in any court of competent jurisdiction in the United States of 

America, to move an action to a United States District Court, or to seek a transfer of a case to 

another court as permitted by the laws of the United States of America or the laws of any 

State of the United States of America.

It is further agreed that service of process in such suit may be made upon the law firm stated 

in the Declarations page and that in any suit instituted against us, we will abide by the final 

decision of such court or of any appellate court in the event of an appeal. The law firm stated 

in the Declarations page is authorized and directed to accept service of process on our behalf 

in any such suit and, at your request, to give a written undertaking to you that they will enter 

a general appearance on our behalf in the event such suit is instituted.

Additionally, in accordance with the statute of any state, territory or district of the United 

States which makes such a provision, we hereby designate the Superintendent, 

Commissioner or Director of Insurance or other officer specified for that purpose in the 

statute, or his successor or successors in office, as our true and lawful attorney upon whom 

may be served any lawful process in any action, suit or proceeding instituted by you arising 

out of this Policy. The law firm stated in the Declarations page is hereby designated as the 

firm to whom the above mentioned officer is authorized to mail such process or a copy 

thereof.



      mahoneygroup.com  Confidence to Face Whatever Lies Ahead 

When to Notify Us 
Please inform us whenever a significant change in your business takes place, such as: 

 Expansion to additional locations 

 New construction 

 Changes in property values 

 Ownership change 

 Sudden increase/decrease in sales 

 Increased/decreased hazards 

 Security or protection change 

 Product line change 

 New contractual obligations 

 Vehicle change 

Above are only examples of situations which we should be made aware. There are others as well. If 

you have any questions, please call us right away. 



      mahoneygroup.com  Confidence to Face Whatever Lies Ahead 

Disclaimer 
This is a summary of proposed insurance coverage, not a legal contract. It does not constitute an 

acceptance or binding of coverage. The terms and conditions of the proposal does not present all the 

terms, conditions, limitations, and exclusions that are contained in the policy and that may govern in 

the event of a loss. Please refer to the actual policies for specific terms, conditions, limitations, and 

exclusions that will govern in the event of loss.  

Specimen copies of these policies may be available for your review prior to the binding of coverage. 

In evaluating your exposure to loss, we have relied upon information provided to us by you. You 

should review the proposed coverage to confirm that it reflects the coverage, limits and terms that 

you require. Higher limits for property and liability may be available. If there are other areas that 

need to be evaluated prior to binding coverage, or if any of the information you provided is now 

inaccurate, please bring these areas to our attention.  

Should there be a change in your business or exposures after coverage is bound, please let us know 

so that proper coverage changes can be discussed. 

In the event of a discrepancy between this presentation and the policy, the policy will supersede this 

presentation. 

Requests to bind or change coverage through email, voice mail or other means will not take effect 

until you receive written communication from your Mahoney Group team confirming coverage is 

bound. 

Payment Definitions 
Agency Bill 

Payment is made to The Mahoney Group at the address shown in our invoice. All invoices, including 

installment invoices, are due on the stated effective date.  

Direct Bill 

Payment is made directly to the insurance company, at the address shown on their invoice. It is 

critical that payments are made on time to ensure that coverage remains in force. We are not 

informed of payments due, received, or past-due. As such, we cannot provide notification of 

cancellation. The insurance company will cancel if payments are not made on time. 

Premium Finance 

We can help you in making financing arrangements with a premium finance company. We will collect 

the down payment and the signed finance agreement and submit it to the finance company. Once 

the agreement is in place, you will make payments directly to the premium finance company, to 

ensure that coverage remains in force. We are not informed of payments due, received, or past-due. 

As such, we cannot provide notification of cancellation. 



      mahoneygroup.com  Confidence to Face Whatever Lies Ahead 

Service Performance Plan 

Actual TMG 

Start Complete Responsibility Responsibility Approval 

Overall 

Review status of “unaddressed” insurance 
and bonding lines 

Establish operating standards and 
response regimes 

Conduct comprehensive program analysis  

Deliver competitive quotes on all 
unaddressed lines 

Position program for positive repricing 

Administration  

Identify/introduce team members 

Meet to discuss certificate needs 

Issue binders, auto ID cards and 
certificates 

Monitor progress of policy issuance and 
delivery 

Perform contract reviews 

Monitor policy changes 

Perform midterm review 

Meet to discuss renewal program 

Loss Control 

Meet with loss control  

Develop loss control action plan  

Visit out of state locations 

Develop measurable goals by region 

Coordinate and monitor loss control 
activities and progress 

Review loss trending, benchmarking and 
goal-setting 

Claims Management 

Meet to review claim procedures and 
reporting 



      mahoneygroup.com  Confidence to Face Whatever Lies Ahead 

Continuously track and monitor all 
reported claims 

Schedule and attend claim reviews 

Coordinate and monitor claim activities 
for all locations 

Serve as liaison between client, insurer 
and/or claims servicing parties 

Act as advocate on disputes, issues and 
problems 

Provide claim status updates 

Evaluate claims handling performance of 
TPA or service contractors 

Resources 

Select client portal administrator 

Determine site access 

Conduct client portal training 

Conduct online OSHA 300 Log training 



      mahoneygroup.com  Confidence to Face Whatever Lies Ahead 

How Do We Measure Up? 

Service Description 

Check here if 

your current 

broker offers this 

service 

Insurance 

Market Access 

We provide access to most insurance and administration 

markets. 

National 

Affiliations 

In addition to our own talented professionals and specialized 

value-added services, we have a wealth of resources available to 

us through several national affiliations. 

Strategic 

Planning 

We will develop a customized strategic plan for you that defines 

objectives and outlines the actions needed to fulfill those 

objectives. Our services ensure an organized, complete approach 

to fulfilling your risk management needs. 

Five-Star 

Service 

We pride ourselves on the level of knowledge and service we 

bring to our clients. All of our clients are assigned a team of 

specialists dedicated to serving their needs. Each client accesses 

our team through a single point of contact, making working with 

us seamless and easy. 

Experience 
We have a proven track record of dedication and commitment to 

excellence in our service to the business community. 

Technology 
We use leading-edge technology to provide our customers with 

the latest data analysis and compliance tools. 

Workers’ Comp 

Mod Evaluation 

Our ModMaster® tool helps us pinpoint the cost drivers of your 

workers’ compensation premiums and claims, and identify loss 

control solutions to save you money. We can also forecast how 

payroll or loss trends will affect your costs in the future. 

Client Portal 

All of our clients receive access to a personalized website. The 

site is devoted to helping you with cost containment and safety 

programs, OSHA compliance, claims reporting, employee 

communication and more! 

OSHA 

Compliance 

All of our P&C clients have access to an online tool used to create 

accurate OSHA logs and reports on demand. We also provide 

timely and relevant legislative updates when changes are made 

at the federal level. 



      mahoneygroup.com  Confidence to Face Whatever Lies Ahead 

Online Services 

Provide 24/7 reporting services. Reporting claims, adding or 

deleting drivers and vehicles, or requesting a certificate of 

insurance is as easy as sending an email. 

Custom 

Communication

With an extensive library of cost containment and loss control 

tools, we provide a broad range of communications, including 

ready-to-use employee newsletters, posters and payroll stuffers. 

Resources 

From asbestos to welding safety to workers’ comp statutes, our 

client portal Resource links offer your clients quick access to a 

wide variety of industry-related references. 

Client Portal 

Community 

When partnering with us, you gain access to professionals from all 

over the country through the Community section of your client 

portal. An answer to a problem you have is just an e-mail away.  



      mahoneygroup.com  Confidence to Face Whatever Lies Ahead 

Claims Solutions 
Insurance policies come with specific claim reporting requirements. Please make sure you 

understand these obligations. Contact your Mahoney Group team with any questions.  

Claims Made Policy (Applicable to any coverage that is identified as claims made)  

A claims-made policy will only cover claims reported to the insurer during the policy period or 

applicable extended reporting period. Late reporting or failure to report pursuant to the policy’s 

requirements could result in a disclaimer of coverage by the insurer. Any business or organization 

with Employment Practices Liability (EPL) or Directors & Officers (D&O) with EPL coverage must give 

notice to the insurer of any charges/complaints brought by any state or federal agency involving an 

employee. To preserve your rights under the policy, it is important that timely notice be given to the 

insurer, whether or not a right to sue letter has been issued. 

Claims Cost Containment and Advocacy 
Part of any solid loss control program includes claims cost containment strategies. The Mahoney 

Group is committed to providing you with proactive claims management services focused on 

minimizing overall claims expenses. This includes:

Managing Claims 

 Initial procedure set-up meetings 

 Claim review meetings 

 Advocacy assistance 

 24-hour emergency claim reporting



      mahoneygroup.com  Confidence to Face Whatever Lies Ahead 

Claims Cost Containment & Fraud Strategies  

From conducting an accident investigation to educational information on how to detect fraud, our 

claims cost containment resources will help you to minimize losses and protect your bottom line. 

This includes proper reporting, accident investigation, implementing a return to work program, 

educating employees, etc. 

Claims Data Analytics 

We can help you to take your claims analysis to the next level with our data analytics. We 

do so in part by carefully reviewing the data to answer the following questions:  

 What specific factors are driving total claims dollars and counts? 

 Which departments or divisions can serve as models for best practices in resolving claims? How 

can you best reduce outstanding reserve dollars? 

 What specific loss sources are driving frequency and severity rates? 

 Which specific locations, departments and loss sources are contributing to high cost claims? 

 Are veteran employees or newer workers injured more frequently? What type of training is 

needed for these specific groups of employees? 

ModMaster® 
Realize your company’s full potential for cost savings with a complete workers’ compensation 

Experience Modification Factor analysis. With ModMaster, we can help you better understand your 

“mod” rating and determine the exact impact claims are having on your premiums and project just 

how much you could be saving down the road.   



      mahoneygroup.com  Confidence to Face Whatever Lies Ahead 

Risk Management Solutions: Overview 
Based on our loss control and risk assessments, The Mahoney Group will provide you with loss 

control solutions tailored to your unique needs. To support your safety program initiatives and to 

control losses, we can provide access to a host of materials including:  

 Hundreds of safety materials, including employee safety handbooks, formal workplace programs, 

and educational materials for employees 

 Workplace safety checklists designed to help you to audit your safety procedures and practices 

quickly and easily 

 OSHA compliance 

reference, training 

and presentation 

materials to support 

your compliance 

needs 

 Workers’ 

compensation 

materials to help you 

control your mod and 

reducing lost-time 

injury rates  

 Employer- and 

employee-specific 

safety education 

materials 

 Ergonomics tools to 

reduce lost time 

injuries and keep employees healthy 

 Safety committee resources 

 Risk management and coverage insights 

 Certificate of request resources 

 Claims cost containment forms and resources 

The following section highlights some of the loss control solutions that we can provide you. 



      mahoneygroup.com  Confidence to Face Whatever Lies Ahead 

Risk Management Portal 

Our Succeed Risk Management Center is a secure, comprehensive risk management and 
safety solution platform designed to improve risk management, loss control and prevention, and 
OSHA compliance efforts and results.  

The Risk Management Center is easy to set up, accessible anywhere and anytime, and provides a 
cost-effective risk management and safety center for your entire organization across all departments 
and locations. 

You can also access a host of loss-control materials on our Risk Management Center portal including 
the following: 

  Employee safety pamphlets and 
handbooks 
  Workplace safety checklists 
  OSHA compliance reference, training 
and presentation materials 
  Workers’ compensation materials to 
help you control your mod and reducing 
lost-time injury rates 
  Ergonomics tools to reduce lost-time 
injuries and keep employees healthy 
  Safety committee resources 
  Risk management and coverage 
insights 
  Claims cost containment forms and 
resources 



      mahoneygroup.com  Confidence to Face Whatever Lies Ahead 

Employer Risk Management Solutions 

Whether it’s helping you understand what impacts your workers’ compensation experience 

modification factor (mod), your employment practices liability risk or alerting you to new OSHA 

compliance requirements, we have the resources to keep you informed.  

To help you stay abreast of current risk, compliance and coverage issues, we will provide you timely 

news and information that ensures you’re able to understand and manage your risk. A few samples 

of the type of information we will provide are featured below: 



      mahoneygroup.com  Confidence to Face Whatever Lies Ahead 

Employer Workplace Safety Solutions 

To support your company’s safety program initiatives and to control losses, we will provide you 

access to a large collection of workplace safety materials that help you to develop, audit, enhance 

and support your safety program and workplace practices quickly and easily. Resources include 

employee safety manuals, workplace policies, safety and return to work policies, safety committee 

materials, safe operating procedures and workplace safety checklists — to name a few. 



      mahoneygroup.com  Confidence to Face Whatever Lies Ahead 

OSHA Compliance 

The Mahoney Group will help you to meet OSHA program and training requirements with 

materials geared to your business. Our resources include the following: 

 How to prepare for an OSHA official visit 

 Full program planning and training resources, including: 

 Formal programs 
 Training presentations and presenter’s notes 
 Employee training handouts and quizzes 
 Sign-in logs for easy recordkeeping compliance 



      mahoneygroup.com  Confidence to Face Whatever Lies Ahead 

OSHA Reporting and Analysis 
Our online resources include: 

 Up-to-the minute recording of OSHA 

Log incidents 

 Incident reporting and analysis 

 Drill-down by injury type, body part, 

groups or divisions, and time period 

 Instant calculation of incident rates 

and comparisons to national 

averages based on your SIC code, 

including printing of annual 300A 

Summary 



      mahoneygroup.com  Confidence to Face Whatever Lies Ahead 

Workers’ Compensation 

Our Workers’ Compensation resources help you to understand what contributes to total claim costs 

and ways to minimize your risk. From understanding your experience modification factor, or mod, to 

establishing Return to Work program activities, a sampling of our workers’ compensation solutions 

for frontline managers and employees includes: 



      mahoneygroup.com  Confidence to Face Whatever Lies Ahead 

Safety Matters Toolbox Talks  

According to OSHA, one of the most effective ways to develop a safety-minded culture is to involve 

employees in ongoing “toolbox talk” safety meetings. These brief and informal meetings allow you 

the opportunity to gather workers together to alert them about potential workplace hazards. To 

provide tools to frontline managers, we offer a complete line of Safety Matters flyers including the 

following: 

 Hand Tool Safety  
 Fire Safety 
 Defensive Driving 

Techniques 
 Safe Lifting Techniques 
 Accident Prevention 
 Ladder Safety 

 Slips and Falls 



      mahoneygroup.com  Confidence to Face Whatever Lies Ahead 

Playing it Safe Communications 

To help promote your safety message to employees, we also provide a complete line of Playing it 
Safe flyers and posters including the following: 

 Eliminate Back Pain  
 Driver Distractions 
 Summer Precautions for 

Outdoor Workers 
 Lockout/Tagout Safety 
 Don’t Slip Up and Trip Up 
 Driver Safety 
 Protect Yourself from Eye 

Injuries 



      mahoneygroup.com  Confidence to Face Whatever Lies Ahead 

Business Continuity Planning  

With one in four small businesses unable to reopen their doors after a disaster, business 

contingency planning is a core risk management principle. We will help you develop a plan that 

allows you to:   

 Protect the well-being of employees, their families and customers 

 Minimize loss of revenue/customers 

 Maintain public image and reputation 

 Minimize loss of data 

 Minimize the critical decisions to be made in a time of crisis 

 Resume business operations are swiftly as possible 



      mahoneygroup.com  Confidence to Face Whatever Lies Ahead 



2023 Employee Benefit Program 
Plan Renewals & Contributions

Renewal Date:  7/1/2023
Presented by: Andrea Trevino & Michael Armenta

CREST INSURANCE GROUP

Tubac Fire District Renewal Analysis



Line of Coverage % change 
from current

% change 
from current

Medical
(Employer Contributes)

EMI Health $249,115 EMI Health $257,768 3.47% EMI Health $252,962 1.54%

Dental
(Employer Contributes)

MetLife $18,832 MetLife $19,398 3% EMI Health $17,675 -6%

Vision
(Employer Contributes)

VSP $4,425 VSP $4,425 0% EMI Health $4,691 6%

Base Life & AD&D
(100% ER Paid)

MetLife $3,548 MetLife $4,014 13.1% MetLife $4,014 13.1%

Supplementary Life
(Voluntary)

MetLife $3,112 MetLife $3,112 0% MetLife $3,112 0%

Short Term Disability
(100% ER Paid)

MetLife $5,623 MetLife $5,623 0% MetLife $5,623 0%

Est. Annual Total Premiums 

Annual $ Change

Annual % Change

Alternate Renewals
7/1/2023-2024

$282,454

-$3,422

1.23%

Current Plans
7/1/2022-2023

Final Renewals
7/1/2023-2024

$279,032 $288,717

n/a
$9,685

3.47%

2

 2023 Renewal Comparative Financial Summary



In Network Out of Network In Network Out of Network In Network Out of Network In Network Out of Network In Network Out of Network In Network Out of Network

$1,500 ♦ 
$3,000

$3,000 ♦ $6,000
$3,000 ♦ 
$6,000

$6,000 ♦ 
$12,000

$1,500 ♦ 
$3,000

$3,000 ♦ $6,000 $3,000 ♦ $6,000
$6,000 ♦ 
$12,000

$1,500 ♦ 
$3,000

$3,000 ♦ $6,000
$3,000 ♦ 
$6,000

$6,000 ♦ 
$12,000

80% ♦ 20% 50% ♦ 50% 100% ♦ 0% 50% ♦ 50% 80% ♦ 20% 50% ♦ 50% 100% ♦ 0% 50% ♦ 50% 80% ♦ 20% 50% ♦ 50% 100% ♦ 0% 50% ♦ 50%

$3,500 ♦ 
$7,000

$7,000 ♦ 
$14,000

$3,000 ♦ 
$6,000

$6,000 ♦ 
$12,000

$3,500 ♦ 
$7,000

$7,000 ♦ 
$14,000

$3,000 ♦ $6,000
$6,000 ♦ 
$12,000

$3,500 ♦ 
$7,000

$7,000 ♦ 
$14,000

$3,000 ♦ 
$6,000

$6,000 ♦ 
$12,000

RATES PPO HDHP

Employee Only 8 3

Employee + Spouse 0 2

Employee + Child(ren) 2 3

Employee + Family 7 2

27

Est. Combined Annual Premium 27

$854.49 $744.63

$773.11 $673.71

$1,302.09 $1,134.68

Est. Monthly Premium by plan

$8,653

3.47%

$13,916 $6,844

$166,993 $82,122

$249,115

n/a

n/a

$172,495 $85,273

$257,768

Annual Premium Change from Current

Percent Change from Current

Est. Annual Premium by plan

$1500 80% PPO $3000 100% QHDHP

In Network Benefit In Network Benefit

100% Covered 100% Covered

$406.90 $354.59 $420.31 $368.20

$1,344.99 $1,178.21

$14,375 $7,106.08

$882.65 $773.19

$798.60 $699.56

 RENEWAL 2023-2024 EMI PLANS

Inpatient Hospitalization

Prescription Drugs

Office Visiit - Non-Preventive

Urgent Care

Emergency Room 

Preventive Care

Deductible (Individual ♦ Family)

MEDICAL

Description of Coverage

Max Out-of-Pocket (Individual ♦ Family)

Coinsurance (on allowed amount)

$1500 80% PPO $3000 100% QHDHP

In Network Benefit In Network Benefit

PPO HDHP

100% Covered 100% Covered

CURRENT 2022-2023 EMI PLANS

PPO HDHP

Bundling EMI Dental and Vision 2023-2024

PPO HDHP

$1500 80% PPO $3000 100% QHDHP

In Network Benefit In Network Benefit

100% Covered

Subject to deductible first.  
Then covered at 100%.

100% Covered

$412.47 $361.33

$866.19 $758.78

$783.71 $686.51

$1,319.92 $1,156.24

$14,107 $6,973.56

$169,279 $83,683

$252,962

$3,847

1.54%

Subject to deductible first.  
Then covered at 100%.

$25 PCP / $40 Specialist

Covered 80% after deductible

$250 Copay

$50 Copay

$10 / $30 / $60 / 25%

$25 PCP / $40 Specialist

Covered 80% after deductible

$250 Copay

$50 Copay

$10 / $30 / $60 / 25%

Subject to deductible first.  
Then covered at 100%.

$25 PCP / $40 Specialist

Covered 80% after deductible

$250 Copay

$50 Copay

$10 / $30 / $60 / 25%

4/12/2023 3

Tubac Fire District - MEDICAL - Current VS Renewal VS Bundled Discount



Out-of-
Network

Out-of-
Network

Out-of-
Network

Out-of-
Network

Annual Maximum

Deductible

Waived for Preventive NO NO NO NO

Preventive 100% 100% 100% 100%

Basic 80% 80% 80% 80%

Major 50% 50% 50% 50%

Rates

Employee Only 10 10 10 10

Employee Plus Spouse 2 2 2 2

Employee Plus Child(ren) 5 5 5 5

Employee Plus Family 8 8 8 8

Estimated Monthly Premium 25 25 25 25

Combined Monthly Premium

Combined Annual Premium

Ann. $ Change from Current

Ann. % Change from Current

$65.53

$106.71

n/a 3.0%

$1,616.47

$1,616

$19,398

$566

$18,832

$1,569.34

n/a

$1,569

$63.62

$30.48

$65.17

In Network

DPPO Network

$2,000 per person

$50 Individual
$150 Family Max

YES

VOLUNTARY
DENTAL OPTION

$29.59

$63.27

DPPO Network

Current MetLife
2022-2023

In Network

100%

Single Plan

EMI ALTERNATE

Single Plan

In Network

Summit Plus (Cigna)

$103.60

Single Plan

$2,000 per person

$50 Individual
$150 Family Max

100%

80%

50%

YES

50%

80%

Renewal MetLife 
2023-2024

100%

80%

50%

$2,000 per person

$50 Individual
$150 Family Max

YES

1 Year Ren. Rate

$28.30

$59.00

$1,416

$16,996

-$2,402

-12.4%

$60.50

$89.10

$1,416.30

80%

100%

YES

$2,000 per person

$62.90

$61.40

50%

2 Year Ren. Rate

$29.40

EMI ALTERNATE

Single Plan

Summit Plus (Cigna)

In Network

$50 Individual
$150 Family Max

-8.9%

$92.70

$1,472.90

$1,473

$17,675

-$1,724

4/12/2023 4

Tubac Fire District - DENTAL - Current VS Renewal VS Bundled Discount



EMI ALTERNATE
Current 2022-2023 Renewal 2023-2024 Renewal 2023-2024

VSP Choice VSP Choice VSP Choice
In Network In Network In Network

$10 Copay $10 Copay $10 Copay

Once per 12 months Once per 12 months Once per 12 months

$15 Materials Copay $15 Materials Copay $10 Materials Copay

Once per 12 months Once per 12 months Once per 12 months

$150 Allowance $150 Allowance $160 Allowance

Once per 24 months Once per 24 months Once per 12 months

$15 Materials Copay $15 Materials Copay $15 Materials Copay

Up to $60 Copay Up to $60 Copay $15 Copay

$150 Allowance $150 Allowance $160 Allowance

Employee Only 8 $7.99 $7.99 $6.70

Employee + Spouse 2 $13.04 $13.04 $14.50

Employee + Child(ren) 7 $12.78 $12.78 $15.50

Employee + Family 9 $21.03 $21.03 $22.20

Estimated Monthly Premium 26 $368.73 $368.73 $390.90

$4,425 $4,425 $4,691

N/A $0 $266

N/A 0% 6%

Ann. Premium Change 

Ann. % Change from Current

Lenses Frequency

  Lenticular Lenses

  Trifocal Lenses

Frames Coverage

Rates

Estimated Annual Premium

  Elective

  Medically  Necessary

Contact Lens Coverage

Lenses Coverage

Examination Frequency

Covered in full after 
copay

Covered in full after 
copay

Frames Frequency

Covered in full after 
copay

  Bifocal Lenses

  Single Vison Lenses

VOLUNTARY VISION

Examination Coverage

Description of Coverage

VSP

Network

4/12/2023 5

Tubac Fire District - VISION - Current VS Renewal VS Bundled Discount



Current 2022-2023 Renewal 2023-2024

Basic Life/AD&D
Benefit to Employee

1x Annual Earnings 1x Annual Earnings

Basic Life/AD&D
Max Benefit to Employee

Flat $75,000 Flat $75,000

Rates per $1,000

Life Rate $0.233 $0.269

AD&D Rate $0.041 $0.041

Volume (Covered Benefit) $1,079,050 $1,079,050

Total Monthly Premium $295.66 $334.51

Annual Premium $3,548 $4,014

Ann Premium Change From Current n/a $466

Ann. % Change from Current N/A 13%

BASE LIFE / AD&D
MetLife

4/12/2023 6

Tubac  Fire  District  -  BASIC  LIFE  -  Current  VS  Renewal

















April 12, 2023

Corporate 801-262-7475

Customer Service 800-662-5851

EMIHealth.com

Tubac Fire District
Dental and Vision Proposal

http://www.emihealth.com/
http://www.emihealth.com/
http://www.emihealth.com/
http://www.emihealth.com/
http://www.emihealth.com/
http://www.emihealth.com/
http://www.emihealth.com/


Corporate (801)262-7475

Customer Service (800)662-5851

EMIHealth.com

Tubac Fire District - (Option 1)
Summit Plus Indemnity
EMI Health

Contributory / Fully Insured

7/1/2023

Calendar

4/12/2023

50%

75% of Eligible (Minimum of 2 enrolled)

Up to the proposed effective date

Notes
1)

2)

3)
4)

5)

Proposal Date:

Employer Contribution Requirement:

Minimum Participation Requirement:

Proposal Valid:

In-Network

Group:

Plan:
Underwritten & Administered by:

Plan Type:

Effective Date:

Benefit Year:

Type 3 - Major 50% 50% up to R&C
Crowns, Bridges, Prosthodontics

Type 4 - Orthodontics No Coverage No Coverage
Dependent children ages 7 through 18

Out-of-Network

Type 1 - Preventive 100% 100% up to R&C
Oral Exams, Cleanings, X-rays, Fluoride

Type 2 - Basic 80% 80% up to R&C
Fillings, Oral Surgery

Endodontics Type 2 - Basic Type 2 - Basic

Periodontics Type 2 - Basic Type 2 - Basic

Waiting periods

Sealants Type 2 - Basic Type 2 - Basic

Space Maintainers Type 2 - Basic Type 2 - Basic

Deductible In and Out of Network Deductibles are Combined

Per Person $50.00 $50.00

Family Max $150.00 $150.00

Type 2 - Basic None

Type 3 - Major None

Type 4 - Orthodontics N / A

Network (Utah) Premier (EMI Health) N/A

Network (Arizona & Outside Utah) Summit Plus (Cigna) N/A

Deductible Applies To Type 2 & Type 3 Type 2 & Type 3

Annual Maximum Per Person $2,000.00

Orthodontic Lifetime Maximum N / A

Employee + Spouse

Employee + Child(ren)

Employee + Spouse + Child(ren)

Fee Schedule Summit Plus R & C (90th)

Monthly Rates

Employee

1 Year Rates 2 Year Rates

$28.30 $29.40

$59.00 $61.40

$60.50 $62.90

$89.10 $92.70

Space Maintainers Up to age 16

Bitewing X-Rays Up to 4, twice per year

Periapical X-Rays 6 per year

Provisions / Limitations / Exclusions

Exams (including Periodontal), Cleanings and Fluoride 2 per year

Fluoride Up to age 16

Sealants Up to age 16

Anesthesia - (For children age 7 and under, once per year) Covered in Type 3 - Major*

Implants / Implant Abutments Covered in Type 3 - Major

Crowns, Pontics, Abutments, Onlays and Dentures 1 every 5 years per tooth

Panoramic X-Ray 1 every 3 years

Impacted Teeth Covered in Type 2 - Basic

Anesthesia - (Age 8 and over for the extraction of impacted teeth only) Covered in Type 3 - Major*

New Hire Takeover Provision (If applicable) - Prior plan credit included.  Only insured benefits are credible.

Administration Fee - $2.00 per employee to a maximum of $20.00 will be charged each month.

New Group Takeover Provision (If applicable) - With proof of coverage and effective dates from the employer's prior dental carrier, the employee's waiting period, if any, will be 

reduced by the number of months the employee was covered by the prior plan.  The takeover provision only applies to benefits that were covered by the group's prior dental plan.

Fillings on the same surface 1 every 18 months

Benefits illustrated are in summary only.  Refer to your certificate for a complete description of benefits, limitations and exclusions.

* Anesthesia is not subject to waiting periods.

Rates are based on EMI Health being the sole carrier.

Deductible Takeover - Not Included

When using a Non-participating Provider, the insured is responsible for all fees in excess of the Reasonable and Customary Charges (R&C).

http://www.emihealth.com/


Corporate (801)262-7475

Customer Service (800)662-5851

EMIHealth.com

Group: Tubac Fire District

Plan: VSP Plus 10-160 / VSP Plus 10-130 / VSP Plus 10-100
7/1/2023

Plan Type: Voluntary or Contributory

4/12/2023

Contributory - 100% of the single premium / Voluntary - None

Contributory - 75% of Eligible (Minimum of 2 enrolled) / Voluntary - None (Minimum of 2 enrolled)

1 Year

Up to the proposed effective date

In-Network
Out-of-

Network
In-Network

Out-of-

Network
In-Network

Out-of-

Network

$10 Co-pay Up to $65 $10 Co-pay Up to $65 $10 Co-pay Up to $65

$10 Co-pay Up to $30 $10 Co-pay Up to $30 $10 Co-pay Up to $30

$10 Co-pay Up to $50 $10 Co-pay Up to $50 $10 Co-pay Up to $50

$10 Co-pay Up to $65 $10 Co-pay Up to $65 $10 Co-pay Up to $65

$10 Co-pay Up to $100 $10 Co-pay Up to $100 $10 Co-pay Up to $100

$0 Co-pay $0 Co-pay $0 Co-pay

$95-$105 Co-pay $95-$105 Co-pay $95-$105 Co-pay

$150-$175 Co-pay $150-$175 Co-pay $150-$175 Co-pay

$17 Co-pay $17 Co-pay $17 Co-pay

$15 Co-pay $15 Co-pay $15 Co-pay

$75 Co-pay $75 Co-pay $75 Co-pay

$31 Co-pay 

SV/$35 Co-Pay 

Multifocal

$31 Co-pay 

SV/$35 Co-Pay 

Multifocal

$31 Co-pay 

SV/$35 Co-Pay 

Multifocal

$0 Co-pay $0 Co-pay $0 Co-pay

$17 Co-pay $17 Co-pay $17 Co-pay

$41 Co-pay $41 Co-pay $41 Co-pay

$16 Co-pay $16 Co-pay $16 Co-pay

Up to 25% 

Discount

Up to 25% 

Discount

Up to 25% 

Discount

$160 Allowance at 

any VSP doctor or 

$90 at Costco, 

Sam's Club or 

Walmart

Up to $80 

$130 Allowance at 

any VSP doctor or 

$70 at Costco, 

Sam's Club or 

Walmart

Up to $80 

$100 Allowance at 

any VSP doctor or 

$55 at Costco, 

Sam's Club or 

Walmart

Up to $70 

Up to 20% Off 

Retail
N/A

Up to 20% Off 

Retail
N/A

Up to 20% Off 

Retail
N/A

$160 Allowance Up to $145 $130 Allowance Up to $115 $100 Allowance Up to $85 

Up to $500 in 

Savings
Not Covered

Up to $500 in 

Savings
Not Covered

Up to $500 in 

Savings
Not Covered

Contributory Voluntary Contributory Voluntary Contributory Voluntary

$6.70 $9.00 $6.00 $7.80 $5.40 $6.70

$14.50 $19.30 $13.00 $16.50 $11.40 $14.50 

$15.50 $20.50 $13.80 $17.80 $12.30 $15.50 

$22.20 $29.60 $20.00 $25.40 $17.60 $22.30 

Underwritten by: EMI Health

Note: Administration Fee - $2.00 per employee to a maximum of $20.00 will be charged each month. If Dental is offered also, fee will only be charged once per employee.

Notes

This is a summary of plan benefits. The actual Policy will detail all plan limitations and exclusions.

** 20% discount off unlimited additional pairs of glasses offered through any VSP Choice Providers within 12 months of last covered eye exam.

*** Discounts average 15-20% off or 5% off a promotional offer for laser surgery, including PRK, LASIK, Custom LASIK, and IntraLase3 

LASIK***

Monthly Rates
Employee

Employee + Spouse

Employee + Child(ren)

Employee +  Spouse + Child(ren)

Exam, Lenses, Frame or Contacts Every 12 Months Every 12 Months Every 12 Months

Refractive Surgery

Frames

Allowance Based on Retail Pricing

Additional Pairs of Glasses**

Elective Contact Lenses In Lieu 

of Frame & Lenses

Elective contact lens fitting, evaluation 

services and prescription contact lenses  

are covered up to plan allowance. 15% 

discount given off contact lens fitting and 

evaluation services, excluding materials.

Frequency

Coatings
Scratch Resistant Coating

N/A N/A N/A

Anti-Reflective Coating

UV Protection

Additional lens enhancements 

Plastic Gradient Dye

N/A N/A N/A

Solid Plastic Dye

Photochromic Lenses

Polycarbonate for Adults

Polycarbonate for Children (under 18)

Progressive (Standard no-line) Up to $50 (In lieu 

of Lined Bifocal 

reimbursement)

Up to $50 (In lieu 

of Lined Bifocal 

reimbursement)

Up to $50 (In lieu 

of Lined Bifocal 

reimbursement)

Premium Progressive Options

Custom Progressive Options

Single Vision

Lined Bifocal 

Lined Trifocal 

Lens Options

Lenticular

WellVision Exam

Lenses (Glass or Plastic)

VSP Plus 10-160 VSP Plus 10-130 VSP Plus 10-100

Network VSP Choice Plus VSP Choice Plus VSP Choice Plus

Proposal Valid:

Effective Date:

Proposal Date:

Employer Contribution Requirement:

Minimum Participation Requirement:

Rate Guarantee:

http://www.emihealth.com/


Step 1:

Current Medical Plans Employee EE + SP EE + Ch(ren) Family Change

A 3000 3000 QHDHP 100%

Currently Enrolled: 3 2 3 2

Prevous Rates: $354.59 $744.63 $673.71 $1,134.68

□ Renewal Rates (Med Only): $368.20 $773.19 $699.56 $1,178.21 3.84%

□ Renewal Rates (Med Den Vis Bundling): $361.33 $758.78 $686.51 $1,156.24 1.90%

A 1500 4000 80% $25/40

Currently Enrolled: 8 0 2 7

Prevous Rates: $406.90 $854.49 $773.11 $1,302.09

□ Renewal Rates (Med Only): $420.31 $882.65 $798.60 $1,344.99 3.30%

□ Renewal Rates (Med Den Vis Bundling): $412.47 $866.19 $783.71 $1,319.92 1.37%

July 01, 2023 through June 30, 2024

Read the renewal assumptions listed at the end of the document. Then put a checkmark in the squares next to all the 

plans/options (select up to 3 medical plan options) you wish to confirm for the 2023-2024 plan year.

Renewal Rates

Group Number : 3078

Tubac Fire District 
as part of the Public Service Health Benefits Pool

Confirmation of Renewal Rates

Renewal Rates



All Medical Plan Options - Med Only Employee EE + SP EE + Ch(ren) Family

□ A 250 2000 90% $20/35 $498.54 $1,046.95 $947.22 $1,595.33

□ A 500 2000 90% $20/35 $483.03 $1,014.36 $917.76 $1,545.69

□ A 500 3500 80% $20/35 $469.41 $985.73 $891.86 $1,502.07

□ A 1000 3000 80% $20/35 $445.99 $936.59 $847.38 $1,427.18

□ A 1500 4000 80% $25/40 $420.31 $882.65 $798.60 $1,344.99

□ A 2000 4500 80% $25/40 $400.42 $840.87 $760.79 $1,281.33

□ A 2500 5000 80% $30/60 $384.79 $808.07 $731.12 $1,231.34

□ A 3000 6500 80% $30/60 $365.49 $767.54 $694.44 $1,169.58

□ A 4000 6600 70% $40/75 $330.88 $694.84 $628.66 $1,058.80

□ A 5000 7350 80% $40/75 $321.55 $675.24 $610.93 $1,028.93

□ A 1500 1500 QHDHP 100% $424.58 $891.60 $806.68 $1,358.64

□ A 1500 3000 QHDHP 80% $386.38 $811.40 $734.11 $1,236.40

□ A 3000 3000 QHDHP 100% $368.20 $773.19 $699.56 $1,178.21

□ A 3000 6000 QHDHP 80% $331.06 $695.22 $629.01 $1,059.39

□ A 4000 6500 QHDHP 80% $299.15 $628.20 $568.37 $957.25

□ A 5000 6500 QHDHP 80%* $280.17 $588.37 $532.33 $896.58

*Denotes the plan does not provide creditable prescription drug coverage to Medicare Part D eligible individuals

All Medical Plan Options - Med Den Vis Bundling Employee EE + SP EE + Ch(ren) Family

□ A 250 2000 90% $20/35 $489.25 $1,027.42 $929.56 $1,565.58

□ A 500 2000 90% $20/35 $474.02 $995.45 $900.65 $1,516.87

□ A 500 3500 80% $20/35 $460.65 $967.35 $875.23 $1,474.06

□ A 1000 3000 80% $20/35 $437.67 $919.12 $831.58 $1,400.57

□ A 1500 4000 80% $25/40 $412.47 $866.19 $783.71 $1,319.92

□ A 2000 4500 80% $25/40 $392.96 $825.20 $746.61 $1,257.44

□ A 2500 5000 80% $30/60 $377.62 $793.00 $717.49 $1,208.39

□ A 3000 6500 80% $30/60 $358.67 $753.23 $681.49 $1,147.78

□ A 4000 6600 70% $40/75 $324.71 $681.88 $616.94 $1,039.06

□ A 5000 7350 80% $40/75 $315.55 $662.65 $599.54 $1,009.74

□ A 1500 1500 QHDHP 100% $416.66 $874.98 $791.64 $1,333.31

□ A 1500 3000 QHDHP 80% $379.17 $796.27 $720.42 $1,213.35

□ A 3000 3000 QHDHP 100% $361.33 $758.78 $686.51 $1,156.24

□ A 3000 6000 QHDHP 80% $324.88 $682.26 $617.28 $1,039.63

□ A 4000 6500 QHDHP 80% $293.58 $616.49 $557.77 $939.40

□ A 5000 6500 QHDHP 80%* $274.95 $577.40 $522.41 $879.86

*Denotes the plan does not provide creditable prescription drug coverage to Medicare Part D eligible individuals

Benefit Changes Include

A 250 1500 90% became A 250 2000 90%

A 500 1500 90% became A 500 2000 90%

A 500 3000 80% became A 500 3500 80%

A 1000 2500 80% became A 1000 3000 80%

A 1500 3500 80% became A 1500 4000 80%

Medical Plan Notes

Med Den Vis Bundling rates are valid if Medical, Dental, and Vision are all offered through EMI Health

If interested in using the Med Den Vis Bundling medical rates, please request Dental and Vision quotes from your account manager



Step 2:

Signature Date

EMI Health reserves the right to withdraw or change the bid if any of the bid information changes, including but not limited 

to any claims, demographic or other changes that may affect the risk of the group.

● This quote assumes the group has a current Workers Compensation plan in place.

● Additional fees may be required due to Federal Health Care Reform. PCORI Fees will be paid by the group.

● Requires the Employer to contribute a minimum of 50% of the single rate.

● The rates assume no deductible, coinsurance or copays will be paid by the group (except as approved for HSA and HRA products). GAP plans 

require approval.

● For HSA plans, additional HSA fund administration will be required. The rates above are for the HDHP.

Other Requirements:
● EMI Health is the only Medical carrier.

● If enrollment differs by more than 15% during the contract year, EMI Health reserves the right to reevaluate rates and plan designs.

● The number of COBRA participants may not exceed 10% of the group enrollment.

● This quote assumes retirees will not be covered.

Contribution Requirements:

● Other programs included: EMI Health Wellness (including Biometrics) and EMI Health TeleMed $0.

Eligibility Requirements:
● Requires 70% participation after qualified waivers and 50% participation before waivers.

● The number of out-of-state employees may not exceed 50% of the eligible employees with no more than 25% in states other than Arizona, 

Georgia, Texas and Utah.

● These plans are part of a Pool.

● All aggregate stop loss accumulations will accumulate for the entire Pool, not each group individually.

● Claims reporting is available for the Pool as a whole, not each group individually.

● Administered by: EMI Health.

● Accumulation Period: Calendar Year.

● Rx programs included: Mandatory Generic (DAW 1), Quantity per Dispensing Event, Specialty Pharmacy Program and Smart Pre-Authorization 

(PDST/PDPA).

Plan Information:
● Medical Provider Networks: Blue Cross® Blue Shield® of Arizona in Arizona, EMI Health Care Plus in Utah, and First Health outside Utah and 

Arizona.

● Pool will allow 3 benefit options per group.

● Funding Type: Self Funded

● Specific and Aggregate stop loss coverage is included with a contract basis: 12/24.

Sign and date below, save this file, and return it to Lauren Harward at EMI Health

Please sign below to acknowledge your acceptance of the terms, conditions and obligations of the renewal rates including any 

benefit or language changes (if applicable) for the 2023-2024 plan year.  Please return this signed signature page to EMI Health by 

May 31, 2023.  If this signature page is not received by the previously mentioned date your first payment under the new rates will 

be deemed an acceptance of the new rates, benefits, and agreements.

Renewal Assumptions



January 1, 2023 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

DEAR NANCY LINDSEY: 

Thank you for choosing VSP® Vision Care — and for your continued business. Putting your employees first and guaranteeing 

their satisfaction is easy, when we have partners like you.  

As the only national not-for-profit vision company, we’re committed to giving your employees: 

• Lowest employee out-of-pocket costs — employees’ #1 priority in a vision plan.    

• Exclusive Member Extras. offers you won’t find anywhere else — only VSP members can save more than $2,500 on 

vision, hearing, medical, and lifestyle services. 

• World class service — the highest customer satisfaction in the industry, 15 years in a row.    
 

Your VSP plan automatically renews on May 1, 2023 and no action is required to continue to receive consumers’ #1 choice in 

vision care. 
 

Group Name/Number: TUBAC FIRE DISTRICT / 30075764 

Renewal Period: May 1, 2023 - April 30, 2025 

Current Plan Frequency: 12 / 12 / 24 

Current Copay: $10 Exam / $10 Materials 

Current Allowance: $150.00 Retail Frame / $150.00 Elective Contact Lenses 

Current Rates: $7.99 / 12.78 / 13.04 / 21.03 

Renewal Rates: $7.99 / 12.78 / 13.04 / 21.03 

Rates include all applicable taxes and health assessment fees known as of the date of your renewal. 
 

 

Enhanced Offering 

Have you considered upgrading your Plan Frequency or increasing your Retail Frame Allowance to maximize the lowest 

out-of-pocket for your employees? We recommend these enhancements when you renew your current plan to deliver greater 

value: 
 

Plan Frequency: 12 / 12 / 24 

Copay: $10.00 Exam / $10.00 Materials 

Allowance: $180.00 Retail Frame / $150.00 Elective Contact Lenses 

Renewal Rates: $8.25 / 13.21 / 13.48 / 21.74 
 

Updating your plan is simple! Give me a call to enhance your benefits or to lower your premium and keep delivering the lowest 

out-of-pocket costs. 
 

Thank you, 

 

Brittany Snodgrass  (800) 216-6248 

 

 

 

 

 

NANCY LINDSEY 

TUBAC FIRE DISTRICT 

2227 E FRONTAGE RD 

TUBAC, AZ 85646-9997 

cc: MICHAEL ARMENTA 

 CREST INSURANCE GROUP, LLC 

 7272 E INDIAN SCHL RD STE 375 

              SCOTTSDALE, AZ 85251-3952 CMI CS Team 


	Agenda April 26 2023 Final
	March 2023 board ops report  (1)
	Slide 1: Staff Report Tubac Fire Board March 2023
	Slide 2: February Emergency Responses
	Slide 3: March Emergency Responses By Station 
	Slide 4: Annual Emergency Responses
	Slide 5
	Slide 6: Transports by Destination 
	Slide 7
	Slide 8: March Trends 
	Slide 9: Significant Calls
	Slide 10: Training  
	Slide 11
	Slide 12
	Slide 13

	Monthly Financial
	ADEM resolution FINAL
	Ambulance memo final
	AZDEMA Board Action Request
	AZDEMA packet
	Board action requests SJ-RB
	Medical Benefits Final 
	Medix 1
	Medix 2
	Medix 3
	Sheets and Views
	21-MH1339-REPUBLIC-TUBAC FIRE-A CSE (2)
	21-MH1339-REPUBLIC-TUBAC FIRE-B SSE (2)
	21-MH1339-REPUBLIC-TUBAC FIRE-C FRE (2)


	Medix 4
	Sheets and Views
	21-MH1339-REPUBLIC-TUBAC FIRE-A CSE
	21-MH1339-REPUBLIC-TUBAC FIRE-B SSE
	21-MH1339-REPUBLIC-TUBAC FIRE-C FRE
	21-MH1339-REPUBLIC-TUBAC FIRE-D PAP
	21-MH1339-REPUBLIC-TUBAC FIRE-E SSI-CPR
	21-MH1339-REPUBLIC-TUBAC FIRE-F CSI
	21-MH1339-REPUBLIC-TUBAC FIRE-G FE
	21-MH1339-REPUBLIC-TUBAC FIRE-H CL
	21-MH1339-REPUBLIC-TUBAC FIRE-I RE
	21-MH1339-REPUBLIC-TUBAC FIRE-J CNSL


	Securis
	Staff Report Part 2
	Staff Report part 3
	TFD 23 24 VFIS
	Tubac Fire District 23-24 Renewal Analysis - Bundling Quotes
	Tubac Fire District METLIFE 2023 Renewal
	Tubac Fire District_2023_Dental-Vision BUNDLING QUOTE
	Tubac Fire District_2023_EMI HEALTH Renewal Confirmation (002)
	Tubac Fire District-30075764-VSP Renewal Letter-Eff 5-1-23
	56772dc5-8de5-45e3-a473-79910f79385e.pdf
	Agenda April 26 2023 Final
	March 2023 board ops report  (1)
	Slide 1: Staff Report Tubac Fire Board March 2023
	Slide 2: February Emergency Responses
	Slide 3: March Emergency Responses By Station 
	Slide 4: Annual Emergency Responses
	Slide 5
	Slide 6: Transports by Destination 
	Slide 7
	Slide 8: March Trends 
	Slide 9: Significant Calls
	Slide 10: Training  
	Slide 11
	Slide 12
	Slide 13

	Monthly Financial
	ADEM resolution FINAL
	Ambulance memo final
	AZDEMA Board Action Request
	AZDEMA packet
	Board action requests SJ-RB
	Medical Benefits Final 
	Medix 1
	Medix 2
	Medix 3
	Sheets and Views
	21-MH1339-REPUBLIC-TUBAC FIRE-A CSE (2)
	21-MH1339-REPUBLIC-TUBAC FIRE-B SSE (2)
	21-MH1339-REPUBLIC-TUBAC FIRE-C FRE (2)


	Medix 4
	Sheets and Views
	21-MH1339-REPUBLIC-TUBAC FIRE-A CSE
	21-MH1339-REPUBLIC-TUBAC FIRE-B SSE
	21-MH1339-REPUBLIC-TUBAC FIRE-C FRE
	21-MH1339-REPUBLIC-TUBAC FIRE-D PAP
	21-MH1339-REPUBLIC-TUBAC FIRE-E SSI-CPR
	21-MH1339-REPUBLIC-TUBAC FIRE-F CSI
	21-MH1339-REPUBLIC-TUBAC FIRE-G FE
	21-MH1339-REPUBLIC-TUBAC FIRE-H CL
	21-MH1339-REPUBLIC-TUBAC FIRE-I RE
	21-MH1339-REPUBLIC-TUBAC FIRE-J CNSL


	Securis
	Staff Report Part 2
	Staff Report part 3
	TFD 23 24 VFIS
	Tubac Fire District 23-24 Renewal Analysis - Bundling Quotes
	Tubac Fire District METLIFE 2023 Renewal
	Tubac Fire District_2023_Dental-Vision BUNDLING QUOTE
	Tubac Fire District_2023_EMI HEALTH Renewal Confirmation (002)
	Tubac Fire District-30075764-VSP Renewal Letter-Eff 5-1-23

	56772dc5-8de5-45e3-a473-79910f79385e.pdf
	Agenda April 26 2023 Final
	March 2023 board ops report  (1)
	Slide 1: Staff Report Tubac Fire Board March 2023
	Slide 2: February Emergency Responses
	Slide 3: March Emergency Responses By Station 
	Slide 4: Annual Emergency Responses
	Slide 5
	Slide 6: Transports by Destination 
	Slide 7
	Slide 8: March Trends 
	Slide 9: Significant Calls
	Slide 10: Training  
	Slide 11
	Slide 12
	Slide 13

	Monthly Financial
	ADEM resolution FINAL
	Ambulance memo final
	AZDEMA Board Action Request
	AZDEMA packet
	Board action requests SJ-RB
	Medical Benefits Final 
	Medix 1
	Medix 2
	Medix 3
	Sheets and Views
	21-MH1339-REPUBLIC-TUBAC FIRE-A CSE (2)
	21-MH1339-REPUBLIC-TUBAC FIRE-B SSE (2)
	21-MH1339-REPUBLIC-TUBAC FIRE-C FRE (2)


	Medix 4
	Sheets and Views
	21-MH1339-REPUBLIC-TUBAC FIRE-A CSE
	21-MH1339-REPUBLIC-TUBAC FIRE-B SSE
	21-MH1339-REPUBLIC-TUBAC FIRE-C FRE
	21-MH1339-REPUBLIC-TUBAC FIRE-D PAP
	21-MH1339-REPUBLIC-TUBAC FIRE-E SSI-CPR
	21-MH1339-REPUBLIC-TUBAC FIRE-F CSI
	21-MH1339-REPUBLIC-TUBAC FIRE-G FE
	21-MH1339-REPUBLIC-TUBAC FIRE-H CL
	21-MH1339-REPUBLIC-TUBAC FIRE-I RE
	21-MH1339-REPUBLIC-TUBAC FIRE-J CNSL


	Securis
	Staff Report Part 2
	Staff Report part 3
	TFD 23 24 VFIS
	Tubac Fire District 23-24 Renewal Analysis - Bundling Quotes
	Tubac Fire District METLIFE 2023 Renewal
	Tubac Fire District_2023_Dental-Vision BUNDLING QUOTE
	Tubac Fire District_2023_EMI HEALTH Renewal Confirmation (002)
	Tubac Fire District-30075764-VSP Renewal Letter-Eff 5-1-23


	Renewal Rates Med Den Vis Bundling_2: Off
	Renewal Rates Med Only_2: Off
	Renewal Rates Med Den Vis Bundling: Off
	Renewal Rates Med Only: Off
	A 5000 6500 QHDHP 80_2: Off
	A 4000 6500 QHDHP 80_2: Off
	A 3000 6000 QHDHP 80_2: Off
	A 3000 3000 QHDHP 100_2: Off
	A 1500 3000 QHDHP 80_2: Off
	A 1500 1500 QHDHP 100_2: Off
	A 5000 7350 80 4075_2: Off
	A 4000 6600 70 4075_2: Off
	A 3000 6500 80 3060_2: Off
	A 2500 5000 80 3060_2: Off
	A 2000 4500 80 2540_2: Off
	A 1500 4000 80 2540_2: Off
	A 1000 3000 80 2035_2: Off
	A 500 3500 80 2035_2: Off
	A 500 2000 90 2035_2: Off
	A 250 2000 90 2035_2: Off
	A 5000 6500 QHDHP 80: Off
	A 4000 6500 QHDHP 80: Off
	A 3000 6000 QHDHP 80: Off
	A 3000 3000 QHDHP 100: Off
	A 1500 3000 QHDHP 80: Off
	A 1500 1500 QHDHP 100: Off
	A 5000 7350 80 4075: Off
	A 4000 6600 70 4075: Off
	A 3000 6500 80 3060: Off
	A 2500 5000 80 3060: Off
	A 2000 4500 80 2540: Off
	A 1500 4000 80 2540: Off
	A 1000 3000 80 2035: Off
	A 500 3500 80 2035: Off
	A 500 2000 90 2035: Off
	A 250 2000 90 2035: Off
	Date: 


